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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder), a Florida corfioraorganized in 1955, is a global leader in tpmtation and supply chain management
solutions. Our business is divided into three bessnsegments: Fleet Management Solutions (FMSthwirovides full service leasing, contract
maintenance, contract-related maintenance and cooiaheental of trucks, tractors and trailers tettumers principally in the U.S., Canada and
the U.K.; Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which po®d comprehensive supply chain solutions includisgribution and transportation services
throughout North America and in Latin America, Bpeaand Asia; and Dedicated Contract Carriage (D@@ijch provides vehicles and drivers
part of a dedicated transportation solution inth8.

Financial information relating to each of dwsiness segments is included in the Notes to @idiased Financial Statements as part of ltem 8
of this report.

INDUSTRY AND OPERATIONS
Fleet Management Solutions

Over the last several years, many key trérade been reshaping the transportation industrjicpiarly the $59 billion U.S. private
commercial fleet market and the $26 billion U.Smeoercial fleet lease and rental market. Commexehlcles have become more complicated
requiring companies to spend a significant amo@ititee and money to keep up with new technologggdbstics, retooling and training. Because
of increased demand for convenience, speed arabilélf, companies that own and manage their owatfbf vehicles have put greater emphasis
on the quality of their preventive maintenance safitty programs. Finally, new regulatory requiretaenich as regulations covering diesel
emissions and the number of off-duty rest hours\vaedmust take (hours of service regulations) haleeed additional administrative burdens on
private fleet owners.

Through our FMS business, we provide ouramsts with flexible fleet solutions that are desidrio improve their competitive position by
allowing them to focus on their core business, lotlieir costs and redirect their capital to othart® of their business. Our FMS product offering
is comprised primarily of contractual-based fulvdee leasing and contract maintenance servicesalteoffer transactional fleet solutions
including, commercial truck rental, maintenancesges, and value-added fleet support services aa¢hsurance, vehicle administration and fuel
services. In addition, we provide our customerfaitcess to a large selection of used trucksotrmeind trailers through our used vehicle sales
program.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, olragleMS business accounted for 59% of our consi@ileevenue. Our FMS customers in the
U.S. range from small businesses to large natien@rprises. These customers operate in a widetyan industries, the most significant of wh
include beverage, newspaper, grocery, lumber armtipooducts, home furnishings and metal. At Decarlie2006, we had a U.S. fleet of
approximately 140,900 commercial trucks, tractom #ailers leased or rented through 693 locatio9 states and Puerto Rico.

Our domestic FMS business is divided inte@ons: East, Central and West. Each region igldi/into 8 to 16 business units (BU) and each
BU contains approximately 10 to 30 branch offickdranch office typically consists of a maintenafelity or “shop,” offices for sales and
other personnel, and in many cases, a commercitdlreounter. Our maintenance facilities typicaflglude a service island for fueling, safety
inspections and preliminary maintenance checksedlsas a shop for preventive maintenance and repair

Full Service LeasingWVe target leasing customers that would benefit fourtsourcing their fleet management function orrapgmng their fleet
without having to dedicate a significant amounthafir own capital. Under a typical full servicedeawe provide vehicle maintenance, supplies
and related equipment
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necessary for operation of the vehicles while aust@mers furnish and supervise their own drivetsdispatch and exercise control over the
vehicles. We will assess a customer’s situation aftdr considering the size of the customer, tesidsk, balance sheet treatment and other
factors, will tailor a leasing program that bedtsthe customer’s needs. Once we have agreedemsig program, we acquire vehicles and
components that are custom engineered to the ces®nequirements and lease the vehicles to thmes for periods generally ranging from
three to seven years for trucks and tractors artd tgn years for trailers. Because we purchasege Inumber of vehicles from a limited number
of manufacturers, we are able to leverage our lgugower for the benefit of our customers. In additigiven our continued focus on improving
the efficiency and effectiveness of our maintenasergices, we can provide our customers with a effsttive alternative to maintaining their
own fleet of vehicles. We also offer our leasingtomers the additional fleet support services desdrbelow. At December 31, 2006, we leased
approximately 104,500 vehicles under full servieaskes in the U.S. At December 31, 2006, we hadajppately 11,000 full service lease
customer accounts in the U.S.

Contract MaintenanceOur contract maintenance customers typically ineladr full service lease customers as well as athstomers that
want to utilize our extensive network of mainterafecilities and trained technicians to maintaia tehicles they own or lease from third parties,
usually a bank or other financial institution. T¢mntract maintenance service offering is designegduce vehicle downtime through preventive
and predictive maintenance based on vehicle typedaring habits, vehicle repair including partsidabor, 24-hour emergency roadside service
and replacement vehicles for vehicles that are tearfly out of service. These vehicles are typicakrviced at our own facilities. However, ba
on the size and complexity of a customer’s fleat,may operate an on-site maintenance facilityattistomer’s location. At December 31, 2006,
we operated 196 on-site maintenance facilitieqiénU.S. and Puerto Rico. At December 31, 2006, aceapproximately 1,200 contract
maintenance customer accounts in the U.S., 50thafhware not full service lease customers.

Commercial RentaWe target rental customers that have a need tdesmept their private fleet of vehicles on a shertt basis (typically
from less than one month up to one year in lengither because of seasonal increases in theirémsior discrete projects that require additional
transportation resources. Our commercial rentat fso provides additional vehicles to our fulviee lease customers to handle their peak or
seasonal business needs. Our rental representasisiss in selecting a vehicle that satisfies tietamer’s needs and supervise the rental process,
which includes execution of a rental agreementawméhicle inspection. In addition to vehicle rentad extend to our rental customers liability
insurance coverage under our existing policiesthadenefits of our comprehensive fuel servicegi@am. At December 31, 2006, a fleet of
approximately 33,900 vehicles, ranging from heaugydractors and trailers to light-duty trucks, vweasilable for commercial short-term rental in
the U.S. The rental fleet's average age was 4.8y@ae utilization rate of the U.S. rental fleetidg fiscal year 2006 was approximately 72%.

Contract-Related Maintenanc®ur full service lease and contract maintenanceousrs periodically require additional maintenagseevices
that are not included in their contracts. For exnadditional maintenance services may arise vehemstomer’s driver damages the vehicle and
these services are performed or managed by Rydere Sustomers also periodically require maintenavard on vehicles that are not covered by
a lease or maintenance contract. Ryder may prasgadéce on these vehicles and charge the customan diourly basis for work performed. This
contract-related maintenance work is obtained bgeeRylue to our contractual relationship with thetomers; however, the service provided is in
addition to that included in their contractual agnents.
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Fleet Support Service®e offer a variety of fleet support services inartb capitalize on our large base of lease custan@urrently, we
offer the following fleet support services:

Service Description
Insurance Liability insurance coverage under Ryder’s existingurance policies which includes
monthly invoicing, discounts based on driver parfance and vehicle specifications,
flexible deductibles and claims administration; picgpl damage waivers; gap
insurance; fleet risk assessm

Safety Establishing safety standards; providing safetiing, driver certification,
prescreening and road tests; safety audits; itisigfyprocedures for transport of
hazardous materials; coordinating drug and alct#sting; loss prevention consulti

Fuel Fuel purchasing (both in bulk and at the pump)oatgetitive prices; fuel planning;
fuel tax reporting; centralized billing; fuel car

Administrative Vehicle use and other tax reporting; permitting &oehsing; regulatory compliance
(including hours of service administratic

Environmental management Storage tank monitoring; stormwater managementyemwental training; ISO 14001
certification

Used VehiclesWe typically sell our used vehicles at one of otisles centers throughout North America, at Ripdanch locations or
through our website atww.Usedtrucks.Ryder.comefore we offer any used vehicle for sale, our téglans assure that it Road Ready which
means that the vehicle has passed a 43-point pgafare inspection based on specifications formuldiexligh the Ryder contract maintenance
program. Although we typically sell our used vebgfor prices in excess of book value, the exemitich we are able to realize a gain on the
sale of used vehicles is dependent upon variousriamcluding the general state of the used vehithrket, the age and condition of the vehic
the time of its disposal and depreciation ratef waspect to the vehicle.

FMS Business Strateg®ur FMS business strategy revolves around theviatig interrelated goals and priorities:

* improve customer retention leve

« successfully implement sales growth initiative®im contractual product offering

e optimize asset utilization and managem:

» deliver unparalleled maintenance to our customdvigeveontinuing to implement process designs amdipctivity improvements
» offer a wide range of support services that compleinour leasing, rental and maintenance busineard

» offer competitive pricing through cost managemaeittatives and maintain pricing discipline on neustess

Supply Chain Solutions

The global supply chain logistics marketstimmated to be $295 billion. Several key trendsadfecting the market for third-party logistics
services. Outsourcing all or a portion of a custosgupply chain is becoming a more attractiveraliéive for several reasons including (1) the
lengthening of the global supply chain due to tieation of manufacturing activities further awagrr the point of consumption, (2) the increa:
complexity of customers’ supply chains, and (3)rikeed for new and innovative technology-based ®olst In addition, industry consolidation is
increasing as providers look to expand their sereiferings and create economies of scale in dalbe competitive and satisfy
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customers’ global needs. To meet our customersatelsin light of these trends, we provide an iratsgt suite of global supply chain solutions
with sophisticated technologies and industry-legdingineering services, designed so that our custoan manage their supply chains with
more efficiency.

Through our SCS business, we offer a broade@f innovative lead logistics management sesvibat are designed to optimize a customer’s
global supply chain and address the needs and econeflected by the trends previously mentiondte Term “supply chain” refers to a
strategically designed process that directs theem@nt of materials, funds and related informatiomfthe acquisition of raw materials to the
delivery of finished products to the end-user. S@S product offerings are organized into threegmates: professional services, distribution
operations and transportation solutions. We alger afur SCS customers a variety of information texbgy solutions, referred to as
e-fulfillment, which are an integral part of ouhet SCS services.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, ourl&GBess accounted for 32% of our consolidatedmee. At December 31, 2006, we had 96
SCS customer accounts in the U.S., most of whieHaage enterprises that maintain large, compl@plsuchains. These customers operate in a
variety of industries including automotive, electies, high-tech, telecommunications, industriahsiamer goods, paper and paper products, office
equipment, food and beverage, and general retaikimies. Our largest customer, General Motors @aitpn (GM), is comprised of multiple
contracts in various geographic regions. In 200@, &counted for approximately 40% of SCS total nae 18% of SCS operating revenue (total
revenue less subcontracted transportation) anddf3%nsolidated revenue.

Unlike our FMS operations, which are manatiedugh a network of regional offices, BUs and lotanffices, most of our core SCS business
operations in the U.S. revolve around our custohsergply chains and are geographically located toimiae efficiencies and reduce costs. Th
SCS facilities are typically leased. At December&106, leased SCS warehouse space totaled ap@i@kin? million square feet for the U.S. ¢
Puerto Rico. Along with those core customer spediftations, we also concentrate certain logistiqzertise in locations not associated with
specific customer sites. For example, Ryder’s eaptocurement, contract management and freighatdlit and payment services groups operate
out of our carrier management center in Ann Aridichigan and our transportation optimization ané@&xion groups operate out of our logistics
centers in Farmington Hills, Michigan and Ft. WorTlexas.

We are awarded a significant portion of 0GiSSusiness through requests for proposals (REREpses. Many companies that maintain
elaborate supply chain networks, including mangwfexisting customers, submit an RFP with restzeatl or a portion of their supply chain. A
team of SCS operations and logistics design spstsiabs well as representatives from our finaneal, estate and information technology
departments, will formulate a bid that includes@gosed supply chain solution as well as pricirfgrimation. The bid may include one or more of
the following SCS services.

Professional ServiceQur SCS business offers a variety of consultingises that support every aspect of a custosngupply chain. Our SC
consultants are available to evaluate a custoregi&ing supply chain to identify inefficiencies well as opportunities for integration and
improvement. Once the assessment is complete, wewith the customer to develop a supply chaintegya that will create the most value for
customer and their target clients. Once a custdragiadopted a supply chain strategy, our SCS logiigam and representatives from our
information technology, real estate, finance aadgportation management groups work together tguasstrategically focused supply chain
solution. The solution may include both a distribntplan that sets forth the number, location ametfion of each distribution facility and a
transportation solution that sets forth the modmodes of transportation and route selection. Hitexh to providing the distribution and
transportation expertise necessary to implemenstipply chain solution, our SCS representativesccandinate and manage all aspects of the
customers supply chain provider network to assure conststegfficiency and flexibility. We also provide trgportation consulting services to
SCS customers, which allow us to leverage the ¢ispesind resources of our FMS business.
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Distribution OperationsOur SCS business offers a wide range of servidang to a customer’s distribution operations sastdesigning a
customer’s distribution or warehouse facility, mging the customer’s existing distribution facilgier a facility we acquire in order to provide the
agreed-upon services, managing the flow of goodctly from the receiving function to the shippifugpction (cross-docking), coordinating
warehousing and transportation for inbound matéieals, handling import and export for internatibshipments, coordinating just-in -time
replenishment of component parts to manufacturimyfanal assembly, monitoring shipment and invepstatus through web-enabled tracking
solutions, providing logistics services in connewtivith the return of products to our customersrafielivery to a target client (reverse logistics)
and providing additional value-added services aglight assembly of components into defined ukitting), packaging and refurbishment.

Transportation Solution®ur SCS business offers services relating to pkets of a customer’s transportation network. @ant of
transportation specialists provides shipment plagaind execution, which includes shipment constibdaload scheduling and delivery
confirmation through a series of technological amdb-based solutions. Our transportation consultamtsonjunction with our Ryder Freight
Brokerage department, focus on carrier procurerokall modes of transportation with an emphasisrook-based transportation, rate negotiation
and freight bill audit and payment services. Iniadd, our SCS business provides customers asagadur FMS and DCC businesses with
capacity management services that are designeeatedoad-building opportunities and minimize essceapacity.

SCS Business Strate@@yur SCS business strategy revolves around theAfritpinterrelated goals and priorities:

» offer strategicall-focused comprehensive supply chain solutions taccastomers

» enhance distribution management as a core platfoignow integrated solution

» further diversify our customer bas

» leverage our transportation management capabiiit@sding the expertise and resources of our FMSress

» achieve strong partnering relationships with owstomers

» be a market innovator by continuously improving éffectiveness and efficiency of our solution detfiwmodel; ant

» serve our custom’s global needs as lead manager, integrator an--value operatot

Dedicated Contract Carriage

The U.S. dedicated contract carriage masgkestimated to be $10 billion. This market is afddy many of the trends that impact our FMS
business such as the increased cost associategwrithasing and maintaining a fleet of vehiclese @tdministrative burden relating to regulations
issued by the Department of Transportation (DO§garding driver screening, training and testingwali as record keeping and other costs
associated with the hours of service requiremenéke our DCC product an attractive alternativertogte fleet management. In addition, market
demand for just-in -time delivery creates a neadifell-defined routing and scheduling plans that laased on comprehensive asset utilization
analysis and fleet rationalization studies.

Through our DCC business segment, we conthimequipment, maintenance and administrative ces\of a full service lease with additional
services to provide a customer with a dedicatetsprartation solution that is designed to increhs& tompetitive position, improve risk
management and integrate their transportation negtsheir overall supply chain. Such additionahdces include driver hiring and training,
routing and scheduling, fleet sizing, safety, ragody compliance, risk management, technology amdnecunication systems support including on-
board computers, and other technical support. Thddiional services allow us to address, on bedfadlur customers, the labor
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issues associated with maintaining a private fiéeehicles, such as driver turnover, governmegtiaion, including hours of service regulatic
DOT audits and workers’ compensation.

Our DCC consultants examine and assess 8terners transportation needs. In order to customize anogpiate DCC transportation soluti
for our customers, our DCC logistics specialistSgren a transportation analysis using advancedstasi planning and operating tools. Based on
this analysis, they formulate a distribution plaattincludes the routing and scheduling of vehjdles efficient use of vehicle capacity and overall
asset utilization. The goal of the plan is to ceemtistribution system that optimizes freight flavile meeting a customer’s service goals. A team
of DCC transportation specialists can then implentiea plan by leveraging the resources, expertisetechnological capabilities of both our FI
and SCS businesses.

To the extent a distribution plan includedtiple modes of transportation (air, rail, sea &ighway), our DCC team, in conjunction with our
SCS transportation specialists, selects appropratsportation modes and carriers, places thghHtemonitors carrier performance and audits
billing. In addition, through our SCS business,e®@a reduce costs and add value to a customertibdigon system by aggregating orders into
loads, looking for shipment consolidation opporti@si and organizing loads for vehicles that arerréhg from their destination point back to tf
point of origin (backhaul).

Because it is highly customized, our DCC piaids particularly attractive to companies thagme in industries that have time-sensitive
deliveries or special handling requirements, siccheawspapers and refrigerated products, as wll @mpanies whose distribution systems
involve multiple stops within a closed loop highwayite. Because DCC accounts typically operateliimiéged geographic area, most of the
drivers assigned to these accounts are shorthaersiimeaning they return home at the end of eawhk day.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, our bi@Xihess accounted for 9% of our consolidatedmexeAt December 31, 2006, we had 239
DCC customer accounts in the U.S. Although a sigailt portion of our DCC operations are locatedustomer facilities, our DCC business
utilizes and benefits from our extensive networlEMS facilities.

DCC Business Strategur DCC business strategy revolves around thevidtig interrelated goals and priorities:

« align our DCC and SCS husinesses to createnoevepportunities and improve operating efficieadgieboth segments, particularly
through increased backhaul utilizatic

* increase market share with customers that ¢petased loop distribution systems that requinecse comprehensive transportation
solution;

» leverage the expertise and resources of our FMSS&®ibusinesses; a
« expand our DCC support services to create migtd transportation solutions for new customersemhance the solutions we have
created for existing custome
International

In addition to our operations in the U.S.,waave FMS operations in Canada and the U.K. and @@&ations in Canada, Latin America,
Europe and Asia. We have made it a goal to expanéhternational operations by leveraging our damgsoduct offerings and customer base.

Canada.We have been operating in Canada for over 50 y@ansFMS operations in Canada include full seréé@sing, contract
maintenance, contract-related maintenance and cociaheental. We also offer fleet support servisash as insurance, fuel services and
administrative services. At December 31, 2006, a@ & fleet of approximately 11,900 commercial tajdkactors and trailers leased or rented
from 41 locations, including 1 on-site maintenafamlity, throughout 6 Canadian provinces. At Detemn31, 2006, we leased vehicles to over
1,200 full service lease customer accounts in Caaad performed contract maintenance on approxiyna8® customer accounts.

6
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Our Canadian SCS operations also includdl agfiuige of services including lead logistics magragnt services and distribution and
transportation solutions. Given the proximity ofstinarket to our U.S. operations, the Canadianaijmers are highly coordinated with their
U.S. counterparts, managing cross-border trangpmrtand freight movements. At December 31, 2006 had 50 SCS customer accounts and
leased SCS warehouse space totaling approximatélp@0 square feet in Canada.

Europe.We began operating in the U.K. in 1971 and sinea tiave expanded into Ireland and Germany by lgirgaour operations in the
U.S. and the U.K. Our FMS operations in Europeudelfull service leasing, contract maintenancetrastrrelated maintenance and commercial
rental. We also offer fleet support services sucmaurance, fuel services, administrative seryideger capability and on-board technology.

At December 31, 2006, we had a fleet of apipnately 12,000 commercial trucks, tractors anddrs leased or rented through 40 locations
throughout the U.K. and Germany. We also managetwark of over 280 independent maintenance fagdlith the U.K. to serve our customers
where it is more effective than providing the seevin a Ryder managed location. In addition totgpical FMS operations, we also supply and
manage vehicles, equipment and personnel for myildeganizations in the U.K. and Germany. At Decentil, 2006, we leased vehicles to over
1,100 full service lease customer accounts in the Bnd Germany.

Our European SCS operations include a compéetge of service offerings including lead logstinanagement services, distribution and
transportation solutions, and logistics consulting design services. In addition, we operate a celngmsive shipment, planning and execution
system through our European transportation managieseevices center located in Dusseldorf, GermAnypecember 31, 2006, we had 28 SCS
customer accounts and leased SCS warehouse spaladggtapproximately 200,000 square feet in Europe.

Latin AmericaWe began operating in Mexico, Brazil and Argeniiméhe mid-1990s and in Chile in 2004. In all oé$le markets we offer a
full range of SCS services, including managingritistion operations and cross-docking terminalsl designing and managing customer specific
solutions. In our Argentina and Brazil operations, also offer international transportation servifirdreight moving between these markets,
including transportation, backhaul and customs @iace management. Our Mexican operations also neamage than 3,000 border crossings
each week between Mexico and the U.S., often higitggrated with our domestic distribution and sjaortation operations. At December 31,
2006, we had 154 SCS customer accounts and le&s@dv@rehouse space totaling approximately 3 millignare feet in Latin America.

Asia.We began operating in Asia in 2000 through our &itijon of Ascent Logistics. Although our Asian apgons are headquartered in
Singapore, we also provide services in China viaShanghai office and coordinate logistics actatin countries such as Malaysia. As part o
strategy to expand with our customers into majorketa, we will continue to refine our strategy ihi@a and focus our efforts on growing our
operations in that region. We offer a wide rang&®068 services to customers in the region, includiagagement of distribution operations,
domestic transportation management, coordinaticmeduling and management of international freigbv@ment, postponement, bundling and
other customization activities, and freight procneat. At December 31, 2006, we had 48 SCS custanwmunts and leased SCS warehouse !
totaling approximately 368,000 square feet in Asia.

Administration

We have consolidated most of our financiaheustrative functions for the U.S. and Canadaluding credit, billing and collections, into our
Shared Services Center operations, a centralizmmkpsing center located in Alpharetta, Georgias Tentralization results in more efficient and
consistent centralized processing of selected adtrative operations. Certain administrative fuort are also performed at the Shared Services
Center for our customers. The Shared Services €emtain objectives are to reduce ongoing annualiaitrative costs, enhance customer
service through process standardization, createganizational structure that will improve markietxibility and allow future
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reengineering efforts to be more easily attainddwér implementation costs. In 2006, we retaireditparties to provide primarily administrati
finance and support services outside of the U.8rder to reduce ongoing operating expenses andmzxour technology resources.

Regulation

Our business is subject to regulation byousifederal, state and foreign governmental estifibe DOT and various state agencies exercise
broad powers over certain aspects of our busigesgrally governing such activities as authorizatmengage in motor carrier operations, safety
and financial reporting. We are also subject ta@ety of requirements of national, state, prowaheind local governments, including the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency and the Occupati®adety and Health Administration, that regulaéesy, the management of hazardous
materials, water discharges and air emissiong] sadiste disposal and the release and cleanup aiated substances. We may also be subject to
licensing and other requirements imposed by the Department of Homeland Security and U.S. CustBersice as a result of increased focu:
homeland security and our Customs-Trade Partnersigyinst Terrorism certification. We may also beeosubject to new or more restrictive
regulations imposed by these agencies, or othaépaities relating to engine exhaust emissions,edsvhours of service, security and ergonomics.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency isased regulations that require progressive rednstin exhaust emissions from diesel engines
from 2007 through 2010. Some of these regulatiegsire subsequent reductions in the sulfur coraedtesel fuel which began in June 2006 and
the introduction of emissions after-treatment desion newly manufactured engines and vehicles begjrwith the model year 2007.

Environmental

We have adopted an environmental policy tef¢cts our commitment to supporting the goalsustainable development, environmental
protection and pollution prevention in our busindsswvard this objective, we have developed and é@manted environmental practices in our
business operations, and regularly monitor theaetjges to identify opportunities for improveme@tr environmental team works with our staff
and operating employees to develop and administgrams in support of our environmental policy.

In establishing appropriate environmentakahyes and targets for our wide range of busiaesisities around the world, we focus on (i) the
needs of our customers, (ii) the communities inclihive provide services and (iii) relevant laws eggllations. We regularly review and update
our environmental management procedures, and irfiiomregarding our environmental activities istmoely disseminated throughout Ryder.

Safety

Safety is an integral part of our strateggehese preventing injury and decreasing servicerimiéions increases efficiency and customer
satisfaction. In 2002, we were awarded @reen Cross for Safefyom the National Safety Council for our commitmémivorkplace safety and
corporate citizenship.

Our Safety department focuses on (i) reergiind maintaining qualified drivers; (ii) improginriver and management safety training;
(iii) implementing periodic reviews of driver reats; (iv) creating incentives for drivers with gosafety records; and (v) raising awareness of
safety-related issues on a company-wide basis S@fety, Health and Security Policy require thahadinagers, supervisors, and employees ensur
that safety, health and security processes arepocated into all aspects of our business.

In addition, our Safety department develofeed safety and training programs such as houseofice, driving ethics, security and hazardous
material transport in order to promote safety, f{asicustomer relations, service standards andyatodty. All of our drivers in the U.S. must
meet or exceed
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DOT qualifications. Our DOT department updates @rigualification files at least annually to maintabmpliance with DOT regulations.

Risk Management

The nature of our business exposes us tofikbility for damages arising primarily out pfoperty damage, customer-managed inventory
shrinkage, vehicle liability, and workers’ competisa. We currently selfasure for a portion of our claims exposure reaglfirom these risks. W\
also maintain insurance with third-party insuranagiers above the amounts for which we self-insWe are responsible for a deductible for auto
liability, physical damage, cargo and workers’ cemgation claims. The independent insurance capiergde coverage for claims in excess of
deductible amounts. Management believes that muramce coverage is adequate.

Competition

As an alternative to using our services, @mgtrs may choose to provide these services fordbkms, or may choose to obtain similar or
alternative services from other third-party vendors

Our FMS and DCC business segments compelecarnpanies providing similar services on a natioregional and local level. Regional and
local competitors may sometimes provide servicea national level through their participation irrieais cooperative programs. Competitive
factors include price, equipment, maintenance,isemnd geographic coverage and, with respect tG,Difiver and operations expertise. We
compete with finance lessors and to an extentiqudatly in the U.K., with a number of truck anaiter manufacturers who provide truck and
trailer leasing, extended warranty maintenanceatemd other transportation services. Value-adiifdrentiation of the full service leasing,
contract maintenance, contract-related maintenandecommercial rental service and DCC offeringshben, and will continue to be, our
emphasis.

In the SCS business segment, we competecaitipanies providing similar services on an inteomat, national, regional and local level.
Additionally, this business is subject to potentiainpetition in most of the regions it serves fraimcargo, shipping, railroads, motor carriers and
other companies that are expanding logistics sesvitich as freight forwarders, contract manufactued integrators. Competitive factors
include price, service, equipment, maintenancegggahic coverage, market knowledge, expertisedrstirs-related technology, and overall
performance (e.g., timeliness, accuracy and fléihi Value-added differentiation of these servaféerings across the global supply chain
continues to be our overriding strategy.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, we had approximatelp@8 fulltime employees worldwide, of which 23,500 were agpt in North America, 3,0(
in Latin America, 1,600 in Europe and 500 in AsMe have approximately 16,200 hourly employees énUtss., approximately 3,600 of which .
organized by labor unions. These employees areipely represented by the International Brothehob Teamsters, the International
Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, the United Auto Workers, and their wages and fitsngre governed by 93 labor
agreements that are renegotiated periodically. Ndriee businesses in which we currently engage lexperienced a material work stoppage,
slowdown or strike and we consider that our retetfap with our employees is good.

9




Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

All of the executive officers of Ryder werne&ed or re-elected to their present offices eitlieor subsequent to the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on May 5, 2006 in conjunction witiider’'s 2006 Annual Meeting. They all hold such oé8, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, until their removal, replacement ornetient.

Name Age Position

Gregory T. Swientol 57 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Mark T. Jamiesol 53 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Robert D. Fatovit 41 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Gatpdecretar

Art A. Garcia 45 Senior Vice President and Control

Gregory F. Green 47 Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resourceis&

Bobby J. Griffin 58 President, Ryder International Operatit

Vicki A. O’ Meara 49 President, U.S. Supply Chain Solutic

Thomas S. Reneh: 44 Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing, Bl€et Management Solutio
Robert E. Sanche 41 Executive Vice President of Operations, U.S. FMdahagement Solutior
Anthony G. Tegnelii 61 President, U.S. Fleet Management Soluti

Gregory T. Swienton has been Chairman sinag 2002 and Chief Executive Officer since Noverm@00. He also served as President from
June 1999 to June 2005. Before joining Ryder, MieBton was Senior Vice President of Growth Inities of Burlington Northern Santa Fe
Corporation (BNSF) and before that Mr. Swienton B&SF’s Senior Vice President, Coal and Agriculti@ammodities Business Unit.

Mark T. Jamieson has been Executive Viceifeas and Chief Financial Officer since March 20B6om April 2005 to February 2006,
Mr. Jamieson was Executive Vice President and GFiredncial Officer of Sammons Enterprises, IncoPto Sammons, Mr. Jamieson spent
29 years in General Electric Company’s (GE) finaoganization holding various positions includirgg\sng as the Chief Financial Officer of GE
Industrial Systems from 1998 to 2004. Mr. Jamidsoefly served as Chief Executive Officer of Eléctinsurance Company, a staatbne unit o
GE before joining Sammons in 2005.

Robert D. Fatovic has served as Executive Wiesident, General Counsel and Corporate Secsetere May 2004. He previously served as
Senior Vice President, U.S. Supply Chain Operatibtigh-Tech and Consumer Industries from Decembé22o May 2004. Mr. Fatovic joined
Ryder’'s Law department in 1994 as Assistant Divistounsel and has held various positions withinLise department including Vice President
and Deputy General Counsel.

Art A. Garcia has served as Senior Vice iergi and Controller since October 2005. Previoudly,Garcia served as Vice President and
Controller from February 2002 to September 2008, @roup Director, Accounting Services, from Septen®000 to February 2002 and from
April 2000 to June 2000. Mr. Garcia was Chief FigciahOfficer of Blue Dot Services, Inc., a natiopabvider of heating and air conditioning
services, from June 2000 to September 2000. Mrci&aerved as Director, Corporate Accounting, fgd& from April 1998 to April 2000.
Mr. Garcia joined Ryder in December 1997 as SeMianager, Corporate Accounting.

Gregory F. Greene has served as Executive Riesident since December 2006 and as Chief HiRaaources Officer since February 2006.
Previously, Mr. Greene served as Senior Vice PesgjdStrategic Planning and Development, from A20i03 to February 2006, and served as
Senior Vice President,
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Global Talent Management, from March 2002 to ApID3. Mr. Greene joined Ryder in August 1993 as &fgn of Executive and International
Compensation and has since held various positms: to joining Ryder, Mr. Greene served as Divecf Human Resources for Sunglass Hut,
Inc.

Bobby J. Griffin has been President, Rydéerimational Operations since July 2005. Previoudly,Griffin served as Executive Vice
President, International Operations from Novemi8#22to July 2005, and as Executive Vice Presidelabal Supply Chain Operations from
March 2001 to October 2002. Prior to this appointmbir. Griffin was Senior Vice President, Field Magement West from January 2000 to
March 2001. Mr. Griffin was Vice President, Opevat of Ryder Transportation Services from 1997 ¢égddnber 1999. Mr. Griffin also served
Ryder as Vice President and General Manager of MBBEagement and Service Company, Inc. and of Mankggistics Systems, Inc. which
were operating units of the former Ryder PublicriBgortation Services. He held those positions fi@®3 to 1997. Mr. Griffin was Executive
Vice President, Western Operations of Ryder/ ATdafr1987 to 1993. He joined Ryder as Executive Vnesident, Consulting of ATE in 1986
after Ryder acquired ATE Management and Service fizmy. Mr. Griffin will be retiring from Ryder in thfirst quarter of 2007.

Vicki A. O’'Meara has been President of U.8pfly Chain Solutions since October 2005. She presly served as Executive Vice President
and Chief of Corporate Operations from May 200&éptember 2005. Prior to that, Ms. O’'Meara sengeHxecutive Vice President and General
Counsel from June 1997 and as Corporate SecrataryFebruary 1998. Prior to joining Ryder, Ms. O'éa was a partner with the Chicago
office of the law firm Jones Day. Previously, skedha variety of positions with the federal goveamnincluding service as Acting Assistant
Attorney General for the Environmental and Natieabkources Division of the Department of Justicggude General Counsel of the
Environmental Protection Agency and in the Offié&\thite House Counsel.

Thomas S. Renehan has served as ExecutieePresident, Sales and Marketing, U.S. Fleet Managé Solutions, since October 2005. He
previously served as Senior Vice President, SalddMarketing from July 2005 to September 2005, es@ Vice President, Asset Management,
Sales and Marketing from March 2004 to July 20@5Sanior Vice President, Asset Management from Beee 2002 to March 2004 and as Vice
President, Asset Management from June 2001 to DieeeB®02. Prior to heading Asset Management, MneRan served as Vice President, F
Management Solutions in the Southwest Region franudry 2000 to June 2001. Mr. Renehan joined Riyd@ctober 1985 and has held various
positions with Ryder since that time.

Robert E. Sanchez has served as Executive Rfiesident of Operations, U.S. Fleet ManagemetiSos, since October 2005. He previously
served as Senior Vice President and Chief Informna@fficer from January 2003 to September 2005,an8enior Vice President of Global
Transportation Management from March 2002 to JanR@03. Previously, he also served as Chief InfoioneOfficer from June 2001 to March
2002. Mr. Sanchez joined Ryder in 1993 as a Saisiness System Designer.

Anthony G. Tegnelia has served as Presidest, Fleet Management Solutions since October 2889 reviously served as Executive Vice
President, U.S. Supply Chain Solutions from Decam20€2 to September 2005. Prior to that, he wasoB#&fice President, Global Business
Value Management. Mr. Tegnelia joined Ryder in 18@@d has held a variety of other positions with &yidcluding Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Ryder’s Integrated Lotiis business segment and Senior Vice Presidezit] Finance.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further discussion concerning our businese the information included in Items 7 and 8isf report. Industry and market data used
throughout Item 1 was obtained through a compitatibsurveys and studies conducted by industrycasjiconsultants and analysts.

We make available free of charge throughitivestor Relations page on our website at www.ryaen our Annual Report on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current r&pon
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Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as as reasonably practicable after such matereeigronically filed with or furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidsj Principles of Business Conduct (including Eiaence Code of Conduct), and Board
committee charters are posted on the Corporate tGanee page of our website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the factors discussed elsewliethis report, the following are some of the artant factors that could affect our business.

Our operating and financial results may fluctuate die to a number of factors, many of which are beyondur control.
Our annual and quarterly operating and firelmesults are affected by a number of econoneigulatory and competitive factors, including:
« changes in current financial, tax or regulatoryuiegments that could negatively impact the leasiagket;
» changes in market conditions affecting the comnaéreintal market or the sale of used vehic
e ourinability to obtain expected customer retenterels or sales growth targe
* unanticipated interest rate and currency exchaaigefluctuations
» labor strikes or work stoppages affecting us oraustomers
» sudden changes in fuel prices and fuel shortz
» competition from vehicle manufacturers in our Ubgisiness operations; a
» changes in accounting rules, estimates, assummimhgccruals
Our failure to successfully implement growth initigives in our FMS business segment may negatively pact our ability to increase our
leasing revenues.

We have undertaken certain initiatives in BMS operations with the intention of increasingaic revenue growth in our contractual
business, better servicing our customers’ businessls, improving asset utilization and realizingt@avings in the future. The initiatives include
changing the structure of our operational and gai@®s, realigning our business processes andangiaingg our management. There is no
assurance that these initiatives will be successfthat we will not have to undertake additiomadiatives in order to achieve our growth targets.

We bear the residual risk on the value of our vehies.

We generally bear the residual risk on tHee/af our vehicles. Therefore, if the market feed vehicles declines, or our vehicles are not
properly maintained, we may experience lower gainsuffer losses on the sale of the vehicles. Caaigresidual values also impact the overall
competitiveness of our full service lease proding,las estimated sales proceeds are a criticgbaonemt of the overall price of the product.
Additionally, sudden changes in supply and demagéther with other market factors beyond our cdnmoy from year to year and from vehicle
to vehicle, making it difficult to accurately pretlresidual values used in calculating our deptigisexpense. Although we have developed
disciplines related to the management and maintenahour vehicles that are designed to preversetihesses, there is no assurance that these
practices will sufficiently reduce the residuakri§or a detailed discussion on our accountingcpesiand assumptions relating to depreciation and
residual values, please see the section titledit@lAccounting Estimates — Depreciation and Reald/alue Guarantees” in Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®bults of Operations.

12




Table of Contents

Our profitability could be adversely impacted by ou inability to maintain appropriate asset utilizati on rates through our asset
management initiatives.

We typically do not purchase vehicles for fulk service lease product line until we have aeaited contract with a customer. In our
commercial rental product line, however, we dopurichase vehicles against specific customer castrRather, we purchase vehicles and
optimize the size and mix of the commercial refieat based upon our expectations of overall madketand for short- and long-term rentals. As
a result, we bear the risk for ensuring that weehthve proper vehicles in the right condition anchton to effectively capitalize on this market
demand to drive the highest levels of utilizationl #aevenue per unit. We employ a sales force aedatipns team on a full-time basis to manage
and optimize this product line; however, their ef§anay not be sufficient to overcome a significelmhnge in market demand in the rental
business or used vehicle market.

We derive a significant portion of our SCS revenuérom a small number of customers, many of which arén the automotive industry.

During 2006, sales to our top ten SCS custeraecounted for 69% of our SCS total revenue &3d 6f our SCS operating revenue (revenue
less subcontracted transportation), with GM acdagrfor 40% of our SCS total revenue and 18% of 806 operating revenue. The loss of any
of these customers or a significant reduction englrvices provided to any of these customersicpatly GM, could impact our domestic and
international operations and adversely affect db® $inancial results. While we continue to focus efiorts on diversifying our customer base
both outside and within the automotive industry,may not be successful in doing so in the shomter

In addition, the revenue derived from our Sf0Stomers is dependent in large part on theiryrtion and sales volumes, which are impacted
by economic conditions and customer spending aefém@nces. Production volumes in the automotivashg are sensitive to consumer demand
as well as employee and labor relations. Declinesales volumes could result in production cutbasid unplanned plant shutdowns. To the
extent that the market share of any of our lar§&$ customers deteriorates, or their sales or ptimfuvolumes otherwise decline, our revenues
and profitability could be adversely affected.

We are also subject to credit risk associatithl the concentration of our accounts receivdtden our SCS customers. Certain of our
automotive customers have or are currently facimgricial difficulties. If one or more of these ausiers were to become bankrupt, insolvent or
otherwise were unable to pay for the services piexyiby us, our operating results and financial @é@rcould be adversely affected.

Our profitability could be negatively impacted by downward pricing pressure from certain of our SCS cstomers.

Given the nature of our services and the a@itige environment in which we operate, our latgg8S customers exert downward pricing
pressure and often require modifications to ounddiad commercial terms. While we believe our ongaiast reduction initiatives have helped
mitigate the effect of price reduction pressuresifliour SCS customers, there is no assurance thaflilee able to maintain or improve our
current levels of profitability.

Substantially all of our SCS services arevjgled under contractual arrangements with our ensts. Under most of these contracts, all or a
portion of our pricing is based on certain assuom#iregarding the scope of services, productionmek, operational efficiencies, the mix of fi:
versus variable costs, productivity and other fesctt, as a result of subsequent changes in astomers’ business needs or operations or market
forces that are outside of our control, these apsioms prove to be invalid, we could have lower gias than anticipated. Although certain of our
contracts provide for renegotiation upon a matetienge, there is no assurance that we will beesisfal in obtaining the necessary price
adjustments.
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We may face difficulties in attracting and retaining drivers.

We hire drivers primarily for our DCC and SB6$siness segments. There is significant competfto qualified drivers in the transportation
industry. As a result of driver shortages, we cdwddequired to increase driver compensationrleks sit idle, utilize lower quality drivers or
face difficulty meeting customer demands, all ofathcould adversely affect our growth and profilipi

In order to serve our customers globally, we mustantinue to expand our international operations, whth may result in additional risks.

We are committed to meeting our customglabal needs by continuing to grow our internatiaygerations in Canada, Europe, Asia and L
America. Our international operations, particulanyatin America and Asia, are subject to advelseelopments in foreign political,
governmental and economic conditions, varying cditipe factors, foreign currency fluctuations, patial difficulties in identifying and retaining
qualified managers and personnel, potential adwasseonsequences and difficulties in protectirtgliactual property rights. These factors may
have a significant effect on our ability to profita grow our international operations or retainstixig customers that require global expansion. In
addition, entry into new international markets riegiconsiderable management time as well as gaexpenses for market development, staffing

and establishing office facilities before any sfigint revenue is generated. As a result, init@@rmtions in a new market may operate at low
margins or may be unprofitable.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and outbusiness may suffer if we are unable to adequatefddress potential downward
pricing pressures and other competitive factors.
Numerous competitive factors could impair ability to maintain our current profitability. The factors include the following:
* we compete with many other transportation and tagiservice providers, some of which have greedgital resources than we ¢
» some of our competitors periodically reduce theicgs to gain business, which may limit our abitibymaintain or increase price

» because cost of capital is a significant competifactor, any increase in either our debt or equist of capital as a result of reduction
our debt rating or stock price volatility could leaa significant impact on our competitive positi

« advances in technology require increased invests to remain competitive, and our customers moaye willing to accept higher prices
to cover the cost of these investments;

« competition from logistics and freight brokeeagpmpanies that do not operate trucking fleets augrsely affect our customer
relationships and price

We operate in a highly regulated industry, and cost of compliance with, or liability for violation of, existing or future regulations could
significantly increase our costs of doing business.

Our business is subject to regulation byassifederal, state and foreign governmental egtipecifically, the U.S. Department of
Transportation and various state and federal agemiercise broad powers over our motor carrieradjpas, safety, and the generation, handling,
storage, treatment and disposal of waste matevdsmay also become subject to new or more reiggicegulations imposed by the Department
of Transportation, the Occupational Safety and theatiministration, the Environmental Protection Ageg or other authorities, relating to the

hours of service that our drivers may provide ig ane-time period, security and other matters. d@npe with these regulations could
substantially impair equipment productivity andrigeese our costs.

New regulations governing exhaust emissiandccadversely impact our business. The Environaldhtotection Agency has issued
regulations that require progressive reductioreximaust emissions from
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certain diesel engines through 2007. Emissionglsials require reductions in the sulfur contentie$el fuel beginning in June 2006 and the
introduction of emissions after-treatment devicesiewly-manufactured engines and vehicles utilizZngines built after January 1, 2007. The
level and timing of market acceptance of new enggabinology could impact timing of sales in 20Gvatidition, each of these requirements c
result in higher prices for tractors, diesel engiaad fuel, which are passed on to our customensell as higher maintenance costs and
uncertainty as to reliability of the new engindspawhich could, over time, increase our costd adversely affect our business and results of
operations. The new technology may also impactebkilual values of these vehicles when sold irfuhee.

Volatility in assumptions related to our pension pAns may increase our pension expense and adversihpact current funding levels.

We sponsor a number of defined benefit pfanemployees in the U.S., U.K. and other foreigcaltions. We are required to make cash
contributions to our defined benefit plans to tkeeat necessary to comply with minimum funding riegmments imposed by employee benefit and
tax laws. Our major defined benefit plans are fuhdeth trust assets invested in a diversified fodid. The projected benefit obligation and as:
of our global defined benefit plans as of Decen81r2006 was $1.53 billion and $1.42 billion, regpely. The difference between plan
obligations and assets, or the funded status gbltines, is a significant factor in determining pensexpense and the ongoing funding requiren
of those plans. Changes in interest rates, mortates, investments returns and the market vdlpéaa assets can affect the funded status of our
pension plans and cause volatility in the pensigrease and future funding requirements. For a lgetaiscussion on our accounting policies and
assumptions relating to our pension plans, pleasdh® section titled “Critical Accounting Estimate- Pension Plans” in Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®bsults of Operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our properties consist primarily of vehiclaimenance and repair facilities, warehouses dneratal estate and improvements.

We maintain 790 FMS locations in the U.SefwRico and Canada; we own 459 of these fadlgied lease the remaining facilities. Our
FMS locations generally include a repair shop,akobunter, fuel service island and administratffeces.

Additionally we manage 197 on-site mainterafacilities, located at customer locations.

We also maintain 161 locations in the U.Sl @anada in connection with our domestic SCS an@ DBasinesses. Almost all of our SCS
locations are leased and generally include a warghand administrative offices.

We maintain 85 international locations (lacas outside of the U.S. and Canada) for our irstiéonal businesses. These locations are in the
U.K., Ireland, Germany, Mexico, Argentina, Brafihile, China, Thailand and Singapore. The majaftthese locations are leased and generally
include a repair shop, warehouse and administrafifiees.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Our subsidiaries are involved in various g lawsuits and administrative actions arisinthacourse of our businesses. Some involve cl
for substantial amounts of money and (or) claimpfmitive damages. While any proceeding or lifiggathas an element of uncertainty,
management believes
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that the disposition of such matters, in the agaesgwill not have a material impact on our cordatied financial condition, results of operation

liquidity.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a votmuofsecurity holders during the quarter ended Déezr@1, 2006.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Ryder Common Stock Prices

2006

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

2005

First quarte
Second quarte
Third quartel
Fourth quarte

Stock Price Dividends pel
Common
High Low Share
$46.0< 39.61 0.1¢
59.9: 44.47 0.1¢
58.31 47.3¢ 0.1¢
55.3¢ 50.3¢ 0.1¢
$47.8: 41.2¢ 0.1¢
42.37 34.52 0.1¢
39.9¢ 32.0C 0.1¢€
44.7¢ 32.21 0.1€

Our common shares are listed on the New Yatdck Exchange under the trading symbol “R.” Atuky 31, 2007, there were 10,610
common stockholders of record and our stock pricéhe New York Stock Exchange was $54.54.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performanfcRyder’s common stock with the performance of $t@endard & Poor’s 500 Composite Stock
Index and the Dow Jones Transportation Index fioreayear period by measuring the changes in comstock prices from December 31, 200:
December 31, 2006.
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|+ Ryder System Inc. —— S&P 500 Index —&— Dow Jones Transportation 20 Index

The stock performance graph assumes for cosguethat the value of the Company’s Common Stoutk of each index was $100 on
December 31, 2001 and that all dividends were ested. Past performance is not necessarily anatadiof future results.
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Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information witbspect to purchases we made of our common stoikgdthe three months ended Decembe
2006:

Total Number of

Shares Purchased a Maximum Number
Total Number Average Price Part of Publicly of Shares That May
of Shares Paid per Announced Yet Be Purchasec
Purchased®).(2) Share Program (1).2) Under the Program ()
October 1 through
October 31, 2006 83,46¢ $ 54.3( 77,44: 422,17
November 1 through
November 30, 2006 88,13: 52.92 87,25 334,91t
December 1 through
December 31, 2006 227,15! 52.1( 166,20¢ 168,71t
Total 398,75. $ 52.7¢ 330,89¢

1) In May 2006, our Board of Directors authorized a-year share repurchase program intended to mitigheedilutive impact of shares issued under ouiows employee
stock option and stock purchase plans. Under thg R06 program, management is authorized to repasetshares of common stock in an amount not tedxbe number
of shares issued to employees under the varioutoge®stock option and employee stock purchaseslience March 1, 2006. The May 2006 program limggregate share
repurchases to no more than 2 million shares ofdRgdmmon stock. Share repurchases will be madedieally in open-market transactions, and are sabjto market
conditions, legal requirements and other factoranslgement was granted the authority to establisiading plan for the Company under Rule 10b5-thefSecurities
Exchange Act of 1934 as part of the May 2006 prognahich allowed for share repurchases during R’s quarterly blackout periods as set forth in thading plan. Since
May 2006, we have repurchased in c-market transactions a total of 1,831,285 sharesamimon stock at December 31, 2C

2) During the three months ended December 31, 200@urehased an aggregate of 330,899 shares of ommeon stock as part of our share repurchase progaachan
aggregate of 67,853 shares of our common stockipl@yee-related transactions outside of the shapairchase program. Employee-related transactiong imelude:
(i) shares of common stock delivered as paymerthéoexercise price of options exercised or tos$athe option holders’ tax withholding liabilitgsociated with our share-
based compensation programs and (ii) open-markethases by the trustee of Ryder’s deferred comiemsplan relating to investments by employeesiinammmon stock,
one of the investment options available under tha.}

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In May 2006, we discovered that we inadvetyeexceeded the number of shares of common stgiktered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission for offer and sale to participants uraler401(k) plan. We did not receive any proceedshfthe sale of these securities because
purchases were made on the open-market. We estihatapproximately 243,700 shares were issuethtogarticipants under our 401(k) plan
during the twelve months ended April 30, 2006. Bgrihat time, our common stock price ranged frdowaof $32.56 per share to a high of
$51.65 per share.

In May 2006, we filed a registration statetn@m Form S-8 to register future sales of comntonlsto plan participants pursuant to our 401(k)
plan. Additionally, we made a registered rescissiffer to eligible plan participants whereby wees#d to repurchase any shares issued to them
during the twelve months prior to the filing of tregistered rescission offer at the price the pigdint paid for such shares. We also offered to
reimburse those participants who bought and sadestfor a loss during those twelve months forafme@unt of the loss realized upon such sale.
Based on our stock price on the day the rescissifen closed, we did not repurchase any sharesigfiroéhe rescission offer. We did reimburse a
total of $11,888 to eligible plan participants wémmplied with the terms of the rescission offer.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equit Compensation Plans

The following table includes information &sDecember 31, 2006 about certain plans which gie¥or the issuance of common stock in

connection with the exercise of stock options atftioshare-based awards.

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Future Issuance
Securities to be Under Equity
Issued upon Weighted-Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans Excluding
Outstanding Outstanding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Reflected in
Plans and Rights and Rights Column (a)
. : . (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securit
holders:
Broad based employee stock option plar 3,559,89 $35.2( 3,738,36
Employee Stock Purchase Pla — — 891,63:
Non-Employee Director's Stock Plans 186,80t 20.8¢ 41,92]
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders — — —
Total 3,746,70. $34.4¢ 4,671,921
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected consolidated finan@dbrmation should be read in conjunction withniie 7 and 8 of this report.

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amot

Operating Data:

Revenue $6,306,64. 5,740,84 5,150,27: 4,802,299 4,776,26!
Earnings from continuing operatio(®) $ 248,95¢ 227,62¢ 215,60¢ 135,55¢ 112,56
Net earning«1).( $ 248,95¢ 226,92¢ 215,60¢ 131,43t 93,66¢
Per Common Share Data:
Earnings from continuing operatio— Basic(®) $ 4.0¢ 3.57 3.3t 2.1t 1.82
Net earning— Basic(1).( $ 4.0¢ 3.5€ 3.3t 2.0¢ 1.52
Earnings from continuing operatio— Diluted () $ 4.04 3.52 3.2¢ 2.1z 1.8C
Net earning«— Diluted (1).(2) $ 4.04 3.52 3.2¢ 2.0¢€ 1.5C
Cash dividend $ 0.7z 0.64 0.6C 0.6 0.6C
Book value® $ 28.3¢ 24.6¢ 23.4¢ 20.8¢ 17.7¢
Financial Data:
Total asset $6,828,92. 6,033,26: 5,683,16: 5,323,26! 4,789,309
Average asse(® $6,426,541 5,922,75! 5,496,42! 4,989,56! 4,866,51!
Return on average assets(® 3.9 3.8 3.9 2.€ 1.9
Average asset turnover(94) 98.1 96.€ 93.7 96.2 98.1
Total debt $2,816,94. 2,185,36! 1,783,211 1,815,901 1,551,46!
Long-term debt $2,484,19: 1,915,92 1,393,661 1,449,48 1,389,09!
Shareholde’ equity® $1,720,77! 1,527,45I 1,510,18:i 1,344,38! 1,108,21!
Debt to equity(%®) 164 143 11€ 13t 14C
Average shareholde’ equity ®).(4) $1,610,32i 1,554,711 1,412,03 1,193,85! 1,246,06!
Return on average sharehol¢ equity(%)®).# 15.5 14.¢ 15.2 11.C 7.5
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 853,58’ 779,06: 866,84 803,61 616,68:
Capital expenditures pa $1,695,06- 1,399,37! 1,092,15! 734,50¢ 582,22¢
Other Data:
Average common shar— Basic (in thousands 60,87: 63,75¢ 64,28( 62,95¢ 61,57
Average common shar— Diluted (in thousands 61,57¢ 64,56( 65,67 63,87: 62,581
Number of vehicle— Owned and lease 165,90( 162,30( 164,40( 160,20( 161,40(
Number of employee 28,60( 27,80( 26,30( 26,70( 27,80(

1) Results included restructuring and other chargesdwveries), net of $2 million af-tax, or $0.04 per diluted common share in 2006(iHlon after-tax, or $0.03 per diluted common
share in 2005, $(11) million after-tax, or $(0.1J9®r diluted common share in 2004, and $2 millialerafax, or $0.04 per diluted common share in 20@2addition, results included an
income tax benefit of $7 million, or $0.11 per thld common share in 2006, associated with the timuof deferred income taxes due to enacted chaimg€exas and Canadian tax la
an income tax benefit of $8 million, or $0.12 péutéd common share in 2005 related to a chang®liio income tax law and a net income tax benefihillion, or $0.14 per diluted
common share in 2004, associated with developniengrious tax matters. Results in 2006 includedhtiar-tax charge of $4 million, or $0.06 per didtcommon share, related to the
accounting for pension prior service costs. SeeeN@&t"“ Employee Benefit Plar” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtséditional discussior

2) Net earnings for 2005 included (i) income from distinued operations associated with the reductibmsurance reserves related to discontinued openatresulting in an afti-tax
benefit of $2 million, or $0.03 per diluted comnsdrare, and (i) the cumulative effect of a changadcounting principle for costs associated wité thture removal of underground
storage tanks resulting in an after-tax charge ®fiillion, or $0.04 per diluted common share. Natnéngs for 2003 included the cumulative effeca ehange in accounting principle for
(i) variable interest entities resulting in an afax charge of $3 million, or $0.05 per dilutednomon share, and (ii) costs associated with evematakment of long-lived assets related
primarily to components of revenue earning equipimesulting in an afte-tax charge of $1 million, or $0.02 per diluted amon share. Net earnings for 2002 included the cative
effect of a change in accounting principle for gadtiresulting in an afte-tax charge of $19 million, or $0.30 per diluted aqoon share

3) Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2006, 2@084, 2003 and 2002 reflected after-tax equigrghks of $201 million, $221 million, $189 millid®1.87 million and $229 million,
respectively, related to the adoption of SFAS N@&, IEmployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Piemsand Other Postretirement Plans,” in 2006 andaeding of the additional
minimum pension liability

4) Amounts were computed using quarterly informat
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and s of Financial Condition and Results of Opemasi (MD&A) should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial stateseand related notes contained in Item 8 of #y®rt on Form 10-K. The following MD&A
describes the principal factors affecting resultegerations, financial resources, liquidity, catiual cash obligations, and critical accounting
estimates.

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder), is a global leadd@ransportation and supply chain managementtisols. Our business is divided into three
business segments, which operate in extremely ctitimpanarkets. Our customers select us based aremws factors including service quality,
price, technology and service offerings. As anraliive to using our services, customers may chtmpeovide these services for themselves, or
may choose to obtain similar or alternative servitem other third-party vendors. Our customer haskides enterprises operating in a variety of
industries including automotive, electronics, highh, telecommunications, industrial, consumer gopdper and paper products, office
equipment, food and beverage, general retail imgissand governments.

TheFleet Management Solutions (FM8)siness segment is our largest segment providihgdrvice leasing, contract maintenance, contract
related maintenance, and commercial rental of sulctors and trailers to customers principallyhie U.S., Canada and the U.K. FMS revenue
and assets in 2006 were $3.71 billion and $6.1®bjlrespectively, representing 59% of our cordatiéd revenue and 90% of consolidated assets

TheSupply Chain Solutions (SCI9)siness segment provides comprehensive supplg cbasulting including distribution and transpadrat
services throughout North America and in Latin Aio&r Europe and Asia. SCS revenue in 2006 was 3liéh, representing 32% of our
consolidated revenue.

TheDedicated Contract Carriage (DC@usiness segment provides vehicles and driverara®pa dedicated transportation solution in the
U.S. DCC revenue in 2006 was $569 million, repréagro% of our consolidated revenue.

2006 was a year of significant accomplishradot Ryder, as we realized record earnings fothive consecutive year. Continued
development of our sales and operating capabiliti€ach of our business segments, continued fordgancial discipline and cost management
while investing for strategic growth, provided sopgfor earnings expansion. Total revenue was $Bilidn, up 10% from $5.74 billion in 2005,
while our operating revenue (total revenue lestdnd subcontracted transportation) measure w&24p million or 6%. All business segments
contributed to the total revenue growth. The gromtRMS revenue was driven in part by increasedi$aevices revenue, primarily as a result of
higher average fuel prices, as well as higherdetiice lease revenue resulting from higher leatesrand business expansion. The growth in SCS
revenue was driven primarily by higher volumes aed/ and expanded business in all industry groups.gfowth in DCC revenue was driven by
expanded and new business as well as pricing isese@ssociated with higher average fuel costs. @osgns for 2006 were also impacted by
favorable movements in foreign currency exchanggsraf 0.8% related to our international operations

Earnings from continuing operations grew 2d$ million from $228 million in 2005 and earningsr diluted common share from continuing
operations increased to $4.04 from $3.53 in 200&8uted in earnings from continuing operationsca#ain items we do not consider indicative
of our ongoing
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

operations. The following discussion provides amary of the 2006 and 2005 special items which @eudsed in more detail throughout our
MD&A:

2006

« Earnings for 2006 included an income tax berdf$7 million, or $0.11 per diluted common shassociated with the reduction of
deferred income taxes due to enacted changes msTand Canadian tax lav

» Earnings for 2006 included a one-time, non-gastision accounting charge of $4 million after-@x$0.06 per diluted common share, to
properly account for prior service costs relatecetoree pension benefit improvements made in 28862000. See Note 23, “Employee
Benefit Plan<” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemestsdiditional information

2005

» Earnings for 2005 included an income tax beneftt®million, or $0.12 per diluted common shareated to a change in Ohio income
law.

* Net earnings for 2005 included (i) income from distinued operations associated with the reductfansurance reserves related
discontinued operations resulting in an after-tardfit of $2 million, or $0.03 per diluted commdrase, and (ii) the cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle for costs assediatith the future removal of underground storages resulting in an after-tax charge
of $2 million, or $0.04 per diluted common she

Excluding the special items listed above, pamable earnings from continuing operations wers$aillion, up 12% from $220 million in
2005. Comparable earnings from continuing operatjmer diluted common share were $3.99, up 17% $8m1 in 2005. All business segments
contributed to the strong results. The earningsvtiravas driven primarily by contractual revenuewgtito from each of our business segments,
which more than offset the impact of a soft comnamental market in FMS for the second half of @0The results of ongoing cost management
initiatives across all business segments and ircemntral support functions also contributed toghenings growth in 2006. Earnings per common
share growth during 2006 exceeded the earningsthrover the prior periods because the average nuaflshares outstanding has decreased
during the past year reflecting the impact of shapirchase programs.

With the continuing improvements in earningser the past three years, we were able to repsechaotal of 3.4 million shares of common
stock in 2006 for $159 million. We also increased annual dividend by 13% to $0.72 per share ofrmomstock. In addition, during 2006 we
contributed $130 million to our global pension [gan

Capital expenditures increased to $1.76dniltompared with $1.41 billion in 2005. The inceeascapital expenditures reflects higher lease
vehicle spending for replacements and expansi@ustbmer fleets. The significant amount of camfsnding to support contractual revenue
growth, as well as pension contributions and sheparchases contributed to the increase in ourfdeint $2.19 billion at December 31, 2005 to
$2.82 billion at December 31, 2006. Our debt toitgqatio also increased to 164% from 143% in 20D&al obligations (including off-balance
sheet debt) to equity ratio increased to 168% ft&h% in 2005.

2007 Outlook

Our outlook for 2007 is positive, despite tieertainty of our FMS commercial rental busin&¥e. expect stable economic conditions in 2
Our efforts will focus on the implementation of axantractual revenue growth strategies acrossualhless segments while retaining financial
discipline. Total revenue is targeted to grow by 8%8% while operating revenue is expected to imseeby 4% to 5%. We will also
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

continue to focus on cost management and procge®u@ment actions that complement our growth ggiaseand establish a foundation for
sustainable long term profitable growth. As a resué expect earnings from continuing operationsdileated common share in 2007 to grow by
8% to 10% compared to 2006 comparable earnings éamtinuing operations per diluted common share.

ITEMS AFFECTING COMPARABILITY BETWEEN PERIODS

Accounting Changes

Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted Rir\ccounting Standards Board (FASB) Statemerkin&ncial Accounting Standard
(SFAS) No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for DefinB&nefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plansg’ ddoption of SFAS No. 158 required
us to record the underfunded status of our defbeekfit pension and other postretirement planslabiity and record the unrecognized net
actuarial loss, unrecognized prior service costum@cognized transition asset of our defined biepefsion and other postretirement plans as a
component of other comprehensive income. The aoioti this standard reduced total assets by $18®mitotal liabilities by $4 million and
shareholders’ equity by $151 million, with no imp&e our consolidated statements of earnings asH ftaws.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAST2ER, “Share-Based Payments.” Under SFAS No. 128Rpensation expense was
recognized beginning January 1, 2006 and includgddmpensation expense for all share-based enmptmmpensation arrangements granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 20@8ed on the grant date fair value estimateddordance with the original provisions of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compeinsat and (b) compensation expense for all shaseti@mployee compensation
arrangements granted subsequent to January 1, B&§&€d on the grant date fair value estimateddordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
123R. Results for prior periods have not been tegtas a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R on Jgnia2006, earnings before income taxes
for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $10ami{57 million after-tax) lower, than if we had ¢mued to account for share-based
compensation under Accounting Principles Board @pifAPB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued tmployees.” Both basic and diluted
earnings per common share for the year ended Deare®ibh 2006 were $0.12 lower than if we had comtihio account for share-based
compensation under APB No. 25. At December 31, 20062cognized compensation expense from stockmptind nonvested shares totaled
$20 million, which is expected to be recognizedrdhe next 3.5 years.

Effective December 31, 2005, we adopted FA8Brpretation No. (FIN) 47, “Accounting for Conidibal Asset Retirement Obligations.” The
adoption of FIN 47 required us to record an asstatement obligation related to the future remaxfalinderground storage tanks located at our
FMS maintenance facilities. We recognized a cunudatffect charge upon adoption of $2 million onadirer-tax basis, or $0.04 per diluted
common share. The adoption of this standard dichaeé a significant impact on our operating results

Refer to Note 2, “Accounting Changes,” in thetes to Consolidated Financial Statements foitia@l discussion surrounding the adoption
of these accounting standards.

FMS Acquisition

On March 1, 2004, we completed an asset pgechgreement with Ruan Leasing Company (Ruan) wtdeh we acquired Ruan’s fleet of
approximately 6,400 vehicles, 37 of its 111 senmations and more than 500 customers. Ryderaagaired full service contract maintenance
agreements covering approximately 1,700 vehicles. ffetwork operates under Ryder’'s name and hasedlas to leverage our existing
U.S. infrastructure in key markets while adding riefrastructure to strengthen our presence in tathareas of the Midwest, Southeast, Mid-
Atlantic and Southwest. The results of this acquisihave been included in the consolidated resil®yder since the date of acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Change

Years ended December 31
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

(Dollars in thousand:
except per share amoun

Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $392,97: 357,08¢ 331,12; 1C% 8
Provision for income taxe® 144,01: 129,46( 115,51¢ 11 12
Earnings from continuing operatio().(2) $248,95¢ 227,62¢ 215,60¢ 9% 6
Per diluted common sha®.(2) $  4.04 3.5 3.2¢€ 14% 8
Net earning«1).(2.(3) $248,95¢ 226,92¢ 215,60¢ 1C% 5
Per diluted common sha®-(2).(3) $  4.04 3.5z 3.2¢€ 15% 7
Weightec-average shares outstand— Diluted 61,57¢ 64,56( 65,67 (5)% 2

1) 2006 included an income tax benefit of $7 onillior $0.11 per diluted common share, associatéldl te reduction of deferred income taxes duehtainges in Texas and
Canadian tax laws. 2005 included an income tax fieok$8 million, or $0.12 per diluted common shaassociated with the reduction of deferred inctemes due to the
phast-out of income taxes for the State of Ohio. 20@uited an income tax benefit of $9 million, or BOpkr diluted common share, associated with devedoyts in various
tax matters. See Note 1" Income Taxe” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtséditional discussior

) Results included restructuring and other chargesveries), net of $2 million af-tax, or $0.04 per diluted common share, in 20@6ndllion after-tax, or $0.03 per diluted
common share, in 2005 and $(11) million after-@x$(0.17) per diluted common share, in 2004. Sete 1§, “Restructuring and Other Charges (Recovgrias the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionaladission. 2006 also included an after-tax charg®4ofnillion, or $0.06 per diluted common shareatetl to the accounting
for prior service costs related to retiree pensbemefit improvements in 1995 and 2000. See Not“Employee Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to ConsolethFinancial
Statements for additional discussit

?3) Net earnings for 2005 included (i) income from distinued operations associated with the reductibimsurance reserves related to discontinued openatresulting in ar
after-tax benefit of $2 million, or $0.03 per didgtcommon share, and (ii) the cumulative effeet@fiange in accounting principle for costs assaawith the future removal
of underground storage tanks resulting in an «tax charge of $2 million, or $0.04 per diluted coomshare

Earnings from continuing operations beforeme taxes increased to $393 million in 2006 congbari¢h $357 million in 2005, reflecting
better operating performance in all business setgn&he 2006 operating performance improvementdri@en by contractual revenue growth in
each of our business segments, which more thaatdffe impact of a soft commercial rental markebanFMS business segment results in the
second half of 2006. See “Operating Results by mss Segment” for a further discussion of operatsglts. Earnings from continuing
operations increased to $249 million in 2006 coragawith $228 million in 2005. Earnings from contiimg operations for 2006 included an
income tax benefit of $7 million, or $0.1Er diluted common share, associated with the temuof deferred income taxes due to enacted che
in Texas and Canadian tax laws and a one-time cash-after-tax charge of $4 million, or $0.06 p&rtdd common share, recorded to properly
account for prior service costs related to retgpersion benefit improvements made in 1995 and 2Bamings from continuing operations for
2005 included a state income tax benefit of $8iami|lor $0.12 per diluted common share, associat#fdthe reduction of deferred income taxes
due to the expected phase-out of income taxehéoBtate of Ohio. Earnings per common share grdwtimg 2006 exceeded the net earnings
growth over the prior periods because the averagerr of shares outstanding has decreased duenggst year reflecting the impact of share
repurchase programs.
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Earnings from continuing operations beforeoime taxes increased to $357 million in 2005 commbavith $331 million in 2004, reflecting
better operating performance in all business setgn&trong FMS commercial rental results, highéngan FMS used vehicle sales and
reductions in operating expenses resulting fronoorgcost reduction activities and process improgeimactions across all business segments,
were partially offset by the benefit from gainstbe 2004 sale of our headquarters complex. Earrfings continuing operations increased to
$228 million in 2005 compared with $216 million2004. Earnings from continuing operations in 2088uded an income tax benefit of
$8 million, or $0.12 per diluted common share, tedldo a change in Ohio income tax law. Earningmfcontinuing operations in 2004 benefited
from after-tax gains on the sale of our headquaidemplex of $15 million, or $0.23 per diluted cobmshare, and a net income tax benefit of
$9 million, or $0.14 per diluted common share, a&ged with the resolution of various tax matters.

Net earnings in 2005 included an after-tamdfié of $2 million, or $0.03 per diluted commoresé, related to discontinued operations and an
after-tax charge of $2 million, or $0.04 per diligommon share, for the cumulative effect of a glean accounting principle related to the
adoption of FIN 47.

Change
Years ended December
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Revenue

Fleet Management Solutio $4,096,04 3,921,19: 3,602,83! 4% 9
Supply Chain Solution 2,028,48! 1,637,822 1,354,00:. 24 21
Dedicated Contract Carria 568,84 543,26¢ 506,10( 5 7
Eliminations (386,739 (361,439 (312,669 @) (16)
Total $6,306,64. 5,740,84 5,150,27! 10% 11
Operating revenu(® $4,454,23 4,210,88: 4,041,89: 6% 4

(1)  We use operating revenue, a -GAAP financial measure, to evaluate the operatiagggmance of our businesses and as a measurde aetivity. FMS fuel servict
revenue net of related intersegment billings, wiigctirectly impacted by fluctuations in marketlfpgces, is excluded from the operating revenumgotation as fuel is
largely a pass-through to our customers for whighrealize minimal changes in profitability duringrpds of steady market fuel prices. However, pability may be
positively or negatively impacted by sudden incesas decreases in market fuel prices during atsperiod of time as customer pricing for fuel sees is established bas
on market fuel costs. Subcontracted transportateenue in our SCS and DCC business segmentslisleddrom the operating revenue computation agsotracted
transportation is largely a pass-through to our trsers and we realize minimal changes in profiigbds a result of fluctuations in subcontractedrsportation. Refer to the
section titlec* Nor-GAAP Financial Measur¢ for a reconciliation of operating revenue to totalenue

All business segments reported revenue graw906. Revenue growth for FMS was driven by highel services revenue, primarily as a
result of higher average fuel prices from incredsedi costs, and higher full service lease revarsalting from higher lease rates and new
contract sales. SCS revenue growth was due priyrtarihcreased volumes of managed subcontractedgeatation and higher volumes and new
and expanded business. DCC revenue growth wasdaganded and new business as well as pricingases associated with higher fuel costs.
Revenue comparisons were also impacted by favorablements in foreign currency exchange rateseawlet our international operations. Total
revenue included a favorable foreign currency ergleampact of 0.8% due primarily to the strengthgrof the Canadian dollar and Brazilian
real.

All business segments reported revenue graw2905. Additionally, revenue comparisons fortalsiness segments were favorably impacted
by pricing increases associated with higher fustsevhich
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increased fuel services revenue. FMS revenue saspaisitively impacted by higher rental revenueiltesy from stronger pricing and increased
contract-related maintenance revenue from the imetgation of growth initiatives. SCS revenue growts primarily related to increased
volumes of managed subcontracted transportatioaddiition, SCS and DCC revenue grew in 2005 duete and expanded business. Total
revenue included a favorable foreign currency ergkeampact of 0.9% due primarily to the strengthgrof the Canadian dollar and Brazilian
real.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning egmipamd provides fuel, maintenance and other angifiervices to our SCS and DCC
segments. Eliminations relate to inter-segmentssilat are accounted for at rates similar to tleo®euted with third parties. The increases in
eliminations in 2006 and 2005, primarily refledte fpass-through of higher average fuel costs flenFMS segment to SCS and DCC.

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Operating expense (exclusive of items shown seglgi: $2,722,59 2,572,24. 2,305,32. 6% 12
Percentage of reveni 43% 45% 45%

Operating expense grew for 2006 and 2005jpédly as a result of higher fuel costs due tdhkigaverage market prices. Fuel costs are la
a pass-through to customers for which we realizgémal changes in profitability during periods oéatly market fuel prices. The revenue growth
from each business segment, excluding fuel, alstriboited to the increases in operating expenses.

Change
Years ended December 31

2006/ 2005
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Salaries and employ-related cost $1,397,39 1,262,16! 1,233,03! 11% 2
Percentage of reveni 22% 22% 24%
Percentage of operating rever 31% 30% 31%

Salaries and employee-related costs andesland employee-related costs as a percentageeadting revenue increased in 2006 compared
with 2005 primarily as a result of added headc@untt increased outside labor costs to support thethrin our SCS and DCC business segments,
higher share-based compensation and higher emplmyresfit expenses. Average headcount increasech 2306 compared with 2005. The
number of employees at December 31, 2006 increasagproximately 28,600, compared with 27,800 i@ ue primarily to the growth in our
SCS business segment. Additionally, on Januar@62we adopted SFAS No. 123R and recognized $lidmof additional share-based
compensation expense in 2006. See Note 22, “ShaseeBCompensation Plans,” in the Notes to Congelidainancial Statements for additional
information.

Pension expense increased $11 million in 20070 million compared with 2005. During 2006, keeorded a one-time, non-cash charge of
$6 million ($4 million after-tax), to properly acant for prior service costs related to retiree pEmbenefit improvements made in 1995 and 2000.
The impact of this one-time charge was partialfgeif by a reduction of our 2006 fourth quarter pemexpense of $5 million ($3 million after-
tax) resulting from the interim remeasurement ahphssets and pension obligations. The 2006 peasiunting charge and the benefit attrib
to the interim pension remeasurement discussedealvere excluded from our segment measure of fiahperformance. All other increases to
pension expense largely impacted our FMS busireg®ent which employs the majority of our employiwed participate in the primary
U.S. pension plan. See Note 23, “Employee
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Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinainStatements, for additional information regargdthese items. Based on actual pension asset
returns experienced in 2006, 2006 contributionsiatetest rate levels at December 31, 2006, weamnsion expense on a pre-tax basis to
decrease approximately $31 million in 2007, exalgdihe impact of the $6 million pension accountthgrge recorded in 2006. Our 2007 pension
expense estimates are subject to change basedhg@oampletion of the actuarial analysis for alhgien plans. Our 2007 interest expense on
borrowings will also increase by $5 million becao$@ension contributions made in the current y&he anticipated decrease in pension expe
net of higher interest on borrowings, would prirhaiinpact our FMS business segment. See the setitiied “Critical Accounting Estimates —
Pension Plans” for further discussion on pensiaoanting estimates.

Salaries and employee-related costs gre\@d0b compared with 2004 as a result of headcowgatb support the growth in our SCS
business segment, which was offset slightly by cedyperformance-based incentive compensation aver lemployee benefit costs. Average
headcount increased 2% in 2005 compared with 2004.

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Subcontracted transportati $865,47! 638,31 424,99: 36% 50
Percentage of reveni 14% 11% 8%

Subcontracted transportation expense repiefreight management costs on logistics contriacteshich we purchase transportation from
third parties. During 2006 and 2005, subcontrattaasportation expense in our SCS business segmentdue to increased volumes of freight
management activity from new and expanded busimedsigher average pricing on subcontracted fraights, resulting from increased fuel
costs.

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Depreciation expens $743,28! 740,41 706,02¢ —% 5
Gains on vehicle sales, r (50,76¢) (47,099 (34,509 8 37
Equipment rente 103,29 102,81¢ 108,46¢ — (5)

Depreciation expense relates primarily to Rld&nue earning equipment. Depreciation expergeased slightly in 2006 compared with
2005, reflecting the impact of a higher averagdalelinvestment on purchases over the past yeasdbhanges were partially offset by the
impact of a lower average fleet count and the andjasts made to residual values and useful livgmasof the annual depreciation review, which
were implemented January 1, 2006. The growth imetgation expense during 2005 compared to 2004duado higher vehicle replacement
activity within our truck and tractor fleets as Wwas$ the conversion of leased vehicles to ownddstaartially offset by a decline in our average
trailer fleet size.

Gains on vehicle sales, net increased in 200@pared with 2005 due to improved average priomgehicles sold, which more than offset the
decline in the number of vehicles sold. The improgat in gains on vehicle sales, net in 2005 contpaith 2004 was due to an increase in the
number of units sold combined with improved averageing.

We periodically review and adjust residudles, reserves for guaranteed lease terminatiaresand useful lives of revenue earning
equipment based on current and expected operaéinds and projected realizable values. See thmsditted “Critical Accounting Estimates —
Depreciation and Residual Value
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Guarantees” for further discussion. While we beaditivat the carrying values and estimated saleepdscfor revenue earning equipment are
appropriate, there can be no assurance that datatérm in economic conditions or adverse charnigesxpectations of future sales proceeds will
not occur, resulting in lower gains or losses dasa

Equipment rental consists primarily of rerpense for FMS revenue earning equipment undeeldd® increase in equipment rental in 2006
compared with 2005 reflects the impact of highetakcosts associated with investments made inmabtendling equipment to support the
growth in our SCS business, which more than offsetdecline in vehicle-related rental expense feosmaller average lease count. The decrease
in equipment rental in 2005 compared to 2004 wastdwa reduction in the average number of leashithes.

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Interest expens $140,56: 120,47 100,11« 17% 20
Effective interest rat 5.7% 5.6% 5.5%

Interest expense grew in 2006 compared wifb2reflecting higher average debt levels duaitaling requirements associated with higher
capital spending to support our contractual full/ge lease business, the funding of global pensaniributions and share repurchases. Interest
expense grew in 2005 reflecting higher average laefets, resulting from increased capital spendingome tax payments and share repurchases.

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Miscellaneous income, n $(11,737) (8,949 (6,62%) 31% 35

Miscellaneous income, net consists of invesinincome on securities used to fund certain lieplkains, interest income, (gains) losses from
sales of properties, foreign currency transactgains) losses, and other non-operating items. M&tous income, net increased in 2006
compared with 2005 due to a 2006 fourth quarteimess interruption insurance claim recovery fronricane-related losses of $3 million
($2 million within our FMS business segment andchllion within our DCC business segment), a onesetiracovery in 2006 of $2 million for the
recognition of common stock received from mutuablirance companies and better market performanioe@gtments classified as trading
securities. These favorable comparisons were figrtifiset by a $1 million charge in 2006 relatedtihe settlement of litigation associated with a
discontinued operation, as well as the one-timewvexy in the first quarter of 2005 of $3 million pfoject costs incurred in prior years.
Miscellaneous income, net increased in 2005 conapaith 2004 due to the previously mentioned oneethecovery for project costs incurred in
prior years and better market performance of imaests classified as trading securities.

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands
Restructuring and other charges (recoveries) $3,56¢ 3,37¢ (17,67¢

2006 Activity

During 2006, Ryder recorded net restructuend other charges of $4 million that primarily sizted of early debt retirement costs and
employee severance and benefit costs incurrednnemiion with global cost savings initiatives. Thajority of these charges were recorded
during the fourth quarter.
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These charges were partially offset by adjustmengsior year severance and employee-related alscana facility charges. We expect to realize
annual pre-tax cost savings of approximately $8ionilfrom the 2006 fourth quarter measures oncerajbloyee severance actions have been
completed.

As part of ongoing cost management actioggleRincurred $2 million in costs in the fourth qea to extinguish high interest paying
debentures that were originally set to mature ib620"he total debt retirement costs consisted ®pttemium paid on the early extinguishment
the write-off of the related debt discount and &ste costs. We expect to realize annual pre-taexast savings over the next 4 years of
approximately $2 million from the early extinguisént of this debenture. In the fourth quarter, Ryalso approved a plan to eliminate
approximately 150 positions as a result of ong@iogt management and process improvement actiomsghout Ryder's domestic and
international business segments and Central Sufeovices (CSS). The charge related to these actictuded severance and employee-related
costs totaling $1 million. Although some of thestians were completed as of December 31, 2006sitran plans for eliminating some of the
positions will be communicated in the beginnin2607. Cost reductions associated with the actioaisttave been completed as of December 31,
2006 will benefit salaries and employee-relatedscbeginning in the first quarter of 2007. Costueibns associated with the elimination of the
other positions will benefit salaries and employelated costs in the latter part of 2007. Durin@@We also had employee-related accruals and
facility charges recorded in prior restructuringuaes that were adjusted due to subsequent refitterimeestimates.

2005 Activity

During 2005, Ryder recorded net restructuand other charges of $3 million that consistedroployee severance and benefits, contract
termination costs, and closure of leased facilpiadially offset by reversals of prior year seve@and employegelated accruals. The majority
these charges were recorded during the fourth euantd related primarily to the restructuring of buK. operations, and the offshoring of some
administrative finance and support functions thiitallow for future cost savings. By December 2006, the 2005 actions were completed and
the cost reductions associated with these actvitenefited salaries and employee-related costeifatter half of 2006.

During 2005, Ryder approved a plan to elirtéregpproximately 160 positions as a result of onga@iost management and process
improvement actions in Ryder’s domestic and intéonal FMS and SCS business segments and CSS.hbingecrelated to these actions included
severance and employee-related costs totaling #®miCost reductions associated with these astimnefited salaries and employee-related
costs beginning in the first quarter of 2006. Mafiyhe eliminated positions in our domestic operdiwere impacted by the decision to outso
certain administrative finance functions to lowestforeign providers and maximize our technolaggources. Transition actions began in
February 2006 and continued through the remainti20@6. We also closed two administrative officeshie U.S. as a result of the restructurin
our FMS domestic business operations and recordbdrge for future cash payments related to lebEgations. Also in 2005, management
approved and committed to a plan to transitionadervutsourced telecommunication services to Rgdgployees. Under the terms of the
outsourcing agreement, Ryder was obligated to @agihation costs in the event of termination pt@mthe expiration date of 2010. In accordance
with the terms of this service agreement, Rydeffiedtthe information technology services providéits intent to terminate the services and
recorded charges totaling nearly $1 million for tract termination costs. In 2006, the transitiotivétées were completed and cost reductions
associated with the termination of these serviegmefited operating expenses in the latter par0662 These charges were partially offset by
reversals of prior year severance and employegetblccruals due to refinements in estimates.
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2004 Activity

During 2004, Ryder recorded net restructuand other recoveries of $18 million that consisiEdains from the sale of the previous
headquarters complex and reversals of severancerapbbyee-related accruals partially offset by cactttermination costs.

During 2004, we recognized $24 million inrgafrom properties sold in connection with the cation of our headquarters. In May 2004, we
completed the sale of our corporate headquarteiltyefor $39 million in cash and recognized a $2#lion gain from the sale. In conjunction
with this sale, we entered into a lease agreeméhttiae purchaser to lease back the headquarteitiyfaintil we relocated to our new
headquarters in April 2005. Also during 2004, weognized gains totaling $2 million from the salgodperties ancillary to our main headquai
facility. In 2004, as part of ongoing cost contagmhinitiatives, Ryder management approved and ddteiito a plan to transition certain
outsourced information technology infrastructurevees to Ryder employees. Under the terms of thisaurcing agreement, Ryder was obligated
to pay termination costs in the event of terminafoior to the expiration date of 2010. In accoawith the terms of the services agreement,
Ryder notified the information technology servigesvider of its intent to terminate the serviced agcorded charges totaling $8 million for
contract termination ($6 million) and transitionst®incurred since termination ($2 million). By @etber 31, 2004, all transition activities were
completed and cost reductions associated withetmination of these services benefited operatinmpesges starting in 2005.

See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Cha(Besoveries)” in the Notes to Consolidated Findr8tatements for further discussion.

Change
Years ended December
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Provision for income taxe $144,01: 129,46( 115,51 11% 12
Effective tax rate 36.6% 36.3% 34.9%

The 2006 effective income tax rate includésxabenefit of $7 million from the reduction offdered income taxes as a result of enacted
changes in Texas and Canadian tax laws. The 206&tige tax rate includes a tax benefit of $8 rilliassociated with the State of Ohio enacted
tax legislation, which phases out the Ohio corpofatnchise tax and phases in a new gross redaiptslled the Commercial Activity Tax
(CAT) over a five-year period. The 2004 effectias tate includes a net tax benefit of $9 millios@sated with the completion of the audit of our
federal income tax returns for the 1995 to 1997qgepartially offset by provisions made for logsmtingencies related to the 1998 through 2000
period. See Note 14, “Income Taxes,” in the Note€dnsolidated Financial Statements for furthecwlision.

30




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Revenue
Fleet Management Solutiol
Supply Chain Solution
Dedicated Contract Carriay
Eliminations

Total

Operating Revenut
Fleet Management Solutiol
Supply Chain Solution
Dedicated Contract Carriay
Eliminations

Total

NBT:
Fleet Management Solutiol
Supply Chain Solution
Dedicated Contract Carriay
Eliminations

Unallocated Central Support Servic
Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries, mét a
2006 net retirement plan charg

Earnings from continuing operations before income$

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

(Dollars in thousands

$4,096,041 3,921,19. 3,602,83! 4% 9
2,028,48! 1,637,821 1,354,00: 24 21
568,84 543,26t 506,10( 5 7
(386,739 (361,43 (312,66 7) (16)
$6,306,64 5,740,84 5,150,27: 10% 11
$2,921,06: 2,864,93. 2,800,64. 2% 2
1,182,92! 1,015,83: 938,69: 16 8
548,93: 526,94: 496,42: 4 6
(198,68) (196,82)) (193,85} 1) 2
$4,454,23; 4,210,88 4,041,89: 6% 4
$ 368,06 354,35 312,70¢ 4% 13
62,14 39,39: 37,07¢ 58 6
42,58¢ 35,12¢ 29,45( 21 19
(33,73)) (32,66() (32,729 ©) —
439,07( 396,21! 346,50° 11 14
(39,486 (35,757 (33,069 (10) (8)
(6,61 (3,376 17,67¢ NM NM
$ 392,97 357,08t 331,12: 10% 8
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As part of management’s evaluation of segrogetating performance, we define the primary mesamsant of our segment financial
performance as “Net Before Tax” (NBT), which incigdan allocation of CSS and excludes restructummbother (charges) recoveries, net and
2006 net retirement plan charges. The followindetgavovides a reconciliation of items excluded froor segment NBT measure to their
classification within our Consolidated StatemeritEarnings:

Consolidatec Years ended December
Statements of Earning
Description Line Item(®) 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Severance and employ-related (costs) recoveri Restructuring $(1,04¢) (2,449 1,21¢
Facilities and related (costs) recovel Restructuring (194) (181) 79
Early retirement of det Restructuring (2,147 — —
Contract termination and transition co Restructuring (181) (74€) (8,000
Gain on sale of headquarter comp Restructuring — — 24,30¢
Other Restructuring — — 73
Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries (3,569 (3,376 17,67¢
Pension accounting char(@ Salaries (5,872) — —
Pension remeasurement ben(@ Salaries 4,667 — —
Postretirement benefit plan chai® Salaries (1,842) — —
2006 net retirement plan (charg (3,047) — —

Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries, m&2806 net
retirement plan charge $(6,61)) (3,379 17,67¢

Q) Restructuring refers to tH* Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries” and Salaries refers t* Salaries and employ-related cost” on our Consolidated Statements
Earnings.

2) See Note 2% Employee Benefit Plar’ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsflditional information

CSS represents those costs incurred to suppatftour business segments, including humanuess, finance, corporate services and public
affairs, information technology, health and safé#égal and corporate communications. The objeaivlie NBT measurement is to provide cla
on the profitability of each of our business segte@md, ultimately, to hold leadership of each bess segment and each operating segment
within each business segment accountable for Hileicated share of CSS costs. Segment resultsoareenessarily indicative of the results of
operations that would have occurred had each setgmeen an independent, stand-alone entity duriagpériods presented.

Certain costs are considered to be overhetdttributable to any segment and remain unaléstat CSS. Included within the unallocated
overhead remaining within CSS are the costs foestor relations, corporate communications, pubfairg and certain executive compensation.
See Note 26, “Segment Reporting,” in the NoteSaasolidated Financial Statements for a descripifdmow the remainder of CSS costs is
allocated to the business segments.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning egmipamd provides fuel, maintenance and other angifiervices to our SCS and DCC
segments. Inter-segment revenue and NBT are acmbfmt at rates similar to those executed withdtpiarties. NBT related to inter-segment
equipment and services billed to customers (equiprmentribution) are included in both FMS and thisihess segment which served the custi
and then eliminated (presented as “Eliminations”).
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The following table sets forth equipment cimittion included in NBT for our SCS and DCC segisen

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Equipment Contributior

Supply Chain Solution $16,98: 15,86( 14,97
Dedicated Contract Carrias 16,74¢ 16,80( 17,757
Total $33,73: 32,66( 32,72¢

Fleet Management Solution

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Full service leas $1,848,14. 1,785,60! 1,766,67! 4% 1
Contract maintenanc 141,93: 134,49 136,32° 6 @
Contractual revenu 1,990,07: 1,920,09: 1,903,00: 4 1
Contrac-related maintenanc 193,13: 191,12¢ 178,04¢ 1 7
Commercial rente 665,73l 686,34 649,84 ©) 6
Other 72,12¢ 67,36 69,74 7 (3)
Operating revenu®) 2,921,06; 2,864,93 2,800,64. 2 2
Fuel services revent 1,174,98 1,056,26! 802,19¢ 11 32
Total revenue $4,096,04! 3,921,19: 3,602,83! 4% 9
Segment NB1 $ 368,06¢ 354,35« 312,70t 4% 13
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 9.0% 9.0% 8.7% — bps 30 bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve(@) 12.6% 12.4% 11.2% 2C bps 12C bps

(1) We use operating revenue, a -GAAP financial measure, to evaluate the operatiaggrmance of our FMS business segment and as aureeaf sales activity. Fuel servic
revenue, which is directly impacted by fluctuatiomgsarket fuel prices, is excluded from our opergtrevenue computation as fuel is largely a pdsstigh to customers for
which we realize minimal changes in profitabilityrihg periods of steady market fuel prices. Howepeofitability may be positively or negatively iegted by sudden increases
or decreases in market fuel prices during a sheriqul of time as customer pricing for fuel servicesstablished based on market fuel cc

2006 versus 2005

Total revenue grew in 2006 reflecting highel services revenue as a result of higher aveftageprices. Operating revenue increased in :
due to full service lease growth primarily in NoAmerica. FMS total revenue included a favorableifgn currency exchange impact of 0.3%.

Contractual revenue growth in 2006 was redlin both FMS product lines. Full service leaseneie grew in 2006 due to higher lease rates
and higher levels of sales activity in North Amari€ontract maintenance revenue increased in 200@dmarily to new sales activity. In 2007,
we expect each of our contractual product linedaimonstrate revenue growth based on 2006 sale#tyattivels and ongoing investments in new
sales and business retention initiatives. Commiereidal revenue decreased in 2006 reflecting dlsmaverage fleet and lower vehicle utilization
from a weakening
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U.S. commercial rental market. In the fourth quaofe2006, commercial rental revenue decreasedefbécting lower vehicle utilization and
pricing. We expect similar unfavorable commercaitel revenue comparisons to continue in 2007; reweave expect percentage revenue
declines to be greater in the first half of 200d anprove in the second half of 2007.

The following table provides rental statistfor the U.S. fleet, which generates more than 80%tal commercial rental revenue:

Change
Years ended December
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Nonr-lease customer rental rever $282,52¢ 296,43! 292,24 B)% 1
Lease customer rental rever(® $277,46: 284,18 257,824 (2)% 10
Average commercial rental fleet
size— in service® 33,40( 34,40( 34,70( (3)% (@)
Average commercial rental power fleet
size— in service@.(3) 24,60( 24,70( 24,00( —% 3
Commercial rental utilizatio 71.9% 74.6% 76.9% (27C)bps (230)bps

1) Lease customer rental revenue is revenue from keetecles provided to our existing full servicade customers, generally during peak periods iir thgerations.
2) Number of units rounded to nearest hundi
?3) Fleet size excluding trailer:

FMS NBT grew $14 million during 2006 primarig a result of revenue growth in our full serd&ase and contract maintenance product |
The favorable impact of contractual revenue growds partially offset by reduced commercial rentdlimes, higher sales and marketing
expenses, compensation-related expenses and lmgérerst expense due primarily to planned highét tevels to support investments in the full
service lease business, pension contributions te# sepurchases.

2005 versus 2004

Total revenue grew in 2005 reflecting highexl services revenue as a result of higher aveftageprices. Operating revenue for 2005
increased as a result of higher commercial remdlc@ntract-related maintenance revenue and thadhgd acquisitions. FMS acquisitions
contributed approximately $21 million of total atioihal revenue in 2005. FMS total revenue and dpeyaevenue comparisons for 2005 also
benefited from favorable foreign currency exchargges. FMS total revenue included a favorable fpreurrency exchange impact of 0.6%.

Contractual revenue growth in 2005 was drivgmgrowth in the full service lease product limelavas slightly offset by contract maintenance
revenue declines. Full service lease revenue isetkm 2005 primarily from the acquisition comptete March 2004 and growth in Canada as a
result of favorable foreign currency exchange rates higher volumes. These increases were part#gt by reduced full service lease revenue
in our base U.S. business (excluding acquisition)e first half of 2005. Our U.S. business showegdroved revenue growth trends in the sec
half of 2005 as a result of positive net sales.t@mh maintenance revenue decreased as a resoit dfusiness. Contract-related maintenance
revenue, which generally represents ancillary ses/supporting core product lines, benefited frexgodng initiatives aimed at growing these
service offerings. Commercial rental revenue inseglaas a result of stronger pricing and revenugibation attributed to the acquisition
completed in March 2004. During
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the fourth quarter of 2005, we also restructuredrMS operations to better service customers aivé duture growth in full service lease.

FMS NBT grew $42 million in 2005 as a reaflimproved commercial rental results from highgcipg, higher gains on disposal of used
vehicles resulting from stronger volume and priciagd lower overhead costs, including performaresetl incentive compensation.

Our global fleet of owned and leased revesar@ing equipment and contract maintenance vehgksmmarized as follows (number of units
rounded to the nearest hundred):

Years ended December Change
2006 2005 2004 2006/ 2005/
2005 2004
End of period vehicle count
By type:
Trucks 65,20( 63,20( 63,70( 3% (@)
Tractors 56,10( 52,70( 51,70( 6 2
Trailers 38,90( 40,60( 43,10( (4) (6)
Other 5,70( 5,80( 5,90( 2 2
Total 165,90( 162,30( 164,40( 2% (@)
By ownership:
Owned 160,80( 156,50( 157,00( 3% —
Leasec 5,10( 5,80( 7,40( (12) (22)
Total 165,90( 162,30( 164,40( 2% 1)
By product line:
Full service leas 117,50( 113,70( 115,30( 3% Q)
Commercial rente 37,00( 38,40( 40,20( 4) 4
Service vehicles and oth 3,50(C 3,30(C 3,00( 6 10
Active units 158,00( 155,40( 158,50( 2 2
Held for sale® 7,90( 6,90( 5,90( 14 17
Total 165,90( 162,30( 164,40( 2% 1)
Customer vehicles under contract maintens 30,70( 26,40( 28,50( 16% @)
Year-to-date average vehicle cour
By product line:
Full service leas 114,60( 114,40( 115,90( —% D
Commercial rente 38,70( 40,20( 39,90( 4 1
Service vehicles and oth 3,30( 3,30( 2,90( — 14
Active units 156,60( 157,90( 158,70( (1) 1)
Held for sale® 6,70( 7,00( 5,60( 4 25
Total 163,30( 164,90( 164,30( (1)% —
Customer vehicles under contract maintens 28,00( 27,40( 30,10( 2% 9)

1) Vehicles held for sale represent all units éafalie for sale including units held for sale repadtin the following table for which no revenue bagn earned in the previous
30 days (referred to & NLE” units).

Note: Prior year vehicle counts have been restated tdaromto current year presentatio
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The totals in the table above include theofwlhg non-revenue earning equipment for the U&tf(number of units rounded to the nearest
hundred):

Years ended December Change

2006/ 2005/

Number of Units 2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

Not yet earning revenue (NYI 4,20( 1,70C 1,90(¢ 147% (11
No longer earning revenue (NLE

Units held for salt 6,60( 5,50( 4,80( 20 15

Other NLE units 1,90( 1,40( 1,60( 36 13

Total @ 12,70( 8,60( 8,30( 48% 4

1) Nor-revenue earning equipment for FMS operations oattieé U.S. totaled approximately 1,700 in 2006 &3®0 vehicles in 2005 and 2004, which are notidet above

NYE units represent new vehicles on hand @matbeing prepared for deployment to a lease custominto the rental fleet. Preparations
include activities such as adding lift gates, pailetcals, cargo area and refrigeration equipmar006, the number of NYE units increased due to
the volume of lease sales and replacement actNItf units represent vehicles for which no revehae been earned in the previous 30 days.
Accordingly, these vehicles may be temporarily @uservice, held for sale, being prepared for salewaiting redeployment. In 2006 and 2005,
the total number of NLE units increased due to aighut-servicing of rental units as well as the aeipof increased lease replacement activity. We
expect the number of NLE units to increase in tharrierm based on continuing lease replacemenitgaind planned out-servicing of rental
vehicles.

Supply Chain Solutions

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

(Dollars in thousands

U.S. operating revenu

Automotive and industrie $ 495,36: 449,37¢ 425,10! 1C% 6
High-tech and consumer industri 291,93¢ 252,03: 230,03( 16 10
Transportation manageme 30,735 24,99¢ 20,331 23 23
U.S. operating revent 818,03: 726,40: 675,46¢ 13 8
International operating reveni 364,89: 289,43. 263,22° 26 10
Total operating revent® 1,182,92! 1,015,83 938,69 16 8
Subcontracted transportati 845,56¢ 621,99: 415,31: 36 50
Total revenue $2,028,48! 1,637,82 1,354,00: 24% 21
Segment NB1 $ 62,14« 39,39: 37,07¢ 58% 6
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 3.1% 2.4% 2.7% 7Cbps (30)bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve@ 5.3% 3.9% 4.0% 14Cbps (10)bps
Memo: Fuel cost® $ 104,23: 91,97¢ 65,68 13% 40

(1)  We use operating revenue, a -GAAP financial measure, to evaluate the operatieggrmance of our SCS business segment and as suneeaf sales activity. Subcontrac
transportation is excluded from our operating rewvertomputation as subcontracted transportatiorigely a pass-through to customers. We realizemmahchanges in
profitability as a result of fluctuations in subdoacted transportation

2) Fuel costs are largely a pe-through to customers and therefore have a diregiich on revenue
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2006 versus 2005

SCS total revenue grew in 2006 due to in@éa®slume of managed subcontracted transportaiigher customer volumes and new and
expanded business in all industry groups, Canadd.atin America. SCS total revenue and operatingmee included a favorable foreign
currency exchange impact of 1.8% and 1.4%, respdgtiOur largest customer, General Motors CorponafGM), is comprised of multiple
contracts in various geographic regions. In 2008, &counted for approximately 40% of SCS total raeand 18% of SCS operating revenue.
Based on sales activity to date, we expect favereblenue comparisons to continue over the near. ter

In transportation management arrangementsenlie act as principal, revenue is reported oroaggbasis for subcontracted transportation
services billed to our customers. As a result ¢éeng into a management subcontracted transpontatntract in 2005, under which we have
determined we are acting as principal, the amofintanaged subcontracted transportation expense@anesponding revenue has increased
significantly. We realize minimal changes in prafillity as a result of fluctuations in subcontracteansportation. Determining whether revenue
should be reported as gross or net is based oss@ssment of whether we are acting as the pringipghke agent in the transaction and involves
judgment based on the terms and conditions of ttemgement. From time to time, the terms and c@witof our transportation managem
arrangements may change, which could require agehanrevenue recognition from a gross basis tetdasis or vice versa. Our measure of
operating revenue would not be impacted by a changevenue reporting.

SCS NBT improved $23 million in 2006 as autesf the impact of higher volumes, new and exmaghbusiness in all U.S. industry groups and
better margins in our Brazil operations. In 2006 SS\NBT was also favorably impacted by a $3 millemefit, net of variable compensation,
related to a contract termination.

2005 versus 2004

SCS total revenue growth in 2005 was due amilgnto increased volumes of managed subcontracéedportation. The favorable revenue
comparisons for 2005 also reflect new and expamdsthess in all industry groups, Canada and LatireAca. In 2004, total revenue and
operating revenue included $7 million associatetth wn international inventory procurement contrttwt, terms of which were favorably
renegotiated late in the first quarter of 2004ltmmate inventory risk that required net revenaparting on a prospective basis. SCS total revenue
and operating revenue also included a favorabkidarcurrency exchange impact of 2.0% and 1.5%eesely. In 2005, GM accounted for
approximately 35% of SCS total revenue and 18%Gf ®perating revenue.

SCS NBT improved $2 million in 2005 as a testioperating revenue growth from new and expaindesiness and lower overhead spending.
These items were partially offset by lower volumescertain automotive accounts, including the inbjediplant shutdowns and launch costs
associated with new business and lower marginsiirBoazil operations during the first nine montfif005.
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Dedicated Contract Carriage

Change
Years ended December 31
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Operating revenu® $548,93: 526,94: 496,42 4% 6
Subcontracted transportati 19,917 16,321 9,67¢ 22 69
Total revenue $568,84. 543,26¢ 506,10( 5% 7
Segment NB1 $ 42,58¢ 35,12¢ 29,45( 21% 19
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 7.5% 6.5% 5.8% 10Cbps 7Cbps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve@ 7.8% 6.7% 5.9% 11Cbps 8Cbps
Memo: Fuel cost® $104,64° 94,05 72,52¢ 11% 30

1) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP finamorsdisure, to evaluate the operating performancaioDCC business segment and as a measure of satiegya
Subcontracted transportation is excluded from operating revenue computation as subcontracted partation is largely a pass-through to customers #alize minimal
changes in profitability as a result of fluctuatom subcontracted transportatio

2) Fuel costs are largely a pe-through to customers and therefore have a diregiaich on revenue

2006 versus 2005

Total revenue and operating revenue grewdi62as a result of expanded and new business fir¢haalf of 2006 as well as pricing increases
associated with higher average fuel costs. Deslgitining revenue growth trends in the second ¢fa#006, we expect favorable revenue
comparisons in 2007 based on planned investmestlé@s and marketing initiatives. DCC NBT impro¥dmillion in 2006 due to new and
expanded business as well as lower safety andansarcosts, including a hurricane related recovery.

2005 versus 2004

DCC revenue in 2005 increased as a resulewfand expanded business and pricing increasesiaesl with higher fuel costs. DCC NBT
improved $6 million reflecting the earnings levezdgom new and expanded business and lower safietpther operating costs resulting from
cost management and process improvement actions.
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Central Support Services

Years ended December Change
2006/ 2005/
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Human resource $ 14,78: 14,64 13,98:
Finance 56,88 56,96 56,13¢
Corporate services and public affe 11,53( 13,02¢ 9,19¢
Information technolog' 53,28 63,56¢ 69,457
Health and safet 7,828 8,711 7,952
Other 47,83: 41,344 48,05(
Total CSS 192,13¢ 198,26 204,77 (3)% (3)
Allocation of CSS to business segme (152,659 (162,519 (171,719 6 5
Unallocated CS: $ 39,48¢ 35,75! 33,06! 10% 8

2006 versus 2005

Total CSS costs in 2006 decreased due torlo@mation technology costs from ongoing costtainment initiatives, the one-time recovery
of $2 million associated with the recognition ohumon stock received from mutual insurance companiasprior year and lower spending in
corporate services as the prior year included asteciated with the relocation of our headquaftaitity. These decreases were slightly offse
higher shardsased compensation from expensing stock optionditégation settlement costs associated with aahsioued operation. Unallocat
CSS expense increased in 2006 primarily as a reshlgher share-based compensation expense.

2005 versus 2004

Total CSS costs declined in 2005 due primddilcost benefits associated with the insourcimg) enegotiation of several information
technology infrastructure services and lower penmce-based incentive compensation costs. Thisowepnent was partially offset by higher
spending in corporate services for moving and ftiamscosts associated with the relocation to ewnsmaller headquarter facility. Unallocated
CSS expenses were up in 2005 largely due to thagoeater relocation costs and higher corporat@tinies spending.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
Cash Flows

The following is a summary of our cash floineam operating, financing and investing activities:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Net cash (used in) provided t
Operating activitie! $ 853,58 779,06. 866,84¢
Financing activitie: 488,20: 241,50! (195,76()
Investing activities (1,339,55() (988,85)) (720,11
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (2,327) (3,95€¢) 9,36¢
Net change in cash and cash equival $ (88 27,75¢ (39,656
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A detail of the individual items contributinig the cash flow changes is included in the Cadatéd Statements of Cash Flows.

Cash provided by operating activities inceshim 2006 compared with 2005, due primarily tahieigearnings (adjusted for neash items) an
lower income tax payments which were partially effey higher pension contributions of $117 milliébm2005, net cash provided by operating
activities was impacted by U.S. federal incomegayments of $176 million made in connection witl tesolution of our federal income tax au
for the 1998 to 2000 tax period. Cash providedibgrfcing activities for 2006 was $488 million comgwith $242 million in 2005. Cash
provided by financing activities in 2006 reflecighrer debt borrowings used to fund increased veldapital spending, higher pension
contributions and share repurchases. Cash usegésting activities increased to $1.34 billion B0B compared with $989 million in 2005, due
higher vehicle capital spending, principally leaséicle spending for replacement and expansiomstoener fleets, and an increase in restricted
cash associated with the implementation of theclelike-kind exchange tax program in 2006.

Cash provided by operating activities deaedans 2005 compared with 2004 due to U.S. fedae@me tax payments of $176 million made in
connection with the resolution of our federal in@tax audit for the 1998 to 2000 tax period anddshidllion of estimated 2004 and 2005 tax
payments made during 2005. Cash provided by fimgnactivities increased in 2005 compared with aasdd in financing activities in 2004 due
higher debt borrowings used to fund increased abptjuirements and federal income tax paymentscih used in investing activities increa
in 2005 compared with 2004 due primarily to highehicle capital spending. The increase in capfiehsling was partially offset by lower
acquisition-related payments and higher proceestscésted with sales of used vehicles.

We manage our business to maximize net cashided by operating activities (operating caslwid and proceeds from the sale of revenue
earning equipment as the principal sources of diidyi We refer to the sum of operating cash flopreceeds from the sales of revenue earning
equipment and operating property and equipmenteaans on direct finance leases, sale and leagatfarevenue earning equipment and other
cash inflows as “total cash generated.” We refeh#onet amount of cash generated from operatitigities and investing activities (excluding
changes in restricted cash) as “free cash flowth@ugh total cash generated and free cash flom@meGAAP financial measures, we consider
them to be important measures of comparative opgraerformance. We also believe total cash geedrat be an important measure of total
inflows generated from our ongoing business aatisitWe believe free cash flow provides investoith an important perspective on the cash
available for debt service and for shareholderr aftaking capital investments required to suppogoing business operations. Our calculation of
free cash flow may be different from the calculaticsed by other companies and therefore compdsabifty be limited.
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The following table shows the sources offoee cash flow computation:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 853,58 779,06: 866,84¢
Sales of revenue earning equipm 326,07¢ 326,75 288,67
Sales of operating property and equipn 6,57t 6,96: 42,83¢
Collections on direct finance leas 66,27+ 70,40¢ 63,79¢
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equip — — 118,53
Other, ne 2,16: — 512
Total cash generate 1,254,67! 1,183,18! 1,381,20:.
Purchases of property and revenue earning equip (1,695,069 (1,399,379 (1,092,15)
Acquisitions (4,119 (15,110 (148,79)
Free cash flov $ (444,499 (231,304 140,25:

We used $444 million of free cash flow congzhto a use of $231 million in 2005 due to increasehicle capital spending and higher pension
contributions. We used $231 million of free cagiwflin 2005 compared to generating $140 million @42 due to higher capital spending levels
and income tax payments made in connection witlrekelution of our federal income tax audit for 898 to 2000 tax period and estimated tax
payments which were partially offset by lower asition spending. We anticipate free cash flow Isuslimprove in 2007 as a result of lower
anticipated vehicle capital spending.

Capital expenditures are generally used tolmse revenue earning equipment (trucks, tradtaitgrs) primarily to support the full service
lease product line and secondarily to support temercial rental product line within our FMS busissegment. The level of capital required to
support the full service lease product line vadiesctly with the customer contract signings fgsleeement vehicles and growth. These contracts
are long-term agreements that result in predictesdh flows to us typically over a three-to sevearterm for trucks and tractors and up to ten
years for trailers. The commercial rental produr utilizes capital for the purchase of vehiclesdplenish and expand the fleet available for
shorterterm use by contractual or occasional customersr&ing property and equipment expenditures primeglate to FMS and SCS spend
on items such as vehicle maintenance facilitieseapndpment, computer and telecommunications equipnaed warehouse facilities and
equipment.

The following is a summary of capital expeodis:

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Revenue earning equipme®

Full service leas $ 1,492,72i 1,082,33: 862,99
Commercial rente 195,02: 251,27t 241,85t
1,687,74. 1,333,61 1,104,85:

Operating property and equipme 71,772 77,36( 59,767
Total capital expenditure 1,759,51! 1,410,971 1,164,61!
Changes in accounts payable related to purchases@fue earning equipme (64,45)) (11,59)) (72,46))
Cash paid for purchases of property and revenugrgaequipmen $ 1,695,06. 1,399,37! 1,092,15

1) Capital expenditures exclude non-cash additioihapproximately $2 million, $0.4 million and $64llion in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, isets held under capital
leases resulting from the extension of existingatpeg leases and other additior
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Capital expenditures grew in 2006 and 2005tduecreased lease vehicle spending for replacear@hexpansion of customer fleets. Vehicle
capital spending levels were relatively low fronD2Go 2003 as we focused efforts on extending ewadth existing customers, redeploying
surplus assets and right-sizing our fleet. Accagljincapital spending levels were relatively higfrem 2004 to 2006 because of increased
replacement activity. We also experienced increasplhcement activity in 2006 associated with titeoduction in 2007 of emission after-market
devices on newly manufactured engines and vehidfesexpect capital expenditures to decrease toappately $1.33 billion in 2007 as a result
of reduced replacement activity and lower planreals of spending for full service lease vehicWg. expect to fund 2007 capital expenditures
with both internally generated funds and additidirencing.

In 2005 and 2004, Ryder completed an acdguisielated to the FMS segment. Total consideratiaid for these acquisitions was $4 millior
2006, $15 million in 2005 and $149 million in 20@ke Note 4, “Acquisitions,” in the Notes to Condaled Financial Statements for a further
discussion. We will continue to evaluate selectigquisitions in FMS, SCS and DCC in 2007.

Financing and Other Funding Transactions

We utilize external capital to support growttour asset-based product lines. The varietynafrfcing alternatives available to fund our capital
needs include long-term and medium-term public giehte debt, asset-backed securities, bank teamsldeasing arrangements, bank credit
facilities and commercial paper.

The following table shows the movements inaebt balance:

Years ended December

2006 2005
(In thousands
Debt balance at Januan $2,185,36! 1,783,211
Casl-related changes in del
Net change in commercial paper borrowi 328,64 188,27
Proceeds from issuance of med-term notes 550,00( 600,00(
Proceeds from issuance of other debt instrun 120,56¢ 162,12
Retirement of mediu-term notes and debentui (213,19 (200,000)
Other debt repaid, including capital lease oblimyzd (165,32 (343,93))
620,69( 406,46:
Non-cash changes in del
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject tying (669) (4,152)
Addition of capital lease obligatior 2,29t 433
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates and otr-cash items 9,25k (593)
Total changes in del 631,57 402,15(
Debt balance at December $2,816,94. 2,185,36!

In accordance with our funding philosophy, ateempt to match the average remaining repridfegof our debt with the average remaining
of our assets. We utilize both fixed-rate and Jadaate debt to achieve this match and generattyet a mix of 25% - 45% variable-rate debt as a
percentage of total debt outstanding. The variadie-portion of our total obligations (includingtiomal value of swap agreements) was 31% at
December 31, 2006, compared with 32% at Decemhe2@®15.
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Ryder’s leverage ratios and a reconciliatbbalance sheet debt to total obligations werlbews:

December 31 % to December 31 % to
2006 Equity 2005 Equity
(Dollars in thousands
On-balance sheet de $2,816,94. 164% $2,185, 36! 14%%
Off-balance sheet debt — PV of minimum lease paymand
guaranteed residual values under operating lease®Hicles® 77,99¢ 117,06:
Total obligations $2,894,94. 168% $2,302,421 151%

1) Present value (PV) does not reflect payments Rydeid be required to make if we terminated theteeldeases prior to the scheduled expiration de

Debt to equity consists of balance sheet ftetihe period divided by total equity. Total oldigpns to equity represents balance sheet debt plus
the present value of minimum lease payments anchgteed residual values under operating leasegefdcles, discounted based on our
incremental borrowing rate at lease inceptiongifided by total equity. Although total obligatioissa non-GAAP financial measure, we believe
that total obligations is useful as it is a morenptete measure of our existing financial obligasi@amd helps better assess our overall leverage
position.

The increase in leverage ratios in 2006 wad by our increased capital spending requirestgport our contractual full service lease
business, pension contributions and stock repuesh&3ur long-term target percentage of total olibga to equity is 250% to 300% while
maintaining a strong investment grade rating. Wiebe this leverage range is appropriate for owitbess due to the liquidity of our vehicle
portfolio and because a substantial component nassets are supported by long-term customer leases

Our ability to access unsecured debt in #petal markets is linked to both our short-term &omterm debt ratings. These ratings are intel
to provide guidance to investors in determiningaheit risk associated with particular Ryder sdms based on current information obtained by
the rating agencies from us or from other sourkasguch agencies consider to be reliable. Lowtargggenerally result in higher borrowing cc
as well as reduced access to capital markets. ifisignt downgrade of Rydes’debt rating would reduce our ability to issue owrcial paper. A
a result, we would have to rely on other estabtisiuading sources described below.

Our debt ratings at December 31, 2006 wefelmsvs:

Short-term Long-term Outlook
Moody’s Investors Service P2 Baal Stable (June 2004
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service! A2 BBB+ Stable (April 2005)
Fitch Ratings F2 A- Stable (July 2005)

Ryder can borrow up to $870 million througglabal revolving credit facility with a syndicaté twelve lenders. The credit facility matures in
May 2010 and is used primarily to finance workiragital and provide support for the issuance of cenunal paper. This facility can also be used
to issue up to $75 million in letters of creditdtk were no letters of credit outstanding agamsfacility at December 31, 2006). At Ryder’s
option, the interest rate on borrowings under tteglit facility is based on LIBOR, prime, federahfis or local equivalent rates. The credit
facility’s current annual facility fee is 11.0 bagoints, which applies to the total facility of&Bmillion, and is based on Ryder’s current long-
term credit ratings. The credit facility contains provisions restricting its availability in theewt of a material adverse change to Ryslbrisines
operations; however, the credit facility does contandard representations and warranties, ewémlsfault, cross-default provisions, and certain
affirmative and

43




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

negative covenants. In order to maintain availgbdf funding, Ryder must maintain a ratio of debtonsolidated tangible net worth, as defined
in the credit facility agreement, of less than gua to 300%. Throughout 2006, we were in compkawih this and all other restrictive covenants
for our revolving credit facility and do not expebe covenants to significantly affect our openasioThe ratio at December 31, 2006 was 146%.
At December 31, 2006, $113 million was availabldemthe credit facility.

During 1986, we issued at a discount $100anilprincipal amount of unsecured debentures dag BD16, with a stated interest rate of 9.0%,
payable semannually. During the fourth quarter of 2006, werest $63 million principal amount of these debeatuat a premium, which resuli
in a charge of $2 million. The charge represergspifemium paid on the early extinguishment andnthiee-off of related debt discount and
issuance costs.

During 2006, we issued $550 million of unsecumedium-term notes, of which $250 million maturélay 2011 and $300 million mature in
November 2016. During 2005, we issued $600 milbbnnsecured mediu-term notes, of which $225 million mature in A2D10, $175 million
mature in April 2011 and $200 million mature in 2012. The proceeds from the notes were usedefeergl corporate purposes.

During 2005, Ryder filed a universal sheljistration statement with the Securities and Exgea@ommission (SEC) to issue up to
$800 million of securities, including $65 milliorf available securities that was carried forwardrrihe previous shelf registration statement.
Proceeds from debt issuances under the universHirglgistration statement are being used for gdrearporate purposes, which may include
capital expenditures, share repurchases and reduotcommercial paper borrowings. At DecemberZ6, Ryder had $250 million of debt
securities available for issuance under the latggstration statement.

In September 2005, Ryder Receivable Funding,L.C. (RRF LLC), a bankruptcy remote, consalidd subsidiary of Ryder, entered into a
Trade Receivables Purchase and Sale Agreementr@hde Receivables Agreement) with various finanicstitutions. Under this program, Ryder
sells certain of its domestic trade accounts rexd#e/to RRF LLC who in turn may sell, on a revotyimasis, an ownership interest in certain of
these accounts receivable to a receivables coaddi{or) committed purchasers. Under the termbe@ptogram, RRF LLC and Ryder have
provided representations, warranties, covenantsratemnities that are customary for accounts redsé/facilities of this type. Ryder entered i
this program to provide additional liquidity to fiits operations, particularly when the cost oftesales is cost effective compared with other
funding programs, notably the issuance of unseccoetmercial paper. This program is accounted fa esllateralized financing arrangement.
The available proceeds that may be received by HRFunder the program are limited to $200 milli®tRF LLC’s costs under this program rr
vary based on changes in Ryder’s unsecured debgsadnd changes in interest rates. If no eventirsdhat would cause early termination, the
364-day program will expire on September 11, 2@GMDecember 31, 2006, there were no receivablestanding under the Trade Receivables
Agreement.

At December 31, 2006, Ryder had the followamgounts available to fund operations under theeafentioned facilities:

(In millions)
Global revolving credit facility $113
Shelf registration statement 25C
Trade receivables facility 20C

We believe that our existing cash and castivatgnts, operating cash flows, commercial papegram, revolving credit facility, shelf
registration with the SEC and the trade receivafaetfiity will adequately meet our working capitahd capital expenditure needs for the
foreseeable future.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Sale and leaseback transactioli¢e periodically enter into sale and leaseback #eti@ns in order to lower the total cost of fundog
operations, to diversify our funding among diffaretasses of investors (e.g., regional banks, pensians, insurance companies, etc.) and to
diversify our funding among different types of fumgl instruments. These sale-leaseback transadaiensften executed with third-party financial
institutions that are not deemed to be variablerast entities (VIES). In general, these sale-lemadetransactions result in a reduction in revenue
earning equipment and debt on the balance sheptpaseds from the sale of revenue earning equiparerprimarily used to repay debt.
Accordingly, sale-leaseback transactions will resuteduced depreciation and interest expenseramdased equipment rental expense.

During 2004, we completed two sale-leaselteisactions of revenue earning equipment withdtparty financial institutions not deemed to
be VIEs and these transactions qualified for ofhae sheet treatment. Proceeds from the salebaalsé¢ransactions totaled $97 million. In
connection with these leases we have provideddioimuarantees of the residual values of the leasleidles (residual value guarantees) that are
conditioned upon disposal of the leased vehicles po the end of their lease term. Proceeds frémerosale-leaseback transactions during 2004
that did not qualify for off-balance sheet treatinerre $22 million. We have not entered into ang-4$aaseback transactions since 2004.

GuaranteesRyder has executed various agreements with thiriegathat contain standard indemnifications thaymequire Ryder to
indemnify a third party against losses arising frawariety of matters such as lease obligationgnfting agreements, environmental matters, and
agreements to sell business assets. In each e&fithe&tances, payment by Ryder is contingent omther party bringing about a claim under the
procedures outlined in the specific agreement. Ndlgmthese procedures allow Ryder to dispute theroparty’s claim. Additionally, Ryder’'s
obligations under these agreements may be limitédrims of the amount and (or) timing of any claimOctober 2006, Ryder entered into
individual indemnification agreements with eachtsfindependent directors. The terms of the indéication agreements provide, among other
things, that to the extent permitted by Florida,|l&yder will indemnify such director acting in gofaith in a manner he or she reasonably
believed to be in, or not opposed to, the bestésts of Ryder, against any and all losses, exgearse: liabilities arising out of such director’s
service as a director of Ryder. The maximum amofipbtential future payments is generally unlimitéde cannot predict the maximum poten
amount of future payments under certain of theseeagents, including the indemnification agreemetiiig, to the contingent nature of the
potential obligations and the distinctive provisidhat are involved in each individual agreemeidtddically, no such payments made by Ryder
have had a material adverse effect on our busiWéedelieve that if a loss were incurred in anyhefse matters, the loss would not result in a
material adverse impact on our consolidated restiltgerations or financial position. The total ambof maximum exposure determinable under
these types of provisions at December 31, 20062808 was $17 million and $16 million, respectiveind we have accrued $2 million and
$3 million, respectively, as a corresponding lidilSee Note 18, “Guarantees,” in the Notes todtidated Financial Statements for further
discussion.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As part of our ongoing operations, we emés arrangements that obligate us to make futuyenpats under contracts such as debt
agreements, lease agreements and unconditiondlgaeobligations. The following table summarizesegected future contractual cash
obligations and commitments at December 31, 2006:

2007 2008- 2009 2010- 2011 Thereafter Total
(In thousands)

Debt $ 332,12 269,72( 1,468,58 743,00 2,813,43.
Capital lease obligations 621 1,10¢ 474 1,30¢ 3,50¢
Total debt 332,74! 270,82¢ 1,469,06. 744,30¢ 2,816,94.
Interest on debt(@) 139,64¢ 245,39( 138,17: 262,13¢ 785,34¢
Operating lease<®? 108,87¢ 128,42¢ 85,63’ 47,03¢ 369,97
Purchase obligations® 340,42° 41,85( 4,35( — 386,62
Total contractual cash obligations 588,95. 415,66! 228,15¢ 309,17: 1,541,95I
Insurance obligations® 117,31: 113,41 47,75¢ 29,93( 308,40¢
Other long-term liabilities ).(6) 24,83 3,667 2,01( 48,59 79,09¢
Total $1,063,84! 803,57! 1,746,98. 1,132,00. 4,746,40

(1)  Total debt matures at various dates through figesdr 2025 and bears interest principally at fixedes. Interest on variat-rate debt is calculated based on the applicable

at December 31, 2006. Amounts are based on exidghgobligations, including capital leases, andrad consider potential refinancings of expiringotiebligations.

) Represents future lease payments associated witble®, equipment and properties under operatirgés. Amounts are based upon the general assuntpébthe lease
asset will remain on lease for the length of tirpecsfied by the respective lease agreements. Motdfés been given to renewals, cancellations,icgent rentals or future
rate changes

?3) The majority of our purchase obligations areyges-you-go transactions made in the ordinary cewsbusiness. Purchase obligations include agre¢sne purchase goods

or services that are legally binding and that sfeail significant terms, including: fixed or minim quantities to be purchased; fixed minimum oralde price provisions;

and the approximate timing of the transaction. Test significant item included in the above tabie purchase obligations related to vehicles. Pusgharders made in the
ordinary course of business that are cancelableex@uded from the above table. Any amounts fochvhie are liable under purchase orders are reflddteour Consolidate:

Balance Sheets ¢ Accounts payab” and“ Accrued expenses and other current liabili”
4) Insurance obligations are primarily comprised offsinsurance accruals

(5) Represents other lo-term liability amounts reflected in our ConsoliddtBalance Sheets that have known payment stredresn®st significant items included were a:
retirement obligations, deferred compensation dddiigns and derivative contract

(6) The amounts exclude our estimated pension iberiwns. For 2007, our pension contributions, imding our minimum funding requirements as set foptiEERISA and

international regulatory bodies, are expected tdB& million. Our minimum funding requirements a2807 are dependent on several factors. Howevergstimate that the
present value of required contributions over thetrieyears is approximately $56 million (-tax) for the U.S. plan (assuming expected longiteate of return realized and
other assumptions remain unchanged). We also hayments due under our other postretirement be(@REB) plans. These plans are not required to Ibeléd in advance,

but are pa-as-yoL-go. See further discussion in Note “ Employee Benefit Plar” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Pension Information

At December 31, 2006, we had an accumulagéeauity charge (after-tax) of $201 million comgto $221 million as of December 31,
2005. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 required ugtord a charge related to the unrecognized neadatlosses, unrecognized prior service
costs and unrecognized transition asset. The &keequity charge of $201 million includes the iropaf the adoption of SFAS No. 158 which
increased the equity charge by $151 million at Dewmer 31, 2006. The decrease in the equity char§@ @8 million, prior to the impact of
adopting SFAS No. 158, was principally the
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result of fully funding accumulated benefit obligets of our primary pension plan. The improved fiagdevels resulted from strong investment
returns on pension plan assets, global pensiomibatibns during 2006, and a reduction in pensibligations as a result of a higher interest rate
environment. Total asset returns for our U.S. diealipension plan (our primary plan) were 14% i®@0

The funded status of our pension plans iddent upon many factors, including returns onstee assets and the level of certain market
interest rates. We review pension assumptions agigudnd we may from time to time make voluntarpteibutions to our pension plans, which
exceed the amounts required by statute. During 200& pension contributions, including our intational plans, were $130 million compared
with $12 million in 2005. After considering the Z6ontributions and asset performance, the prajgatesent value of estimated contributions
our U.S. plan that would be required over the iexéars totals approximately $56 million (gee). Changes in interest rates and the markeg
of the securities held by the plans during 2008dmaterially change, positively or negatively, thederfunded status of the plans and affect the
level of pension expense and required contributinrZ)07 and beyond. See Note 23, “Employee BeRddins,” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information.

In August 2006, the Pension Protection Ac@d6 was signed into law. The major provisionghefstatute will take effect January 1, 2008.
Among other things, the statute is designed to renismely and adequate funding of qualified pengitams by shortening the time period within
which employers must fully fund pension benefite We currently evaluating the effect, if any, tthet Pension Protection Act of 2006 will have
on future pension funding requirements.

On January 5, 2007, our Board of Directorgraped an amendment to freeze the U.S. pensiongftactive December 31, 2007 for current
participants who do not meet certain grandfatheciitgria. As a result, these employees will ces=auing further benefits after December 31,
2007 and will participate in an enhanced 401 (khplehose participants that meet the grandfathemitgria will be given the option to either
continue to earn benefits in the U.S. pension plamansition into an enhanced 401(k) plan. Allreghent benefits earned as of December 31,
2007 will be fully preserved and will be paid incacdance with the plan and legal requirements. Bygas hired after January 1, 2007 will not be
eligible to participate in the pension plan. Dughte fact that our pension plan is being replagedrenhanced 401(k) plan to which we will also
be contributing, we do not believe our benefit gdiamding requirements will change significantlyeasesult of the freeze of the U.S. pension plan.

Share Repurchase Programs and Cash Dividends

In May 2006, our Board of Directors authodzetwo-year share repurchase program intendedtigate the dilutive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock option and stackhmase plans. Under the May 2006 program, managemauthorized to repurchase shares
of common stock in an amount not to exceed the murabshares issued to employees upon the exart&eck options or through the employee
stock purchase plan since March 1, 2006. The M&6 20ogram limits aggregate share repurchases mare than 2 million shares of Ryder
common stock. Share repurchases are made perigditalpen-market transactions, and are subjentddket conditions, legal requirements and
other factors. Management was granted the authriggtablish a trading plan for the Company uitlde 10b5-Iof the Securities Exchange /
of 1934 as part of the May 2006 program, whichvadld for share repurchases during Ryder’s quart#agkout periods as set forth in the trading
plan. At December 31, 2006, we repurchased ancdesipproximately 1.8 million shares under the M&@6 program at an aggregate cost of
$93 million.

In October 2005, our Board of Directors auited a $175 million share repurchase program avyggriod not to exceed two years. Share
repurchases of common stock were made periodicathpen-market transactions and were subject t@baonditions, legal requirements and
other factors. Management established a prearrangtén plan for the Company under Rule 10b5-thef Securities
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Exchange Act of 1934 as part of the October 20@g5am, which allowed for share repurchases duripdeRs quarterly blackout periods as set
forth in the trading plan. During the first quartér2006, we completed the October 2005 prograr2006 and 2005, we repurchased and retired
approximately 1.6 million and 2.6 million sharesspectively, under the October 2005 program aggnegate cost of $66 million and

$109 million, respectively.

In July 2004, our Board of Directors authedz two-year share repurchase program intendeitigate the dilutive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock option and stagkhmase plans. Under the July 2004 program, slvdireemmon stock were purchased in an
amount not to exceed the number of shares issueahpdoyees upon the exercise of stock optionsroutih the employee stock purchase plan
since May 1, 2004. The July 2004 program limitedragate share repurchases to no more than 3.®smdhares of Ryder common stock. Share
repurchases of common stock were made periodizablpen-market transactions, and were subject tkeb@onditions, legal requirements and
other factors. Management established a prearrangtédn plan for the Company under Rule 10b5-thef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as
part of the July 2004 program, which allowed foarghrepurchases during Ryder’s quarterly blacketbgs as set forth in the trading plan.
During the fourth quarter of 2005, we replacedtly 2004 program with the October 2005 progranedqreviously. In 2005 and 2004, we
repurchased and retired approximately 1.0 milliod &.4 million shares, respectively, under the 2094 program at an aggregate cost of
$43 million and $62 million, respectively.

In October 2003, our Board of Directors auitted a $90 million share repurchase program oymrad not to exceed two years. Under the
October 2003 program, shares of common stock warghpsed in a dollar amount not to exceed the pdxgenerated from the issuance of
common stock to employees since January 1, 20@8eSkpurchases of common stock were made perlbydicapen-market transactions and
were subject to market conditions, legal requiret®i@nd other factors. During the second quart@06#, we completed the October 2003
program. In 2004, we repurchased and retired appiately 2.4 million shares, under the October 2pf8ram at an aggregate cost of
$87 million.

Cash dividend payments to shareholders ofeomstock were $44 million in 2006, $41 million2005 and $39 million in 2004. During 20!
we increased our annual dividend to $0.72 per sbfatemmon stock. In February 2007, our Board ofBlors declared a quarterly cash dividend
of $0.21 per share of common stock. The dividefidets a $0.03 increase from the $0.18 per shaoewimon stock quarterly cash dividend paid
in 2006.

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, Ryder sgd to fluctuations in interest rates, foreigmency exchange rates and fuel prices. We manage
these exposures in several ways, including, iragedircumstances, the use of a variety of denreafinancial instruments when deemed prudent.
We do not enter into leveraged derivative finanti@hsactions or use derivative financial instrutadar trading purposes.

Exposure to market risk for changes in irgerates relates primarily to debt obligations. @terest rate risk management program objective
is to limit the impact of interest rate changessamings and cash flows and to lower overall boimgveosts. We manage our exposure to interest
rate risk through the proportion of fixed-rate ardiable-rate debt in the total debt portfolio. fArime to time, we also use interest rate swap and
cap agreements to manage our fixed-rate and varialbd exposure and to better match the repridimigbt instruments to that of our portfolio of
assets. See Note 17, “Financial Instruments ankl R&agement,” in the Notes to Consolidated Firar8tatements for further discussion on
outstanding interest rate swap agreements at Dexre®ih 2006 and 2005.

At December 31, 2006, we had $1.95 billioriixéd-rate debt (excluding capital leases) witheighted-average interest rate of 5.5% and a
fair value of $1.93 billion, including the effeat§the interest
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rate swap. A hypothetical 10% decrease or increefe December 31, 2006 market interest rates avimopact the fair value of our fixed-rate

debt by approximately $37 million. At December 3006, the fair value of our interest rate swap egrent was recorded as an asset and was not
material. At December 31, 2005, we had $1.52 ilbd fixed-rate debt (excluding capital leaseshvatweightedaverage interest rate of 5.5% i

a fair value of $1.51 billion, including the effeatf interest rate swaps. A hypothetical 10% deserea increase in the December 31, 2005 market
interest rates would impact the fair value of axed-rate debt by approximately $26 million. At Racber 31, 2005, the fair value of our interest
rate swap agreement was recorded as a liabiligingt $0.2 million. We estimated the fair valuedefrivatives based on dealer quotations.

At December 31, 2006, we had $865 milliovaifiable-rate debt, including the effects of ingtrate swaps, which effectively changed
$35 million of fixed-rate debt instruments with @ighted-average interest rate of 6.6% to LIBOR-tdkmating-rate debt at a current weighted-
average interest rate of 6.3%. Changes in thevfdire of the interest rate swaps are offset by gbsin the fair value of the debt instruments and
no net gain or loss is recognized in earnings. &t¢@nber 31, 2006, the fair value of our interetst sawap agreements was recorded as an asset
totaling $0.1 million. At December 31, 2005, we %661 million of variable-rate debt, including tbfects of interest rate swaps, which
effectively changed $185 million of fixed-rate défstruments with a weighted-average interestoa& 7% to LIBOR-based floating-rate debt at
a current weighteawverage interest rate of 6.2%. The fair value ofioterest rate swap agreements at December 35,286 recorded as an as
totaling $0.8 million. A hypothetical 10% increasemarket interest rates would impact 2007 preearnings by approximately $5 million.

Exposure to market risk for changes in faneigrrency exchange rates relates primarily toforgign operationsbuying, selling and financir
in currencies other than local currencies and éoctirrying value of net investments in foreign gdibsies. The majority of our transactions are
denominated in U.S. dollars. The principal foretgmrency exchange rate risks to which we are expossude the Canadian dollar, British pot
sterling, Brazilian real and Mexican peso. We manaigr exposure to foreign currency exchange rakerelated to our foreign operationmlying,
selling and financing in currencies other than lacairencies by naturally offsetting assets ankililes not denominated in local currencies. A
hypothetical uniform 10% strengthening in the vadfithe dollar relative to all the currencies inighour transactions are denominated would
result in a decrease to pre-tax earnings of apprataly $6 million. We also use foreign currencyi@ptcontracts and forward agreements from
time to time to hedge foreign currency transactiexgosure. We generally do not hedge the tramslakposure related to our net investment in
foreign subsidiaries, since we generally have ray+erm intent to repatriate funds from such subsiels. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we
had a $78 million cross-currency swap used to hedgaet investment in a foreign subsidiary andwbich we recognized a liability equal to its
fair value of $20 million and $10 million, respeaetly. At December 31, 2006, we also had forwareifgm currency exchange contracts with an
aggregate fair value of $0.3 million. The potenkias in fair value for such instruments from a ¢tyyetical 10% adverse change in quoted foreign
currency exchange rates would be approximatelyriillibn and $9 million at December 31, 2006 and 20@spectively. We estimated the fair
values of derivatives based on dealer quotations.

Exposure to market risk for fluctuations uref prices relates to a small portion of our sengontracts for which the cost of fuel is intedgeal
service delivery and the service contract doedawe a mechanism to adjust for increases in fuetpr At December 31, 2006, we also had
various fuel purchase arrangements in place torergrlivery of fuel at market rates in the eventuefl shortages. We are exposed to fluctuations
in fuel prices in these arrangements since nonke&rrangements fix the price of fuel to be puselda Increases and decreases in the price of fue
are generally passed on to our customers for wivizchealize minimal changes in profitability duripgriods of steady market fuel prices.
However, profitability may be positively or negatly impacted by sudden increases or decreasesrketrfael
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prices during a short period of time as customiingg for fuel services is established based orketduel costs. We believe the exposure to fuel
price fluctuations would not materially impact Rydeaesults of operations, cash flows or finangasition.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The operations of Ryder involve storing arspdnsing petroleum products, primarily diesel fuefulated under environmental protection
laws. These laws require us to eliminate or migghe effect of such substances on the environrirergsponse to these requirements, we
continually upgrade our operating facilities angblement various programs to detect and minimizearomation.

Capital expenditures related to these prograntaled approximately $1 million in 2006 and 2@0f $2 million in 2004. We incurred
environmental expenses of $8 million, $9 milliorde10 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectiveliiich included remediation costs as well
as normal recurring expenses such as licensintidesnd waste disposal fees. Based on currenirostances and the present standards imposed
by government regulations, environmental expensds@ated capitalized costs should not increageniadly from 2006 levels in the near term.

The ultimate cost of our environmental lidldgs cannot presently be projected with certathig to the presence of several unknown factors,
primarily the level of contamination, the effectiess of selected remediation methods, the stagmpgement’s investigation at individual sites
and the recoverability of such costs from thirdtigar Based upon information presently available bslieve that the ultimate disposition of these
matters, although potentially material to the ressaf operations in any single year, will not haveaterial adverse effect on Ryder’s financial
condition or liquidity. See Note 24, “Environmenbaatters,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financi@t&ments for further discussion.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estiesaand assumptions. Our significant
accounting policies are described in the NotesdnsGlidated Financial Statements. Certain of tipedieies require the application of subjective
or complex judgments, often as a result of the neadake estimates about the effect of mattersateinherently uncertain. These estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experiencegelsan the business environment and other fathatsve believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Different estimates that could Hmeen applied in the current period or changeseratitounting estimates that are reasonably
likely can result in a material impact on Rydeitgahcial condition and operating results in therenr and future periods. We periodically review
the development, selection and disclosure of thgtieal accounting estimates with Ryder’'s Auditr@mittee.

The following discussion, which should bed@&aconjunction with the descriptions in the Note<onsolidated Financial Statements, is
furnished for additional insight into certain acoting estimates that we consider to be critical.

Depreciation and Residual Value Guarante#&® periodically review and adjust the residual ealand useful lives of revenue earning
equipment of our FMS business segment as desdrikiédte 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Padis — Revenue Earning Equipment,
Operating Property and Equipment and Depreciataom’ “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies —edtdual Value Guarantees and
Deferred Gains,” in the Notes to Consolidated Fom@rStatements. Reductions in residual values ¢he price at which we ultimately expect to
dispose of revenue earning equipment) or usefatlivill result in an increase in depreciation exggeover the life of the equipment. We review
residual values and useful lives of revenue earamqgpment on an annual basis or more often if é@genecessary for specific groups of our
revenue earning equipment. Reviews are performseldoan vehicle class, generally subcategoriesioké; tractors and trailers by weight and
usage. We consider factors such
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as current and expected future market price trendssed vehicles, expected life of vehicles inctlihethe fleet and extent of alternative uses for
leased vehicles (e.qg., rental fleet, and SCS an@ Bgplications). As a result, future depreciatigpense rates are subject to change based upon
changes in these factors. At the end of 2006, wepteted our annual review of the residual valuab aseful lives of revenue earning equipment.
Based on the results of our analysis, we will adjos residual values and useful lives of certdaisses of revenue earning equipment on
January 1, 2007, which will cause depreciation egpean 2007 to decrease by approximately $11 miliompared with 2006. Based on the mix
of revenue earning equipment at December 31, 2006% decrease in expected vehicle residual valoetd increase depreciation expense in
2007 by approximately $80 million.

Ryder also leases vehicles under operatimsglagreements. Certain of these agreements ctimaéd guarantees for a portion of the resic
values of the equipment. Results of the reviewsrilesd above for owned equipment are also apptieshtipment under operating lease. The
amount of residual value guarantees expected paiokis recognized as rent expense over the expeeteaining term of the lease. At
December 31, 2006, total liabilities for residualue guarantees of $2 million were included in “Amd expenses and other current
liabilities” (for those payable in less than onegeand in “Other non-current liabilities.” Whileeabelieve that the amounts are adequate, change:
to management’s estimates of residual value gueeanhay occur due to changes in the market for usgidles, the condition of the vehicles at
the end of the lease and inherent limitations eektimation process. Based on the existing muebfcles under operating lease agreements at
December 31, 2006, a 10% decrease in expectedeebgidual values would increase rent expens®@7 dy approximately $1 million.

Pension PlansRyder sponsors several defined benefit plans cogearmiost employees. These plans generally providecipants with benefits
based on years of service and career-average caatpmmlevels. We apply actuarial methods to deitegrthe annual net periodic pension
expense and pension plan liabilities on an annasisbor on an interim basis if there is an evequiring remeasurement. Each December, we
review actual experience compared with the moreifségint assumptions used and make adjustmentsrtagsumptions, if warranted. In
determining our annual estimate of periodic pensiast, we are required to make an evaluation titatifactors such as discount rate, expected
long-term rate of return, expected increase in @msption levels, retirement rate and mortality cDist rates are based upon a duration analysis
of expected benefit payments and the equivalenigeeyield for high quality corporate fixed incomgestments as of our December 31 annual
measurement date. In order to provide a more atcestimate of the discount rate relevant to oanplve use models that match projected
benefits payments of our primary U.S. plan to caigand maturities from a hypothetical portfolichagh quality corporate bonds. Long-term rate
of return assumptions are based on actuarial regfeyur asset allocation strategy and long-termeetgd asset returns. Investment management
and other fees paid using plan assets are factot@the determination of asset return assumptidhe.composition of our pension assets was
77% equity securities and 23% debt securities dneronvestments. The rate of increase in companskvels is reviewed with the actuaries
based upon actual experience. Retirement ratesaael primarily on actual plan experience, whimdard actuarial tables are used to estimate
mortality.

Accounting guidance applicable to pensiompldoes not require immediate recognition of ttieot$ of a deviation between these
assumptions and actual experience or the revidian estimate. This approach allows the favorabtewanfavorable effects that fall within an
acceptable range to be netted and recorded witbouulated Other Comprehensive Loss beginning Dbeeil, 2006. Previously, these
amounts were not recorded. We have an actuarisiob$318 million at the end of 2006 compared witloss of $428 million at the end of 2005.
The decrease in the net actuarial loss in 2008teskfrom actuarial gains associated with an ineeda discount rates and plan assets earning a
rate of return above the assumed rates. To thetetkte amount of all actuarial gains and lossegedd 0% of the larger of the benefit obligation
or plan assets, such amount is amortized oventbeage remaining service life of
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active participants. The amount of the actuaris$lsubject to amortization in 2007 will be $165lignl. The effect on years beyond 2007 will
depend substantially upon the actual experienceioplans.

Disclosure of the significant assumptionsduisearriving at the 2006 net pension expensedsgmted in Note 23, “Employee Benefit Plais,”
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsemsisivity analysis of projected 2007 net pensigpense to changes in key underlying
assumptions for our primary plan, the U.S. pengian, is presented below.

Effect on
Impact on 2007 Nel December 31, 200!
Assumed Rate Change Pension Expenst Projected Benefit Obligation

Discount rate increase 5.73% + 0.25% - $6 million - $39 million
Discount rate decreast 5.73% -0.25% + $5 million + $39 million
Expected lon¢-term rate of return on

assets 8.50% +/- 0.25% -/+ $3 million
Rate of increase in compensation leve 4.00% +/- 0.50% +/- $1 million

Self-Insurance Accrual®Ve use a variety of statistical and actuarial meéshthat are widely used and accepted in the insarandustry to
estimate amounts for claims that have been repbréedot paid and claims incurred but not reportedpplying these methods and assessing
their results, we consider such factors as frequand severity of claims, claim development andnpent patterns and changes in the nature of
our business, among other factors. Such factorarablyzed for each of our business segments. Gmiamal basis, third-party actuaries perform a
separate analysis of our self-insurance accrualsefsonableness. Our estimates may be impacteddbyfactors as increases in the market price
for medical services, unpredictability of the safgury awards and limitations inherent in the esttion process. While we believe that self-
insurance accruals are adequate, there can besamase that changes to our estimates may not.d8ased on self-insurance accruals at
December 31, 2006, a 5% adverse change in acte#ial loss estimates would increase operating esg@ 2007 by approximately $13 millic

Goodwill ImpairmentWe assess goodwill for impairment, as describeddte 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” in the Notes to Céidated Financial Statements, on an annual bagsisooe often if deemed necessary. To
determine whether goodwill impairment indicatorgsgxve are required to assess the fair valueefdporting unit and compare it to the carrying
value. A reporting unit is a component of an ogagasegment for which discrete financial informatis available and management regularly
reviews its operating performance. Our valuatiofaafvalue for each reporting unit is determinedéd on a discounted future cash flow model.
Estimates of future cash flows are dependent orkwowledge and experience about past and curremtgwand assumptions about conditions we
expect to exist. These assumptions are based omber of factors including future operating perfamoe, economic conditions and actions we
expect to take. In addition to these factors, diiBSeporting units are dependent on several ketpeigss or industry sectors. The loss of a key
customer may have a significant impact to one of@S reporting units, causing us to assess whethest the event resulted in a goodwiill
impairment loss. For example, the profitability arsduation of fair value for our SCS — U.K. repadiunit is dependent in large part to several
significant customer contracts. While we believe estimates of future cash flows are reasonabéggtban be no assurance that deterioration in
economic conditions, customer relationships or estvehanges to expectations of future performanaet occur, resulting in a goodwill
impairment loss. Our annual impairment test, penfedt as of April 1, 2006, did not result in any inmpeent of goodwill. At December 31, 2006,
goodwill totaled $159 million.

Revenue Recognitiom the normal course of business, we may act as®ian agent in executing transactions with outloousrs. The
accounting issue encountered in these arrangensentether we
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should report revenue based on the gross amouled il the customer or on the net amount receikad the customer after payments to third
parties. To the extent revenues are recorded o0s3 tpasis, any payments to third parties are decoas expenses so that the net amount is
reflected in net earnings. Accordingly, the impactnet earnings is the same whether we record veven a gross or net basis.

Determining whether revenue should be replasegross or net is based on an assessment dfexhet are acting as the principal or the a
in the transaction and involves judgment basechertérms of the arrangement. To the extent weahegaas the principal in the transaction,
revenue is reported on a gross basis. To the ewterstre acting as an agent in the transactionprteves reported on a net basis. In the majority of
our arrangements, we are acting as a principattar@fore report revenue on a gross basis. HoweuelSCS business segment engages in some
transactions where we act as agents and thus reeegdue on a net basis.

In transportation management arrangementsenlie act as principal, revenue is reported oroaggbasis for subcontracted transportation
billed to our customers. As a result of enteringy ia management subcontracted transportation aimtr2005, under which we have determined
we are acting as principal, the amount of managedantracted transportation expense and correspgmdienue has increased significantly.
From time to time, the terms and conditions of tmansportation management arrangements may chasizh could require a change in revenue
recognition from a gross basis to a net basisa@# versa. Our measure of operating revenue woulbenonpacted by a change in revenue
reporting.

Income TaxeRyder’s overall tax position is complex and regsiicareful analysis by management to estimate theated realization of
income tax assets and liabilities.

Tax regulations require items to be inclu@ethe tax return at different times than the iteans reflected in the financial statements. As a
result, the effective tax rate reflected in thafinial statements is different than that reponetthé tax return. Some of these differences are
permanent, such as expenses that are not dedumtilthes tax return, and some are timing differensesh as depreciation expense. Timing
differences create deferred tax assets and liasiliDeferred tax assets generally represent ithatcan be used as a tax deduction or creditein th
tax return in future years for which we have alseegtorded the tax benefit in the financial stateteeDeferred tax assets amounted to
$238 million and $235 million at December 31, 2@D@& 2005, respectively. We record a valuation aloee for deferred tax assets to reduce
assets to amounts expected to be realized. At Disee8i, 2006 and 2005, the deferred tax valuatiomance, principally attributed to foreign
tax loss carryforwards in the SCS business segmest $13 million and $12 million, respectively.datermining the required level of valuation
allowance, we consider whether it is more likelgrtiot that all or some portion of deferred tavetswill not be realized. This assessment is
based on management’s expectations as to whetfiieiesut taxable income of an appropriate charaetdlrbe realized within tax carryback and
carryforward periods. Our assessment involves eséisnand assumptions about matters that are irthevecertain, and unanticipated events or
circumstances could cause actual results to diffen these estimates. Should we change our estiofidtee amount of deferred tax assets that we
would be able to realize, an adjustment to theatadu allowance would result in an increase or ease to the provision for income taxes in the
period such a change in estimate was made.

We are subject to tax audits in numerousglictions in the U.S. and around the world. Taxisuay their very nature are often complex and
can require several years to complete. In the nloco&se of business, we are subject to challefrges the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and
other tax authorities regarding amounts of taxes @hese challenges may alter the timing or amofitetxable income or deductions, or the
allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. Astpe our calculation of the provision for inconsxés on earnings, we record the amount we
expect to incur as a result of audits. Such acsmegjuire management to make estimates and judgmathtrespect to the ultimate outcome of a
tax audit. Actual results could vary materiallyrfrdhese estimates.
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As discussed in Note 14, “Income Taxes,hi@ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsebriary 2005 we resolved all issues with the
IRS related to the 1998 and 2000 tax period, irioyéhterest and penalties. In connection withréeolution of this audit, on February 22, 2005
we paid $176 million (after utilization of all avable federal net operating losses and alternativemum tax credit carryforwards), including
interest through the date of payment. In 2005)JR& began auditing our federal income tax retuon001 to 2003. We believe that Ryder has
not entered into any other transactions since 2080raise the same type of issues identified ByIRS in its most recent audit.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1, “Summary of Significant AccougtPolicies — Recent Accounting PronouncementsthéinNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of recent accountingqamcements.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includesoimhiation extracted from consolidated financial mfiation but not required by generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be presgbint the financial statements. Certain of thisinfation are considered “ndBAAP financial
measures” as defined by SEC rules. Specificallyrefer to operating revenue, salaries and emplogizged costs as a percentage of operating
revenue, FMS operating revenue, FMS NBT as a %pefaiing revenue, SCS operating revenue, SCS NBiI%a®f operating revenue, DCC
operating revenue, DCC NBT as a % of operatingmegetotal cash generated, free cash flow, totidjations, total obligations to equity, and
comparable earnings from continuing operations@mdparable earnings per diluted common share framtirtcuing operations excluding net tax
benefits, pension accounting charge and gain encfdieadquarter complex. We believe that the coalgi@ earnings from continuing operations
and comparable earnings per diluted common shane ¢ontinuing operations measures provide usefatrimation to investors because they
exclude significant items that are unrelated toangoing business operations. As required by SH&S rwe provide a reconciliation of each non-
GAAP financial measure to the most comparable GAwdasure and an explanation why management belileaepresentation of the non-GAAP
financial measure provides useful information teeistors. Non-GAAP financial measures should beidensd in addition to, but not as a
substitute for or superior to, other measuresrwricial performance prepared in accordance with BAA

The following table provides a numerical necitiation of earnings from continuing operatiomsla@arnings per diluted common share from
continuing operations excluding net tax benefiengion accounting charge and gain on sale of heatsuicomplex to comparable earnings from
continuing
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operations and comparable earnings per diluted camshare from continuing operations for DecembeRB0D6, 2005 and 2004, which was not
provided within the MD&A discussion:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per sh
amounts)
Earnings from continuing operatio $248,95¢ 227,62¢ 215,60¢
Net tax benefit: (6,79¢) (7,627) (9,22))
Pension accounting char 3,72( — —
Gain on sale of headquarter comp — — (15,409
Comparable earnings from continuing operati $245,88: 220,00: 190,97¢
Earnings per diluted common share from continuipgrations $ 4.04 3.5 3.2¢
Net tax benefit: (0.17) (0.12) (0.19
Pension accounting char 0.0€ — —
Gain on sale of headquarter comp — — (0.29)
Comparable earnings per diluted common share fremirtuing operation $  3.9¢ 3.41 2.91

The following table provides a numerical necitiation of total revenue to operating revenueDecember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, which
was not provided within the MD&A discussion:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Total revenue $ 6,306,64. 5,740,84 5,150,27!

Fuel services and subcontracted transportatiomre (2,040,45) (1,694,579 (1,227,18)

Fuel eliminations 188,04 164,61: 118,80¢

Operating revenu $ 4,454,23, 4,210,88: 4,041,89i

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements (within the megrofithe Federal Private Securities Litigation RefdAct of 1995) are statements that relate to
expectations, beliefs, projections, future pland sinategies, anticipated events or trends conogmiatters that are not historical facts. These
statements are often preceded by or include thewirelieve,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “ardipate,” “will,” “may,” “could,” “should” or
similar expressions. This Annual Report contaimgvéod-looking statements including, but not limited statements regarding:

" u ” ” ”ow

* our expectations as to anticipated revenue andregrtrends and future economic conditic

e our ability to improve our competitive advargagy leveraging our vehicle buying power, reduciegicle downtime, providing
innovative broa-based supply chain solutions and increasing ouomey’ competitive positions

» the impact of the restructuring activities and gttownitiatives on our FMS business segmi

* our ability to successfully achieve the openadil goals that are the basis of our businessegiest, including offering competitive pricing,
diversifying our customer base, optimizing ass#ization, leveraging the expertise of our varidussiness segments, serving our
customer’ global needs and expanding our support serv

» impact of losses from conditional obligations argsfrom guarantee:

55




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

number of NLE vehicles in inventory over the neant;

our belief as to the adequacy of our insurammerages and self-insurance accruals, fundingcsswand the effectiveness of our interest
and foreign currency exchange rate risk managepregrams

our relationship with our employee

our belief that we can continue to realize Bigant savings from our cost management initisgie@d process improvement actions, and
that such initiatives and actions will mitigateqimnig pressures from our SCS custom

estimates of free cash flow and capital expendstfwe 2007;

the adequacy of our accounting estimates asetves for pension expense, depreciation and @sidiue guarantees, self-insurance
reserves, goodwill impairment, accounting changesiacome taxes, and the future impact of FIN

our belief that we have not entered into arfeotransactions since 2000 that raise the sangedfjssues identified by the IRS in their
audit of the 1998 to 2000 tax peric

our ability to fund all of our operations for theréseeable future through internally generatedswamd! outside funding sources; ¢
the anticipated impact of fuel price fluctuatiomslaost of environmental liabilitie
the anticipated impact of ongoing legal proceedi

our expectations as to future pension expendecantributions, as well as the effect of the Zeef the U.S. pension plan on our benefit
funding requirements

the anticipated income tax impact of the -kind exchange prograr

our ability to mitigate the impact of adverse downs in specific sectors of the economy througharusr diversification

These statements, as well as other forwasklihg statements contained in this Annual Repaet amsed on our current plans and expectations
and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assangptWe caution readers that certain importartbfaccould cause actual results and events to
differ significantly from those expressed in anyard-looking statements. For a detailed descriptibcertain of these risk factors, please see
“Item 1A. Risk Factors” of this Annual Report.

The risks included in this Annual Report aot exhaustive. New risk factors emerge from timérhe and it is not possible for management to
predict all such risk factors or to assess the ahphsuch risk factors on our business. As a tegolassurance can be given as to our futurets
or achievements. You should not place undue rediamcthe forward-looking statements contained hekehich speak only as of the date of this
Annual Report. We do not intend, or assume anygahibn, to update or revise any forward-lookingestzents contained in this Annual Report,
whether as a result of new information, future ¢sem otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The information required by ITEM 7A is incled in ITEM 7 (pages 48 through 50) of PART Il ofstheport.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page No.
Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repay 58
Report of Independent Registered Certified Pubbcdunting Firm —
PricewaterhouseCoopers LI 59
Report of Independent Registered Certified Pubcdunting Firm— KPMG LLP 61
Consolidated Statements of Earnit 62
Consolidated Balance She 63
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 64
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol’ Equity 65
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Polic 66
Note 2. Accounting Changt 73
Note 3. Discontinued Operatio 76
Note 4. Acquisition: 76
Note 5. Restructuring and Other Charges (Recosk 77
Note 6. Receivable 8C
Note 7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current A 8C
Note 8. Revenue Earning Equipm: 8C
Note 9. Operating Property and Equipm 81
Note 10. Goodwil 81
Note 11. Intangible Asse 82
Note 12. Direct Financing Leases and Other As 82
Note 13. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabili 83
Note 14. Income Taxe 84
Note 15. Lease 87
Note 16. Deb 89
Note 17. Financial Instruments and Risk Manager 92
Note 18. Guarantee 93
Note 19. Shareholde’ Equity 95
Note 20. Accumulated Other Comprehensive L 96
Note 21. Earnings Per Share Informat 96
Note 22. SharBased Compensation Pla 97
Note 23. Employee Benefit Pla 10C
Note 24. Environmental Matte 11C
Note 25. Other Matter 11C
Note 26. Segment Reportil 111
Note 27. Quarterly Information (unaudite 11t

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule for thary Ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 20
Schedule I Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 11€

All other schedules are omitted because #neynot applicable or the required informationhiewven in the consolidated financial statements or
notes thereto.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

Management of Ryder System, Inc., togethdhn it6 consolidated subsidiaries (Ryder), is resjiga for establishing and maintaining adeq;
internal control over financial reporting as defirie Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Se¢iesrExchange Act of 1934. Ryder’s internal
control over financial reporting is designed to\pde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifynancial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external psgs in accordance with accounting principles gglyesiccepted in the United States of
America.

Ryder’s internal control over financial refiog includes those policies and procedures thapéttain to the maintenance of records that, asoeable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaies and dispositions of the assets of Ryder; (@)ige reasonable assurance that transactions ced ezl
as necessary to permit preparation of financiaéstants in accordance with generally accepted atecmuprinciples, and that our receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordanceauthorizations of Ryder's management and directord (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized astion, use or disposition of Ryder’s assets timtld have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness ofrRyidéernal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2006. In making this assesst
management used the criteria set forth by the Cdatmendf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwagn@dssion in “Internal Control —
Integrated Framework.” Based on our assessmenthasé criteria, management determined that Rydérteiaed effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006.

Ryder’s independent registered certified mudtcounting firm has audited management’s assa#sof the effectiveness of Ryder’s internal
control over financial reporting. Their report appeon pages 59 through 60.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTING FIRM
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

We have completed an integrated audit of R@Eystem, Inc’s. 2006 consolidated financial staetas and of its internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 in accordande tvé standards of the Public Company Accountingr€ght Board (United States). Our
opinions, based on our audit, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial stement schedule

In our opinion, the accompanying consoliddiatince sheet as of December 31, 2006 and thedalansolidated statement of earnings,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the ykantended present fairly, in all material respebts financial position of Ryder System, Inc. and
its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006, and thdtsesfitheir operations and their cash flows fa ylear then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica. In addition, in our opinion, the 2006dncial statement schedule listed in the
accompanying index presents fairly, in all mater@gspects, the information set forth therein wheadrin conjunction with the related consolide
financial statements. These financial statemerdsfiaancial statement schedule are the resportyilofithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements and financial statement schésged on our audit. We conducted our audit of
these statements in accordance with the standattle ®ublic Company Accounting Oversight Board ifglh States). Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonasdeirance about whether the financial statemeates of material misstatement. An audit of
financial statements includes examining, on alasts, evidence supporting the amounts and disessn the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemathdial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis foopurion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidatedricial statements, in 2006 the Company changedetiods of accounting for share-based
compensation and pension and other postretirenans p

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessniecitided in the accompanying Management’s RePartnternal Control Over Financial
Reporting, that the Company maintained effectiterimal control over financial reporting as of De@@®m31, 2006 based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuedhsy €ommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadweay Commission (COSO0), is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on thassier Furthermore, in our opinion, the Companyintened, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2006, based on criteria establishedt@rial Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the COSO. The Company’s management is respengibmaintaining effective internal control ovardncial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting. Our responsibility is to expressnipns on management’s assessment and on the
effectiveness of the Company'’s internal controlrdi@ancial reporting based on our audit. We conddour audit of internal control over
financial reporting in accordance with the standafithe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@tdited States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabt;nassurance about whether effective internarabover financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. An audit of internal gohbver financial reporting includes obtaining@mderstanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessmentigesmtd evaluating the design and operating effeniss of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we consider necessdrg tirtumstances. We believe that our audit prevadesasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reasersgdurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetrséor
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external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A compasyhternal control over financial reporting inclsdbose
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to themeaiance of records that, in reasonable detaiyrately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (iivfgle reasonable assurance that transactions aredegtas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generalfepted accounting principles, and that receiptsespenditures of the company are being n
only in accordance with authorizations of manageraed directors of the company; and (iii) providasonable assurance regarding preventis
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usegisposition of the company’s assets that coakkha material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

February 12, 2007
Miami, Florida
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTING FIRM

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidaatmhce sheet of Ryder System, Inc. and subsidias of December 31, 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of earnings, shareholdqtsty, and cash flows for each of the years inttfeyear period ended December 31, 2005. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated fiicial statements, we also have audited the coraelidfinancial statement schedule listed in the
accompanying index, in so far as it relates to 2@@% 2004. These consolidated financial staten@rdshe consolidated financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to express an opioin these consolidated financial
statements and consolidated financial statememtdsdta based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaieinents are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, exddesupporting the amounts and disclosures initlaadial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asairagj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatements referred to above present fairly, in aterial respects, the financial position of Ryder
System, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 315,2dhd the results of their operations and theshdlows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles. Adsour opinion, the related consolidated
financial statement schedule, in so far as it esla 2005 and 2004, when considered in relatidghedasic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mate®apects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in the notes to consolidateahfifal statements, the Company changed its methadcounting for conditional asset retirement
obligations in 2005.

/sl KPMG LLP

February 15, 2006
Miami, Florida

61




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share amot
Revenue $6,306,64. 5,740,84 5,150,27:
Operating expense (exclusive of items shown seglgi: 2,722,59. 2,572,24. 2,305,32.
Salaries and employ-related cost 1,397,39. 1,262,16! 1,233,03!
Subcontracted transportati 865,47" 638,31¢ 424,99:
Depreciation expens 743,28t 740,41! 706,02¢
Gains on vehicle sales, r (50,76€) (47,099 (34,50
Equipment rente 103,297 102,81¢ 108,46¢
Interest expens 140,56 120,47 100,11
Miscellaneous income, n (11,737 (8,949 (6,625)
Restructuring and other charges (recoveries) 3,564 3,37¢ (17,679
5,913,67! 5,383,75! 4,819,15i

Earnings from continuing operations before income$ 392,97¢ 357,08t 331,12.
Provision for income taxe 144,01 129,46( 115,51:
Earnings from continuing operatio 248,95¢ 227,62¢ 215,60¢
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of — 1,741 —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principlet of tax — (2,440 —

Net earning $_248,95¢ 226,92 215,60
Earnings per common she— Basic:

Continuing operation $ 4.0¢ 3.57 3.3¢

Discontinued operatior — 0.0 —

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — (0.09 —

Net earnings $ 4.0¢ 3.5¢€ 3.3t
Earnings per common she— Diluted:

Continuing operation $ 4.04 3.5 3.2¢

Discontinued operatior — 0.0z —

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — (0.09 —

Net earning $ 4.04 3.52 3.2¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financaatistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets:
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, ne
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Total current asse
Revenue earning equipment, net of accumulated diggien of
$2,825,876 and $2,862,998, respectiv
Operating property and equipment, net of accumdldépreciation of $778,550 and
$748,604, respective
Goodwill
Intangible assetl
Direct financing leases and other as:
Total asset

Liabilities and shareholde’ equity:
Current liabilities:
Shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term deb:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Total current liabilities
Long-term deb!
Other nor-current liabilities
Deferred income taxe
Total liabilities
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock of no par value per share — authdri3,800,917; none outstanding,
December 31, 2006 or 20!
Common stock of $0.50 par value per share — autbdri400,000,000; outstanding,
2006— 60,721,528; 200— 61,869,47:
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Deferred compensatic
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financadtstents.
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December 3:
2006 2005

(Dollars in thousand:s

except per share amoul
$ 128,63¢ 128,72
883,47¢ 820,82!
59,31¢ 59,57¢
190,38: 154,62
1,261,811 1,163,75!
4,509,33: 3,794,411
498,96¢ 486,80:
159,24 155,78¢
14,38 22,46:
385,17¢ 410,05(
$6,828,92. 6,033,26-
$ 332,74! 269,43t
515,12: 414,33t
419,75¢ 569,72:
1,267,62. 1,253,49!
2,484,109 1,915,92
449,15¢ 487,26¢
907,16¢ 849,11
5,108,14. 4,505,80:!
30,22( 30,93¢
713,26¢ 666,67+
1,123,78! 1,038,36-
— (5,599
(146,499 (202,91
1,720,77! 1,527,45
$6,828,92. 6,033,26-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earning: $ 248,95¢ 226,92¢ 215,60¢
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — 2,44( —
Depreciation expens 743,28t 740,41! 706,02¢
Gains on vehicle sales, r (50,76¢) (47,099 (34,509
Share-based compensation expel 13,64 3,12¢ 1,90z
Amortization expense and other I-cash charges (credits), r 14,10¢ 11,23: (29,169
Deferred income tax expense (bene 76,23t (24,910) 9,81¢
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic 5,40¢ 5,67( 21,07:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, naecqfiisitions
Receivable: (58,30¢) (81,97)) (71,037
Inventories 51& (564) (4,137)
Prepaid expenses and other as (16,687) 10,72« (14,86%)
Accounts payabl 32,64( 51,08¢ 5,72¢
Accrued expenses and other -current liabilities (155,44) (118,019 50,40(
Net cash provided by operating activit 853,58 779,06: 866,84
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in commercial paper borrowil 328,64: 188,27: 79,03:
Debt proceed 670,56¢ 762,12: 282,15:
Debt repaid, including capital lease obligatis (378,519 (543,93) (456,93))
Dividends on common stoc (43,957 (40,929 (38,73))
Common stock issue 61,59: 28,29¢ 87,74:
Common stock repurchas (159,05() (152,32¢) (149,02¢)
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 8,92¢ — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 488,20:. 241 ,50! (195,760
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and revenue earning equig (1,695,06) (1,399,37) (1,092,15)
Sales of operating property and equipn 6,57¢ 6,96: 42,83¢
Sales of revenue earning equipm 326,07¢ 326,75: 288,67«
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equip — — 118,53:
Acquisitions (4,119 (15,110) (148,79))
Collections on direct finance leas 66,27« 70,40¢ 63,79¢
Changes in restricted ca (41,469 21,51 6,487
Other, nel 2,168 — 512
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,339,55) (988,859 (720,119
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (2,32%) (3,956€) 9,36¢
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equive (88) 27,75¢ (39,65¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at Janue 128,72 100,97: 140,62
Cash and cash equivalents at Decembe $ 128,63 128,72 100,97:
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest $ 138,43 116,86: 101,15:;
Income taxes, net of refun 145,39¢ 289,61t 21,40¢
Non-cash investing activitie:
Changes in accounts payable related to purchasev@&fiue earning equipmt 64,45: 11,59: 72,46
Revenue earning equipment acquired under capéakk 2,29t 43: 54,09

See accompanying notes to consolidated financad¢stents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Balance at January 1, 20

Components of comprehensive incor
Net earning:
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment,tre tax of
$(2,186)
Unrealized gain related to derivatives accountedfohedge
Total comprehensive incon
Common stock dividends declar— $0.60 per shar
Common stock issued under employee stock optiorstouk
purchase plan®)
Benefit plan stock saldé®
Common stock repurchas
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic
Amortization and forfeiture of nonvested stc
Balance at December 31, 2004

Components of comprehensive incor
Net earning:
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment,tre tax of
$(16,076)
Unrealized loss related to derivatives accounted@$ohedge
Total comprehensive incon
Common stock dividends declar— $0.64 per shar
Common stock issued under employee stock optiorstuk
purchase plan®)
Benefit plan stock purchas®
Common stock repurchas
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic
Amortization and forfeiture of nonvested stc
Balance at December 31, 20
Components of comprehensive incor
Net earning:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment,trf tax of
$(100,385)
Unrealized gain related to derivatives accountedfohedge
Total comprehensive income
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of tax of $(83,8:
Common stock dividends declar— $0.72 per shar
Common stock issued under employee stock optiorstouk
purchase plan®)
Benefit plan stock sale@)
Common stock repurchas
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic
Shar+based compensatic
Adoption of SFAS No. 123I
Balance at December 31, 20

Preferres Accumulatec
Stock Common Stocl Additional Other
Paid-In Retained Deferred Comprehensive
Amount  Shares Par Capital Earnings Compensatiol Loss Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amot
$ — 64,487,48 $32,24¢ 593,84: 897,84: (2,887%) (176,65¢) 1,344,38!
— — — — 215,60¢ — — 215,60¢
— — — — — — 27,98 27,98
— — — — — — (1,072 (1,072
— — — — — — 324 324
242,84:
— — — — (38,73) — — (38,737
—  3,538,23! 1,76¢ 88,69 — (3,617 — 86,84¢
— 20,94¢ 10 884 — — — 894
— (3,714,55) (1,85) (35,93) (111,23) — — (149,02¢)
— — — 21,07: — — — 21,07:
— (21,259 (11) (407) — 2,32( — 1,907
— 64,310,85 32,15¢ 668,15: 963,48. (4,180 (149,42) 1,510,18:
— — — — 226,92¢ — — 226,92¢
_ _ — — — — (21,029 (21,029
— — — — — — (32,169 (32,169
— — — — — — (305) (308)
173,43:
— — — — (40,929 — — (40,929
— 1,258,585 62¢ 33,31¢ — (5,64¢€) — 28,29¢
— (12,649 (6) (369) — — — (375)
— (3,659,05) (1,829 (39,00 (111,119 — — (151,957)
— — — 5,67(C — — — 5,67(
— (28,239 (14) (1,090 — 4,22¢ — 3,12¢
— 61,869,47 30,93¢ 666,67+ 1,038,36. (5,599 (202,919 1,527,45
— — — — 248,95¢ — — 248,95¢
— — — — — — 29,11¢ 29,11¢
— — — — — — 178,08: 178,08:
— — — — — — 224 224
456,38:
— — — — — — (150,999 (150,999
= — — — (43,957 — = (43,95
—  2,240,38I 1,10¢ 60,33¢ — — — 61,44¢
— 4,75¢€ 2 142 — — — 14&
—  (3,393,08) (1,697 (37,77¢) (119,57 — — (159,05()
— — — 15,71( — — — 15,71(
— — — 13,64: — — — 13,64
— — (129) (5,469 — 5,59¢ — —
$ — 60,721,52 $30,22( 713,26« 1,123,78 — (146,499 1,720,77

(1) Net of common shares delivered as payment forx@ecise price or to satisfy the option holc’ withholding tax liability upon exercise of optien
(2) Represents op-market transactions of common shares by the trusit®yde’s deferred compensation plai

See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#tistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inclimeaccounts of Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) andrgities in which Ryder has a controlling
voting interest (“subsidiaries”) and variable st entities (“VIES”) where Ryder is determinedtothe primary beneficiary. Ryder is deemed to
be the primary beneficiary if we bear a majoritytlod risk to the entities’ potential losses or dtemgain from a majority of the entities’ expected
returns. All significant intercompany accounts arhsactions between consolidated companies hareddeninated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated finanstatements requires management to make estimadessaumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statementsaccompanying notes. These estimates are basedmagement’ best knowledge of historic
trends, actions that we may take in the future,@hdr information available when the consoliddtedncial statements are prepared. Changes in
estimates are recognized in accordance with theusting rules for the estimate, which is typicaliythe period when new information becomes
available. Areas where the nature of the estimatkenit reasonably possible that actual resultsccmadterially differ from the amounts estimated
include: depreciation and residual value guaranteployee benefit plan obligations, self-insuraaceruals, impairment assessments on long-
lived assets (including goodwill and indefinitediy intangible assets), revenue recognition, inctamdiabilities and contingent liabilities.

Cash Equivalents

Cash in excess of current operating requirgsnis invested in short-term, interdmtaring instruments with maturities of three morthtess a
the date of purchase and are stated at cost, vapicioximates market value.

Restricted Cash

We account for restricted cash consistintheffollowing: (1) cash proceeds from the saleligfitde vehicles set aside for the acquisition of
replacement vehicles under our like-kind exchamgeprogram, and (2) cash from a vehicle securitimgtrogram in the form of a cash collection
account which holds cash for payment of the reldtdst obligations and a cash reserve deposit wdeckes as collateral for borrowings under the
arrangement. See Note 14, “Income Taxes,” for apteta discussion of the like-kind exchange tax prog We classify restricted cash within
“Prepaid expenses and other current assets” ifetbteiction is expected to expire in the twelve thsrfollowing the balance sheet date or within
“Direct financing leases and other assets” if th&tniction is expected to expire more than twelwnths after the balance sheet date. The changes
in restricted cash balances are reflected as asiimg activity in our Consolidated Statements a$IiCFlows as they relate to investing activities
for the sales and purchases of revenue earningmeuit and the vehicle securitization program.

Revenue Recognitior

We generate revenue through the lease, ranthinaintenance of revenue earning equipmentemétss rendered under service contracts
recognize revenue when persuasive evidence ofrangement exists, the services have been rendematomers or delivery has occurred, the
pricing is fixed or determinable, and collectihjlis reasonably assured. We are required to malgnjents about whether pricing is fixed or
determinable and whether or not collectibility éasonably assured.

Revenue is recorded on a gross basis, witthediicting third-party services costs, when weaatiag as a principal with substantial risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue is recorded on hasas, after deducting third-party services cogten we are acting as an agent without
substantial risks and rewards
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

of ownership. Sales tax collected from custometsramitted to the applicable taxing authoritieagsounted for on a net basis, with no impact on
revenues.

In addition to the aforementioned generalgyplthe following are the specific revenue recaigmi policies for our reportable business
segments by major revenue arrangement:

Fleet Management Solutions (FM

Revenue from leases and rental agreemedts/en by the classification of the arrangemengittser an operating or direct finance lease under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFA&)13, “Accounting for Leases.”

» The majority of our leases and all of our réagreements are classified as operating leasethanefore we recognize revenue on a
straight-line basis as vehicles are used overetieg of the related agreements. Lease and remegragnts do not usually provide for
scheduled rent increases or escalations. Howeaselagreements allow for rate changes based bpoges in the Consumer Price
Index (CPI). Lease and rental agreements also gedorr a fixed per-mile charge plus a fixed timargfe. The fixed per-mile charge, the
fixed time charge and the changes in rates at&ibtd changes in the CPI are considered contingaiels and recognized as earr

« Direct financing lease revenue is recognizedgithe effective interest method, which provideastant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding investment on the lea

Revenue from maintenance service contragecisgnized on a straight-line basis as maintenaecdces are rendered over the terms of the
related agreements. Contract maintenance agreealwsfor rate changes based upon changes in ieMaintenance agreements also provide
for a fixed per-mile charge. The fixed per-mile @mand the changes in rates attributed to changée CPI are recognized as earned.

Revenue from fuel services is recognized whehis delivered to customers.

Supply Chain Solutions (SCS) and Dedicated Conttactiage (DCC)

Revenue from service contracts is recogn@&eservices are rendered in accordance with canénans, which typically include discrete billi
rates for the services.

Accounts Receivable Allowanci

We maintain an allowance for uncollectiblstouner receivables and billing adjustments relttezkrtain discounts and billing corrections.
Estimates for credit losses and billing adjustmenésupdated regularly based on historical expeei@f bad debts and billing adjustments
processed, current collection trends and agingyaisalAccounts are charged against the allowananwiletermined to be uncollectible. The
allowance is maintained at a level deemed apprpbiased on loss experience and other factorstiaffecollectibility.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist primarily of fuétes and vehicle parts, are valued using the tafieost (specific identification or average cast)
market.

Revenue Earning Equipment, Operating Property and Huipment, and Depreciation

Revenue earning equipment, comprised of \ehiand operating property and equipment aredstdteost inclusive of vendor rebates.
Revenue earning equipment and operating propetyegnipment under capital lease are stated abtherlof the present value of minimum lease
payments or fair value.
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The cost of vehicle replacement tires and tire irege expensed as incurred. Vehicle repairs amdtanance that extend the life or increase the
value of a vehicle are capitalized, whereas orginaaintenance and repairs are expensed as inclviredtt costs incurred in connection with
developing or obtaining internal-use software angitalized. Costs incurred during the preliminargject stage, as well as maintenance and
training costs, are expensed as incurred.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated dveshorter of their estimated useful lives or gventof the related lease, which may include one
or more option renewal periods where failure toreise such options would result in an economic [tefra such amount that renewal appears, at
the inception of the lease, to be reasonably adsinering the term of the lease, if a substantiitonal investment is made in a leased location,
we reevaluate our definition of lease term to deiee whether the investment, together with any fiiesarelated to nomenewal, would constitul
an economic penalty in such amount that renewagasp at the time of the reevaluation, to be reaslgrassured.

Provision for depreciation is computed udimg straight-line method on all depreciable as8¥tsperiodically review and adjust, as
appropriate, the residual values and useful lifeswenue earning equipment based on current apeloted operating trends and projected
realizable values. At the end of 2005, we complet@dannual review of the residual values and udiefs of revenue earning equipment. Based
on the results of our analysis, we adjusted thidwesvalues and useful lives of certain classeseénue earning equipment on January 1, 2006,
which caused depreciation expense in 2006 to deel@aapproximately $13 million compared with 2005.

We routinely dispose of used revenue earagpment as part of our FMS business. Revenuéngaequipment held for sale is stated at the
lower of carrying amount or fair value less costsell. Adjustments to the carrying value of vetsicheld for sale are reported as depreciation
expense and were $24 million, $14 million and $8iom in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Foramye earning equipment held for sale, we
stratify our fleet by vehicle type (tractors, trgckrailers), weight class, age and other charatites, as relevant, and create classes of simadset
for analysis purposes. Fair value is determine@dapon recent market prices obtained from our osed truck centers for sales of each class of
similar assets and vehicle condition. The net éagryalue for revenue earning equipment held fte attributed to the FMS business segment
$99 million and $95 million at December 31, 2008 @005, respectively, and is classified within “Beue earning equipment, net.” While we
believe our estimates of residual values and falines of revenue earning equipment are reasoraideges to our estimates of values may occur
due to changes in the market for used vehicleszdhéition of the vehicles, and inherent limitasan the estimation process. Gains and losses on
operating property and equipment sales are reflantéMiscellaneous income, net.”

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets withdfikite useful lives are not amortized, but rattaee tested for impairment at least annually
(April 1 st). Recoverability of goodwill is evaluated usingna-step process. The first step involves a conspardf the fair value of each of our
reporting units with its carrying amount. If a refeg unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair valtiee second step is performed. The second step
involves a comparison of the implied fair value a&adrying value of that reporting unit’'s goodwillo the extent that a reporting unit’s carrying
amount exceeds the implied fair value of its godighan impairment loss is recognized. Identifialsitangible assets not subject to amortizatior
assessed for impairment by comparing the fair vafufe intangible asset to its carrying amount.ilspairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the carrying value exceeds fair value.

In making our assessments of fair value, @l on our knowledge and experience about pastamént events and assumptions about
conditions we expect to exist. These assumptiomdased on a number of factors including futureatpeg performance, economic conditions,
actions we expect to take,
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and present value techniques. Rates used to disfidure cash flows are dependent upon interessrand the cost of capital at a point in time.
There are inherent uncertainties related to thas®ifs and management’s judgment in applying thethd analysis of goodwill impairment. It is
possible that assumptions underlying the impairra@atysis will change in such a manner that impairtin value may occur in the future.

Intangible assets with finite lives are arized over their respective estimated useful ligetheir estimated residual values. Identifiable
intangible assets that are subject to amortizatierevaluated for impairment using a process sirtdléhat used to evaluate long-lived assets
described below.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other than Goodwill

Long-lived assets held and used, includingrigible assets with finite lives, are tested &maverability when circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of assets may not be recoveratdeo¥erability of long-lived assets is evaluatectbgnparing the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group to management’s best estimate of isagunted future operating cash flows (excludimgriest charges) expected to be generated b
the asset or asset group. If these comparisonsaitedihat the asset or asset group is not recdeembimpairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the carrying value of the assetsset group exceeds fair value. Fair value is atexd by quoted market price, if available, or
an estimate of projected future operating cashd]adiscounted using a rate that reflects the rtlagerating segment’s average cost of funds.
Long-lived assets to be disposed of, including fimite-lived intangible assets, are reported atlthveer of carrying amount or fair value less costs
to sell.

Debt Issuance Cost:

Costs incurred to issue debt are deferredaamattized as a component of interest expensetbeegstimated term of the related debt using the
effective interest rate method.

Self-Insurance Accruals

Ryder retains a portion of the accident tiskler vehicle liability, workers’ compensation asttler insurance programs. Under our insurance
programs, we have traditionally retained the rigloses in various amounts up to $1 million on a pecurrence basis. Effective October 1, 2005
and January 1, 2006, we adjusted our vehicle itsitsihd worker's compensation liability policiegspectively, to retain the risk of loss in various
amounts up to $3 million on a per occurrence b&s#f-insurance accruals are based primarily orathearially estimated, undiscounted cost of
claims, which includes claims incurred but not né@d. Such liabilities are based on estimates. ¥ believe that the amounts are adequate,
there can be no assurance that changes to ouragssimay not occur due to limitations inherenhim éstimation process. Changes in the estir
of these accruals are charged or credited to egsrinthe period determined. Amounts estimatecetpdid within the next year have been
classified as “Accrued expenses and other curigbilities” with the remainder included in “Otheom-current liabilities.”

We also maintain additional insurance ataieramounts in excess of our respective underlggtgntion. Amounts recoverable from insurance
companies are not offset against the related alcasuaur insurance policies do not extinguish avjte legal release from the obligation to make
payments related to such risk-related losses. Ansoexpected to be received within the next yeanfiosurance companies have been included
within “Receivables” with the remainder included‘Direct financing leases and other assets” anderegnized only when realization of the
claim for recovery is considered probable. The @aaicfor the related claim has been classified witi#iccrued expenses and other current
liabilities” if it is estimated to be paid withitné next year, otherwise it has been classifiedithér non-current liabilities.”
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Residual Value Guarantees and Deferred Gain

Ryder periodically enters into agreementsltiersale and operating leaseback of revenue ggegjnipment. These leases contain purchas
(or) renewal options as well as limited guarantgfetbe lessor’s residual value (“residual valuergngees”). We periodically review the residual
values of revenue earning equipment that we lease third parties and our exposures under residalae guarantees. The review is conducte
a manner similar to that used to analyze residalkeies and fair values of owned revenue earningpeggemt. The amount of residual value
guarantees expected to be paid is recognized aexpanse over the expected remaining term ofghgd. Adjustments in the estimate of residual
value guarantees are recognized prospectivelytheegxpected remaining lease term. While we belibatthe amounts are adequate, changes to
our estimates of residual value guarantees mayrat@ito changes in the market for used vehidesgondition of the vehicles at the end of the
lease and inherent limitations in the estimatioocpss.

Gains on the sale and operating leasebaskvefue earning equipment are deferred and amonize straight-line basis over the term of the
lease as a reduction of rent expense.

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is based g@ored earnings before income taxes. Deferred taseesecognized for the future tax effects of
temporary differences between the financial stategroarrying amounts of existing assets and liaédiand their respective tax bases using tax
rates in effect for the years in which the diffeves are expected to reverse. Valuation allowaneeseaognized to reduce deferred tax assets
amount that is more likely than not to be realizedassessing the likelihood of realization, mamaget considers estimates of future taxable
income.

We are subject to tax audits in numerousglictions in the U.S. and around the world. Taxisuay their very nature are often complex and
can require several years to complete. In the nloco@&se of business, we are subject to challefrgesthe IRS and other tax authorities
regarding amounts of taxes due. These challenggsatea the timing or amount of taxable income eddctions, or the allocation of income
among tax jurisdictions. As part of our calculatmfithe provision for income taxes on earningse@rd the amount we expect to incur as a
result of tax audits as part of accrued incomegaSech accruals require management to make estiraatl judgments with respect to the ultir
outcome of a tax audit. Accruals for income taxasyres, including penalties and interest, expettda settled within the next year are included
in “Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiedgth the remainder included in “Other non-currkabilities” in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets and in “Provision for income taxes” in oon€olidated Statements of Earnings. Interest mkaténcome tax exposures is recognized as
incurred and included in “Provision for income taka our Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Environmental Expenditures

We record liabilities for environmental assaents and (or) cleanup when it is probable aHassbeen incurred and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. Management works with indégeirthird-party specialists in order to effectivaksess our environmental liabilities.
Environmental liability estimates may include costgh as anticipated site testing, consulting, thati®n, disposal, post-remediation monitoring
and legal fees, as appropriate. The liability doatsreflect possible recoveries from insurance camgs or reimbursement of remediation costs by
state agencies, but does include estimates ofsbasing with other potentially responsible partiestimates are not discounted, as the timing of
the anticipated cash payments is not fixed or tealditerminable. Claims for reimbursement of reratidn costs are recorded when recovery is
deemed probable.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use financial instruments, including fordvaxchange contracts, futures, swaps and capragree to manage our exposures to moverr
in interest rates and foreign currency exchangesrathe use of these financial instruments modifiesexposure of these risks with the intent to
reduce the risk or cost to Ryder. We do not emter derivative financial instruments for tradingposes. We limit our risk that counterparties to
the derivative contracts will default and not malegments by entering into derivative contracts amitjh counterparties comprised of large banks
and financial institutions that meet establisheztitrcriteria. We do not expect to incur any losses result of counterparty default.

On the date a derivative contract is entéremiwe formally document, among other items, titernded hedging designation and relationship,
along with the risk management objectives andeggias for entering into the derivative contract. &l&o formally assess, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether thevatives we used in hedging transactions are higfigctive in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of hedged items. When it is deterchitihet a derivative is not highly effective as @de or that it has ceased to be a highly effective
hedge, we discontinue hedge accounting prospegtivel

The hedging designation may be classifiedresof the following:

No Hedging Designatiorl.he gain or loss on a derivative instrument notgteged as an accounting hedging instrument isgreized
currently in earnings.

Fair Value HedgeA hedge of a recognized asset or liability or areangnized firm commitment is considered a faiueahedge. For fair
value hedges, both the effective and ineffectiveipas of the changes in the fair value of the dtive, along with the gain or loss on the hedged
item that is attributable to the hedged risk, arthlvecorded as adjustments to interest expene i@onsolidated Statements of Earnings.

Cash Flow HedgeA hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the bditia of cash flows to be received or paid relatech recognized asset or
liability is considered a cash flow hedge. The effe portion of the change in the fair value afaivative that is declared as a cash flow hedge is
recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive lasgil earnings are affected by the variability ash flows of the designated hedged item.

Net Investment HedgA.hedge of a net investment in a foreign operaisoronsidered a net investment hedge. The effeptivion of the
change in the fair value of the derivative used agt investment hedge of a foreign operationdended in the currency translation adjustment
account within “Accumulated other comprehensives [o$he ineffective portion, if any, on the hedged itdrat is attributable to the hedged ris
recorded in earnings and reported in the Conse@Statements of Earnings as “Miscellaneous incomie,

Foreign Currency Translation

Our foreign operations generally use thelloaarency as their functional currency. Assets katuilities of these operations are translated at
the exchange rates in effect on the balance sla¢et il exchangeability between the functional enaoy and the U.S. dollar is temporarily lacking
at the balance sheet date, the first subsequenatathich exchanges can be made is used to trarssets and liabilities. Income statement items
are translated at the average exchange ratesefgetir. The impact of currency fluctuations isudgd in “Accumulated other comprehensive
loss” as a currency translation adjustment. Gamslasses resulting from foreign currency transmsj the amounts of which are not material for
any of the periods presented, are included in “Bllaoeous income, net.”
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Share-Based Compensatior

Prior to January 1, 2006, we recognized shas=d compensation using the intrinsic value ntetbmder this method, share-based
compensation expense related to stock options eaoognized in the results of operations if tkereise price was equal to the market value of
the common stock on the measurement date, in ameoedvith Accounting Principles Board Opinion (AR). 25, ‘Accounting for Stock Issue
to Employees,” and related Interpretations, as figgthby SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Basedmpensation.” As a result, the
recognition of share-based compensation expensdimited to the expense attributed to grants ofwested stock (restricted stock). Effective
January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recimgngrovisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payrhi®efer to Note 2, “Accounting
Changes” for a discussion of the adoption impa@&©EAS No. 123R.

The fair value of the stock option and notedstock awards, which are subject to gradedngsgiranted after January 1, 2006 is expense
a straight-line basis over the vesting period efalwards. The fair value of stock option awardsraomvested stock awards granted prior to
January 1, 2006 is expensed based on their graztgiohg schedule. Share-based compensation expereggorted in “Salaries and employee-
related costs” in our Consolidated Statements ofiigs.

Tax benefits resulting from tax deductiongktess of share-based compensation expense reedgnider the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123R (windfall tax benefitsg credited to additional paid-in capital in @gnsolidated Balance Sheets. Realized tax
shortfalls are first offset against the cumulatdadance of windfall tax benefits, if any, and tlerarged directly to income tax expense.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are compytelividing net earnings by the weighted-averagelper of common shares outstanding.
Nonvested stock (restricted stock) granted to eygae and directors are not included in the comjmutaf basic earnings per common share t
the securities vest. Diluted earnings per commamesteflect the dilutive effect of potential comnmsirares from securities such as stock options
and time-vested restricted stock. The dilutive effdf stock options and time-vested restrictedstecomputed using the treasury stock method,
which assumes any proceeds that could be obtaipeul the exercise of stock options and vesting stficted stock would be used to purchase
common shares at the average market price forghiedh The assumed proceeds include the windfalb&nefit that we receive upon assumed
exercise. We calculate the assumed proceeds frogsgxax benefits based on the deferred tax esstetsly recorded without consideration of
“as if” deferred tax assets calculated under tlowipions of SFAS No. 123R. Diluted earnings per own share also reflects the dilutive effect of
market-based restricted stock (contingently isstiahhbres) if the vesting conditions have been mief the balance sheet date assuming the
balance sheet date is the end of the contingeniydcoe

Share Repurchase:

Repurchases of shares of common stock are pexribdically in open-market transactions usingkivig capital and are subject to market
conditions, legal requirements and other factohe dost of share repurchases is allocated betwsamon stock and retained earnings based on
the amount of additional paid-in capital at theetiof the share repurchase.

Comprehensive Income (Loss

Comprehensive income (loss) presents a meadwall changes in shareholders’ equity exceptfanges resulting from transactions with
shareholders in their capacity as shareholderseRytbtal comprehensive income (loss) presenthsisis of net earnings, currency translation
adjustments associated with foreign operationsubatthe local currency as their functional curyercljustments for derivative
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instruments accounted for as cash flow hedges aridus pension and other postretirement benefisea items.
Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2006, the Financial Accountitan8ards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157, “Faiugaeasurements.” This statement
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneiag fair value under generally accepted accagrrinciples (GAAP), and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFASBIbIs effective for financial statements issuedfiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007, and interim periods within those fiscal yeditse transition adjustment, which is measuredadlifference between the carrying amount
the fair value of those financial instruments & date this statement is initially applied, shdwdrecognized as a cumulative effect adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings for gmafiyear in which this statement is initially apgl The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effec
for us beginning January 1, 2008. We are currentbiuating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 onapnsolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exah&@uammission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bull¢BAB) No. 108, “Considering the Effects
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Migstaents in Current Year Financial Statements.” B 108 addresses how the effects of
prior year uncorrected misstatements should beiderei when quantifying misstatements in curreatr yimancial statements and is effective for
fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. SAB NI8 requires companies to quantify misstatemesitey a balance sheet and income
statement approach and to evaluate whether eigipgoach results in quantifying an error that isemiat in light of relevant quantitative and
qualitative factors. SAB No. 108 permits existingopc companies to initially apply its provisiongher by (i) restating prior financial statements
as if the “dual approach” had always been used)aretording the cumulative effect of initially plying the “dual approachéis adjustments to tl
carrying value of assets and liabilities as of dapd, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recortiethe opening balance of retained earnings. The
adoption of the provisions of SAB No. 108 on Decenmbl, 2006 had no impact on our consolidated firdstatements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB InterpietaNo. (FIN) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty imt¢ome Taxes,” which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recoggin financial statements in accordance with SR&8S109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”
FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and nremsent attribute for the financial statement redogm and measurement of a tax position
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.48NMequires that we recognize in our consolidaiteghicial statements, the impact of a tax
position, if that position is more likely than maftbeing sustained on audit, based on the techmieaits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48
also provide guidance on derecognition, classificatinterest and penalties, accounting in intguemiods, and disclosure. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective beginning January 1, 2007hwlie cumulative effect of the change in accoungirigciple recorded as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings. We estinmgt@doption of this standard will reduce the opgHialance of retained earnings for 2007 by
approximately $5 to $10 million, with no impactdar consolidated cash flows.

2.  ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Pstretirement Plans

Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted SNAS158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Bendfiension and Other Postretirement
Plans.” Under SFAS No. 158, we are required togaize the overfunded or underfunded status of mee@fenefit pension and other
postretirement plan as an asset or liability in @onsolidated Balance Sheets and to recognize eksanghat funded status in the year in which
the changes occur through comprehensive incomeSS¥& 158 also required the measurement of
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the funded status of a plan as of the date ofeits-gnd statement of financial position. Our emgsolicy required us to measure the funded status
of our plans as of the balance sheet date; acglydithe new measurement date requirements of SFAI58 had no impact.

The following table summarizes the incremeetiect of recognizing the funded status of owarysl in accordance with SFAS No. 158 on
individual line items in the Consolidated Balandee&t at December 31, 2006:

Before After
Application of Application of
SFAS No. 15¢ Adjustments SFAS No. 15¢
(In thousands)

Intangible assel $ 14,90: (5149 14,381
Direct financing leases and other as: 540,04¢ (154,871) 385,17t
Total asset 6,984,30 (155,389 6,828,92.
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 422,95 (3,207 419,75¢
Other nor-current liabilities 366,50: 82,65¢ 449,15¢
Deferred income taxe 991,00¢ (83,840 907,16t
Total liabilities 5,112,52! (4,385 5,108,14.
Accumulated other comprehensive | 4,50t (150,999 (146,49;)
Total shareholde’ equity 1,871,77 (150,999 1,720,77!

Share-Based Paymen

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted theviaue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123Rha&-Based Payment” using the modified-
prospective transition method. Under this transitieethod, compensation expense was recognizedriegidanuary 1, 2006 and included
(a) compensation expense for all sheased employee compensation arrangements grantedgorbut not yet vested as of January 1, 2086et
on the grant date fair value estimated in accordavith the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, gbjlcompensation expense for all shbhase(
employee compensation arrangements granted subgdquianuary 1, 2006, based on the grant datedhie estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Results for prior pds have not been restated.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R on aayd, 2006, earnings before income taxes for da gnded December 31, 2006 were
$10 million ($7 million after-tax) lower, than ifevhad continued to account for share-based compemsader APB No. 25. Both basic and
diluted earnings per common share for the yeare&bdgeember 31, 2006 were $0.12 lower than if wedwadinued to account for share-based
compensation under APB No. 25.
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The following table illustrates the effect 2005 and 2004 net earnings and earnings per corshane if we had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to optiomarged under our share-based employee compengddios. For purposes of this pro forma
disclosure, the value of the options was estimataag a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing valoatmodel and amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting periods.

Years ender
December 3:
2005 2004
(In thousands, exce
per share amount

Net earnings, as report $226,92¢ 215,60¢
Add: Shar-based employee compensation expense included dantegpnet earnings, net of t 1,931 1,15¢
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensaticensepdetermined under fair value method fi
all awards, net of ta (9,666 (8,970
Pro forma net earning $219,19: 207,79:
Earnings per common sha
Basic:
As reportec $ 3.5¢ 3.3t
Pro forma $ 3.4« 3.2¢
Diluted:
As reportec $ 35¢ 3.2¢
Pro forma $ 3.3¢ 3.1¢

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, wegaented all tax benefits of tax deductions resuifiom the exercise of stock options as oper:
cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Céshid: SFAS No. 123R requires the cash flows fromtéx benefits resulting from tax
deductions in excess of the compensation expewsgmezed for those options (windfall tax benefttshe classified as financing cash flows. As a
result, we classified $9 million as cash flows frlimancing activities rather than cash flows fropemting activities for the year ended
December 31, 2006. If the tax deduction realizechfthe exercise of stock options is less than neizeg compensation expense, the tax shortfall
is recognized in equity to the extent of availabledfall tax benefits realized in the prior yedrany, otherwise it is recognized within our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Under the fieddprospective transition method of SFAS No. 128R were permitted to calculate a
cumulative memo balance of windfall tax benefitsfrpostd995 years for purposes of accounting for futuresteortfalls. We elected to apply t
long-form method for determining the pool of winlitax benefits and have a pool of windfall tax béts.

Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligatons

Effective December 31, 2005, we adopted FIN“Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement @altions,” which clarifies that the term
conditional asset retirement obligation as use8RAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement @btions,” refers to a legal obligation to
perform an asset retirement activity in which tineing and (or) method of settlement are conditiaorak future event that may or may not be
within the control of the entity. The obligationperform the asset retirement activity is uncoodisl even though uncertainty exists about the
timing and (or) method of settlement. Accordinglie are required to recognize a liability for the fealue of a conditional asset retirement
obligation if the fair value of the liability carelreasonably estimated. Uncertainty about the
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timing and (or) method of settlement of a conditibasset retirement obligation should be factontd the measurement of the liability when
sufficient information exists. The adoption of FM impacted our accounting for the conditional gélion to remove underground storage tanks
located at our FMS vehicle maintenance facilitiggon adoption of this standard, we recorded aduifioperating property and equipment, net of
$2 million and additional current and non-curreabilities of $6 million, in addition to recognizina non-cash pre-tax cumulative effect charge of
$4 million ($2 million on an after takasis, or $0.04 per diluted common share). Adopafothis standard would not have had a materiakichjpr
our results of operations or financial condition flee earlier periods presented.

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 13, 1999, we completed thecdadar public transportation services business (BPWhich was accounted for as discontinued
operations. In connection with the RPTS divestitwre retained various RPTS insurance claim lidbgdithat related to pre-divestiture operations.
In 2005, we adjusted our estimates of these inserhabilities based on revised actuarial estimatesreduced the carrying amount of these
liabilities. We also recorded various immaterialcamts from the reversal of liabilities establistzsdpart of other business divestitures that had
been accounted for as discontinued operationsiam ypears. The aggregate impact of these adjussneas a pre-tax benefit of $3 million
($2 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.03 peutdil common share) for the year ended Decemb&0BBb.,

4. ACQUISITIONS

4G’s Acquisition— On March 7, 2005, Ryder acquired the fleet amgtamers of 4G’s Truck Renting Co. (4G’s), a prahatowned local
truck leasing and rental company located in NewKYtor approximately $8 million in cash.

Ruan Acquisition— On March 1, 2004, Ryder completed an asset pschgreement with Ruan Leasing Company (Ruan) wideh we
acquired Ruan’s fleet of approximately 6,400 veds¢cB7 of its 111 service locations and more tlféhdustomers for an adjusted purchase price
of $147 million. Ryder also acquired full serviaentract maintenance agreements covering approxiynhf00 vehicles. The combined Ryder
and Ruan network has allowed us to leverage ostiegiU.S. infrastructure in key markets while amgdnew infrastructure to strengthen our
presence in targeted areas of the Midwest, SouthdatAtlantic and Southwest. During 2006, we p&#million of the remaining purchase
price.

The purchase price allocations and resultimgact on the corresponding Consolidated Balan@eSlrelating to all acquisitions were as
follows:

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Assets:
Customer relationship intangibl $ — 20C 5,35
Goodwill — 82¢ 25¢
Revenue earning equipme® — 5,75¢ 138,82:
Other asset — 38€ 3,69¢
— 7,16¢ 148,12t
Liabilities — (160) (1,039
Purchase pric $ — 7,00¢ 147,09:
Cash paid for acquisitior $4,11% 15,11( 148,79
Unpaid purchase pric $ 33¢ 4,45] 12,55

1) 2005 includes a $1 million adjustment to revenumieg equipment related to the 2004 Ruan acquisit
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Pro Forma Information— The operating results of the acquired companieg haen included in the consolidated financial statets from th
dates of acquisitions. Pro forma results preseexetude the 4G’s business because the effect ®attguisition was not significant. This pro
forma information is not necessarily indicativeheit of the combined results of operations thatallgtwvould have been realized had the
acquisitions been consummated during the periodafiach the pro forma information is presentedobfuture results. The following table
provides the unaudited pro forma revenue, earrfirogs continuing operations, net earnings and egsper diluted common share as if the
results of Ruan had been included in operationsneenting January 1, 2004.

Unauditec
December 3:
2004
(In thousands
except per shai
amounts’

Revenue $5,173,27
Earnings from continuing operatio $214,19:
Net earnings $214,19:
Earnings per common she— Diluted:
Continuing operation $3.2¢
Net earnings $3.2¢

5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES (RECOVERIE
The components of restructuring and othergdm(recoveries), net in 2006, 2005 and 2004 agifellows:

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Restructuring charges (recoveries), |

Severance and employ-related costs (recoverie $1,04¢ 2,44¢ (1,21¢)
Facilities and related costs (recoveri 194 181 (79
1,24: 2,63( (1,295
Other charges (recoveries), n

Early retirement of det 2,141 — —
Contract termination and transition co 181 74€ 8,00(
Gain on sale of headquarters comg — — (24,309
Other — — (73
Total $3,56¢ 3,37¢ 17,67¢

As noted in Note 26, “Segment Reporting,” ptimary measure of segment financial performanctuees, among other items, restructuring
and other charges (recoveries); however, the adgbcportion
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of the restructuring and other charges (recovetiest)related to each segment in 2006, 2005, afid 2@s as follows:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Fleet Management Solutio $3,552 2,752 4,312

Supply Chain Solution 19 677 1,937

Dedicated Contract Carriay (5) 34 503

Central Support Services (CS 2 (87) (24,429

Total $3,56¢ 3,37¢ (17,679

2006 Activity

During 2006, Ryder approved a plan to elirtéregpproximately 150 positions as a result of onga@iost management and process
improvement actions throughout Ryder’'s domesticiaternational business segments and CSS. Theehelated to these actions was
recognized under SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accougpfior Postemployment Benefits,” and included samee and employee-related costs
totaling $1 million. Although some of these actidrasre been completed as of December 31, 2006 jttcamplans for eliminating some of these
positions will be communicated in the beginnind2607. During 2006, we also reversed severance raptbgee-related costs and recorded
facility costs adjustments related to prior restutiag charges due to subsequent refinements imaiss.

Other charges during 2006 mainly relatedhéodosts incurred to extinguish a debenture thataviginally set to mature in 2016. The total
costs of $2 million related to the premium paidtoa early extinguishment of debt and the wateef related debt discount and issuance coste
Note 16,“Debt,” for further discussion on the early extingument of debt.

2005 Activity

During 2005, Ryder approved a plan to elirtéregpproximately 160 positions as a result of onga@iost management and process
improvement actions in Ryder’'s domestic and inteéomal FMS and SCS business segments and CSS hingecrelated to these actions included
severance and employee-related costs totaling #®mirelating primarily to the restructuring ofioU.K. operations. Many of the eliminated
positions in our domestic operations were impabte®yder’s decision to outsource certain administrafinance and support functions to lower-
cost foreign providers. While Ryder informed theseployees of the transition plan for eliminatinggl positions by December 31, 2005, actual
transition plans began February 2006 and contitlmedigh the remainder of 2006. During 2005, we aés@rsed severance and employee-relatec
costs of $0.5 million that had been recorded iompréstructurings due to refinements in estimates.

During 2005, we also closed two administtfices in the U.S. as a result of the reorgammeof our FMS domestic operations and
recorded a charge of $0.5 million for future caalirpents related to the contractual lease obligatibring 2005, we also reversed facility and
related accruals of $0.3 million that had been m@ed in prior restructurings, due to refinementsstimates.

Other charges during 2005 related to theiteation of certain telecommunication services ceddny an information technology contract. As
part of ongoing cost management and process impremeactions, Ryder management approved and coethtdta plan to transition certain
outsourced telecommunication services to Ryder eypegs. Under the terms of the agreement, Rydeobiégated to pay termination costs in the
event of termination prior to the expiration dat010. In accordance
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with the terms of the services agreement, Ryddfiedthe information technology services providéits intent to terminate the services and
recorded charges totaling $0.7 million for contrt@eination costs.

2004 Activity

Restructuring recoveries, net during 2004teal primarily to employee severance and benefisrded in prior restructuring charges that were
reversed due to refinements in estimates.

Other recoveries, net during 2004 relatethprily to $24 million in gains from properties satdconnection with the relocation of our
headquarters. In May 2004, we completed the sabeiotorporate headquarters facility for $39 millia cash. In conjunction with this sale, we
entered into a lease agreement with the purchadease back the headquarters facility until weaaled to our new headquarters in 2005. The
terms of the leaseback agreement met the criteria fnormal leaseback” and full gain recognitidr$22 million. Also during 2004, we
recognized gains totaling $2 million from the saleroperties ancillary to our main headquartecslifg.

Other charges during 2004 related to the iteation of certain services covered by an inforaratiechnology contract. As part of ongoing cost
containment initiatives, Ryder management apprareticommitted to a plan to transition certain outsed information technology infrastruct
services to Ryder employees. Under the terms odgineement, Ryder was obligated to pay terminatasts in the event of termination prior to
the expiration date of 2010. In accordance withtémms of the services agreement, Ryder notifiedriformation technology services provider of
its intent to terminate the services and recordedges totaling $8 million for contract terminatig® million) and transition costs incurred since
termination ($2 million). By December 31, 2004, tadinsition activities were completed.

The following table presents a roll-forwaifitloe activity and balances of our restructuringer@e account for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005:

Deductions
Beginning Cash Non-Cash Ending
Balance Additions Payment: Reductions®) Balance

(In thousands

Year Ended December 31, 200

Employee severance and benefi $2,521 1,41¢ 2,12¢ 371 1,44¢
Facilities and related costs _70C 211 35€ 17 _ 53¢
Total $3,22] 1,63( 2,48 38¢ 1,981

Year Ended December 31, 20(
Employee severance and bene $1,12¢ 2,97¢ 1,04 527 2,521
Facilities and related cos 76C _46C 241 27¢ _70C
Total $1,88¢ 3,43¢ 1,28¢ 80€ 3,227

1) Nor-cash reductions represent adjustments to the restring reserve as actual costs were less thanimaity estimated

At December 31, 2006, outstanding restructuohligations are generally required to be paid ¢lve next year.
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6. RECEIVABLES

December 3:
2006 2005
(In thousands
Trade $794,96! 737,25:
Financing leas 68,13¢ 67,05¢
Income tax receivabl 8,462 —
Insurance 9,22t 10,64¢
Vendor rebate 7,144 8,88(
Other 10,28 10,20¢
898,22: 834,04¢
Allowance (14,749 (13,229
Total $883,47¢ 820,82!
7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSE'
December 3:
2006 2005
(In thousands
Current deferred tax ass $ 20,79¢ 55,83(
Prepaid vehicle licens¢ 43,57¢ 43,60(
Prepaid operating taxi 19,97¢ 14,77¢
Prepaid real estate re 8,60: 6,28¢
Prepaid software maintenance cc 4,291 3,581
Benefits 2,53¢ 49
Prepaid insuranc 6,85: 5,597
Restricted cas 63,831 7,781
Prepaid sales commissio 7,81: 7,967
Other 12,09¢ 9,15(
Total $190,38: 154,62
8. REVENUE EARNING EQUIPMENT
December 31, 200! December 31, 200
Estimatec
Useful Accumulated Net Book Accumulatec Net Book
Lives Cost Depreciation Value @) Cost Depreciatior Value®
(In years)
(In thousands
Full service leas 3—12 $5,755,84: (2,076,32)) 3,679,522 5,085,08: (2,113,49) 2,971,591
Commercial rente 45—12 1,579,361 (749,549 829,81: 1,572,32. (749,50:) 822,82(
Total $7,335,20:i (2,825,87) 4,509,33. 6,657,40: (2,862,99) 3,794,411

1) Revenue earning equipment, net includes vehiclgsi@ under capital leases of $15 million, lesswoulated amortization of $9 million at Decembey 2006, anc
$17 million, less accumulated amortization of $lilliom at December 31, 2005. Amortization expensehaited to vehicles acquired under capital leamesombined with
depreciation expens

Revenue earning equipment captioned as “@ullise lease” and “commercial rental” is differextéid exclusively by the service line in which
the equipment is employed. Two core service offggiaf Ryder's FMS business segment are full serteiasing and short-term commercial rental.
Under a full service lease, Ryder provides custeméth vehicles, maintenance, supplies (includimg) ancillary services and related equipment
necessary for operation, while our customers egercontrol of the related vehicles
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over the lease term (generally three to seven Yeatsucks and tractors and up to ten years faiters). We also provide short-term rentals, which
tend to be seasonal, to customers to supplemeinfirets during peak business periods.

9. OPERATING PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN

December 3:
Estimatec
Useful Lives 2006 2005
(In years)
(In thousands
Land — $ 107,30: 106,56:
Buildings and improvemen 10— 40 602,53¢ 587,28
Machinery and equipme 3—10 482,17" 471,69:
Other 3—10 85,50¢ 69,87(
1,277,51 1,235,40!
Accumulated depreciatic (778,55() (748,609
Total $ 498,96¢ 486,80:

10. GOODWILL

In 2006, we completed our annual goodwill @inment test and determined there was no impairnTdm carrying amount of goodwill
attributable to each reportable business segmehtohianges therein was as follows:

Fleet Supply Dedicatec
Managemen Chain Contract
Solutions Solutions Carriage Total
(In thousands

Balance at December 31, 20 $127,32¢ 25,67¢ 4,90( 157,90
Acquisitions(®) 827 — 827
Foreign currency translation adjustm (1,399 (1,559 — (2,949
Balance at December 31, 20 126,76: 24,12: 4,90( 155,78t
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,67¢ 1,78(C — 3,45¢
Balance at December 31, 20C $128,44: 25,90: 4,90( 159,24

(1)  Amount represents goodwill related to the acquisitf 4C's.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 3.

2006 2005

(In thousands
Indefinite lived intangible assel
Trade name $ 8,68¢ 8,68¢

Pension intangibl: — 7,338
8,68¢ 16,01¢

Finite lived intangible asset
Customer relationship intangibles and ot() 7,937 7,88¢
Accumulated amortizatio (2,236 (1,440
5,701 6,44:
Total $14,381 22,46:

1) Customer relationship intangibles are being amedion a straigt-line basis over their estimated useful lives of/éfrs.

The Ryder trade name has been identified @sdan indefinite useful life. We recorded amaatian expense associated with finite lived
intangible assets of approximately $1 million ir0802005 and 2004. Based on the current amoumité fived intangible assets, we estimate
amortization expense to be approximately $1 milfimneach of the next five years.

12. DIRECT FINANCING LEASES AND OTHER ASSET

December 3.
2006 2005

(In thousands
Direct financing leases, n $307,61! 321,05¢
Restricted cas — 14,59:
Investments held in Rabbi Tru 26,74¢ 24,22(
Insurance receivable 19,40¢ 21,72¢
Deferred debt issuance co 10,99( 9,927
Swap agreemen — 39t
Other 20,41 18,13t
Total $385,17¢ 410,05(
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13.  ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, 200

December 31, 200

Accrued Non-Current Accrued Non-Current
Expenses Liabilities Total Expense: Liabilities Total
(In thousands

Salaries and wagt $ 86,45¢ — 86,45 79,38t 79,38t
Deferred compensatic 3,20¢ 21,86¢ 25,07z 3,13¢ 20,21 23,34¢
Pension benefit 2,032 112,23¢ 114,27: 71,28¢ 166,38 237,67.
Other postretirement benef 3,59t 41,26t 44,86( 7,381 24,48 31,86¢
Employee benefit 3,12} 3,123 3,74¢ 3,74¢
Insurance obligation(® 117,31: 191,09¢ 308,40¢ 111,16 192,07 303,24(
Residual value guarante 887 1,34( 2,221 3,622 1,67¢ 5,30(
Vehicle rent 99¢ 1,90t 2,90: 1,915 3,60¢ 5,52¢
Deferred vehicle gain 912 1,81: 2,72% 1,08 2,45( 3,531
Environmental liabilities 4,02¢ 12,15( 16,17¢ 3,53¢ 12,97( 16,50¢
Asset retirement obligatior 3,514 10,18¢ 13,70( 3,07t 10,181 13,25¢
Operating taxe 78,23: — 78,23 87,48¢ — 87,48¢
Income taxe: 4,831 36,80( 41,631 95,35: 26,971 122,32:
Restructuring 1,80¢ 181 1,98i 2,71 513 3,227
Interest 19,49 — 19,49 17,91¢ — 17,91¢
Customer deposit 23,47¢ — 23,47¢ 19,59¢ — 19,59¢
Derivatives 20,101 — 20,101 — 9,73¢ 9,73¢
Other 45,74¢ 18,31¢ 64,06¢ 57,31¢ 16,004 73,32(

Total $419,75¢ 449,15¢ 868,91- 569,72: 487,26¢ 1,056,98!

(1) Insurance obligations are primarily comprised offsinsurance accruals
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14. INCOME TAXES
The components of earnings from continuingrapions before income taxes and the provisiofinimrme taxes were as follows:

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes:

United State: $341,15¢ 307,85: 270,66¢
Foreign 51,81t 49,23¢ 60,45¢
Total $392,97: 357,08t 331,12.
Current tax expens:

Federa® $ 45,42: 133,45¢ 88,92(
State® 13,99¢ 2,797 3,95¢
Foreign 8,36( 18,11 12,82(
67,77¢ 154,37( 105,69¢

Deferred tax expense (benef
Federal 74,73( (22,33)) (6,007)
State (2,74¢ (40) 9,51(
Foreign 4,25( (2,539 6,30¢
76,23t (24,910 9,81t
Provision for income taxe $144,01: 129,46( 115,51¢

1) Excludes federal and state tax benefits resultinmfthe exercise of stock options and vesting stficted stock awards, which were credited diretdl“Additional paid-in
capital”

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tae with the effective tax rate follows:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(Percentage of p-tax earnings

Federal statutory tax ra 35.C 35.C 35.C
Impact on deferred taxes for changes in tax 1 (1.6) (2.2) (0.2
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 25 2.7 2.8
Tax reviews and audi — — (2.9
Miscellaneous items, n 0.7 0.8 =
Effective tax rate 6.€ 36.5 34.¢

On June 22, 2006, Canada enacted various¢asures in connection with the 2006 federal bupigetess. These measures contained various
corporate tax changes, including the gradual récluctf the general corporate tax rate beginningd@s, the elimination of the 4% surtax as of
January 1, 2008, and the elimination of the LargepGrations Tax as of January 1, 2006. The imphtitevabove mentioned measures resulted in
a favorable adjustment to deferred income taxei fidn-cash benefit increased reported net earmng806 by $4 million, or $0.06 per diluted
common share.

On May 18, 2006, the State of Texas enaaibdtantial changes to its tax system, which indutthe replacement of the taxable capital and
earned surplus components of its franchise tax avitlew “Margin tax” beginning in 2007. The curr@eixas franchise tax structure remains in
existence until the end of 2006. As a result ofehactment of the “Margin Tax,” existing deferredome taxes not
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expected to be used in the computation of taxgedams after 2006 must be adjusted. This non-cagéfibéncreased reported net earnings in 2006
by $3 million, or $0.05 per diluted common share.

On June 30, 2005, the State of Ohio enaetetkgislation, which phases out the Ohio corpofr@iechise tax and phases in a new gross
receipts tax called the Commercial Activity Tax (Clover a five-year period. While the corporatenfrhise tax was generally based on federal
taxable income, the CAT is based on current ydassand rentals in Ohio. The elimination of Ohiotsporate franchise tax over five years
resulted in a favorable adjustment to deferrednmedaxes. This non-cash benefit increased repogedarnings in 2005 by $8 million, or
$0.12 per diluted common share.

The 2004 effective tax rate includes a netnefit of $9 million associated with the compiatof the audit of our federal income tax returns
for the 1995 to 1997 period, partially offset byyisions made for loss contingencies related taatigit of 1998 through 2000 period.

The components of the net deferred incomdiaaxity were as follows:

December 3:
2006 2005
(In thousands

Deferred income tax asse

Self-insurance accrua $ 57,69: 66,20:
Net operating loss carryforwar 42,25¢ 31,14
Alternative minimum taxe 26,82: —
Accrued compensation and bene 35,78t 32,06:
Pension benefit 42,44¢ 64,67¢
Miscellaneous other accruz 32,65:¢ 40,65¢
237,65: 234,74«
Valuation allowanct (12,72%) (12,36)
224,92: 222,37

Deferred income tax liabilities
Property and equipment bases differe (1,094,71) (1,001,21))
Other items (16,579 (14,446
(1,111,29) (1,015,66)
Net deferred income tax liabilit® $_ (886,370 (793,28)

1) Deferred tax assets of $21 million and $56 millf@ve been included “ Prepaid expenses and other current as” at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectiy

We do not provide for U.S. deferred incomestagn temporary differences related to our for@gestments that are considered permanent in
duration. These temporary differences consist milgnaf undistributed foreign earnings of $349 nath at December 31, 2006. A full foreign tax
provision has been made on these undistributedgforarnings. Determination of the amount of defgtaxes on these temporary differences is
not practicable due to foreign tax credits and @sioins.

At December 31, 2006, various subsidiarieselsate net operating loss carryforwards of $28aniexpiring through tax year 2023. We also
have foreign net operating losses of $13 millicat #hre available to reduce future income tax paysi@nseveral countries, subject to varying
expiration rules. We had unused alternative minintaxcredits, for tax purposes, of $27 million ad@mber 31, 2006 available to reduce future
income tax liabilities. The alternative minimum tevedits may be carried forward indefinitely. A wation allowance has been established to
reduce deferred income tax assets, principallyigoréax loss carryforwards to amounts expectecetoelalized.
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Federal Tax Audits

We are subject to tax audits in numerousglictions in the U.S. and around the world. Taxitaualy their very nature are often complex and
can require several years to complete. The IntdResknue Service (IRS) has now closed audits ofJo8r federal income tax returns through
fiscal year 2000.

The audit of our federal income tax returmis995 through 1997 was in the appeals proces$sthdt IRS since 2002. In December 2004,
Ryder received natification that the Congressidwaht Committee on Taxation (Joint Committee) hppraved our claims for capital loss refunds
and carryforwards in connection with the audittadde tax years. The tax benefit associated wisethlaims was recognized upon final approval
by the Joint Committee.

In 2003, the IRS began auditing our fedarabme tax returns for the 1998 to 2000 tax petfiodNovember 2004, the IRS proposed
adjustments that challenged certain of our taxtjprs primarily related to (i) a capital loss o thale of a minority interest in our captive
insurance company, (ii) the tax treatment for @ sald leaseback of certain revenue earning equipmé&®99 and 2000 (not involving our
securitization activities), and (iii) the tax ba&is certain revenue earning equipment acquiretP®@8 and related depreciation for such assets. The
IRS also proposed penalties for the underpaymetsbofin February 2005, we resolved all issues withIRS related to the 1998 to 2000 tax
period, including interest and penalties. In conioecwith the resolution of this audit, on Febru@g; 2005, we paid $176 million (after utilization
of all available federal net operating losses dtetrative minimum tax credit carry-forwards), inding interest through the date of payment. The
amount we paid was consistent with our accruatsf &ecember 31, 2004.

In 2005, the IRS began auditing our fedarabme tax returns for 2001 through 2003. We beltba¢ Ryder has not entered into any other
transactions since 2000 that raise the same tymswés identified by the IRS in the most recewlitau

Like-Kind Exchange Program

In 2006, we implemented a like-kind exchapgegram for certain of our revenue earning equipmétized in the U.S. Pursuant to the
program, we dispose of vehicles and acquire repiac¢ vehicles in a form, whereby tax gains on dispof eligible vehicles are deferred. To
qualify for like-kind exchange treatment, we exojp@nthrough a qualified intermediary, eligible v@bs being disposed of, with vehicles being
acquired allowing us to generally carry-over theltasis of the vehicles sold (“like-kind exchange¥he program is expected to result in a
material deferral of federal and state income tafs9art of the program, the proceeds from the e&kligible vehicles are restricted for the
acquisition of replacement vehicles and other digecapplications. Due to the structure utilizedaoilitate the like-kind exchanges, the qualified
intermediary that holds the proceeds from the safletigible vehicles and the entity that holds tedicles to be acquired under the program are
required to be consolidated in the accompanyingalifated financial statements for accounting psgso At December 31, 2006, these
consolidated entities had $35 million of proceadsthe sale of eligible vehicles and $161 millafrvehicles to be acquired under the like-kind
exchange program.
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15. LEASES
Leases as Lessc

Ryder leases revenue earning equipment tomess for periods ranging from three to sevengyéartrucks and tractors and up to ten years
for trailers. From time to time, Ryder may alscsledacilities to third parties. The majority of daases are classified as operating leases.
However, some of our revenue earning equipmenefeare classified as direct financing leases anal |ésser extent, sales-type leases. The net
investment in direct financing and sales-type leasmsisted of:

December 3:
2006 2005

(In thousands
Total minimum lease payments receiva $ 644,24¢ 632,19:
Less: Executory cos (221,73) (193,599
Minimum lease payments receival 422,51° 438,59¢
Less: Allowance for uncollectible (1,127) (851)
Net minimum lease payments receiva 421,39¢ 437,74¢
Unguaranteed residue 66,581 73,147
Less: Unearned incon (112,229 (122,779
Net investment in direct financing and s-type lease 375,75¢ 388,11¢
Current portior (68,139 (67,05¢%)
Non-current portior $ 307,61! 321,05¢

Leases as Lesse

Ryder leases vehicles, facilities and oféggiipment under operating lease agreements. Rentalents on certain vehicle lease agreements
vary based on the number of miles run during threodeGenerally, vehicle lease agreements spelit ental payments be adjusted periodically
based on changes in interest rates and provideafty termination at stipulated values. None of leasing arrangements contain restrictive
financial covenants.

We periodically enter into sale and leaseligaksactions in order to lower the total costwsfding our operations, to diversify our funding
among different classes of investors (e.g., redibaaks, pension plans, insurance companies,atd.}o diversify our funding among different
types of funding instruments. These sale-leasetyadlsactions are often executed with third-pamgficial institutions that are not deemed to be
VIEs. In general, these sale-leaseback transaatésudt in a reduction in revenue earning equipnaet debt on the balance sheet, as proceeds
from the sale of revenue earning equipment aregriiynused to repay debt. Sale-leaseback transectidl result in reduced depreciation and
interest expense and increased equipment rentehegpDuring 2004, we completed two dal@seback transactions of revenue earning equir
with third-party financial institutions not deemtedbe VIEs and the related lease-backs were cledsif operating leases. Proceeds from the sale
leaseback transactions totaled $97 million. In emtion with these leases we have provided limitegrantees of the residual values of the leased
vehicles (residual value guarantees) that are tiondid upon disposal of the leased vehicles pddah¢ end of their lease term. During 2004, we
received proceeds of $22 million from sale-leasklieansactions where the related lease-backs Wiassified as capital leases. We have not
entered into any sale-leaseback transactions 2i0@4.

Certain leases contain purchase and (or)vaiheptions, as well as limited guarantees for dipo of the lessor’s residual value. The residual
value guarantees are conditional on terminatioth@fease prior to its contractual lease term. dheunt of residual value guarantees expected to
be paid is

87




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

recognized as rent expense over the expected remgd@rm of the lease. Facts and circumstancesdrtiggict management’s estimates of residual
value guarantees include the market for used ecgriprthe condition of the equipment at the endheflease and inherent limitations in the
estimation process. See Note 18, “Guaranteesgdditional information.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, rent expensdudiieg rent of facilities classified within “Operay expense,” in our Consolidated Statements of
Earnings but excluding contingent rentals) was $hdlion, $175 million and $171 million, respectiyeDuring 2006, 2005 and 2004, contingent
rental expense (income) comprised of residual vglisrantees, payments based on miles run and ewdjnist to rental payments for changes in
interest rates on all other leased vehicles wemaibn, $(1) million and $(2) million, respectilye

Lease Payment:
Future minimum payments for leases in efe@d@ecember 31, 2006 were as follows:

As Lessor(®) As Lessee
Direct
Operating Financing Operating
Leases Leases Leases
(In thousands)

2007 $ 1,129,39 143,25 108,87¢
2008 941,94: 127,27t 73,01¢
2009 765,65: 109,92 55,41(
2010 572,74 86,54¢ 47,18¢
2011 372,09! 64,06« 38,44¢
Thereafter 252,78: 113,18¢ 47,034
Total $ 4,034,61; 644,24t 369,97:

(1)  Amounts do not include contingent rentals, whicly imareceived under certain leases on the bagisiles of use or changes in the Consumer Price InGertingent rental
from operating leases included in revenue during®@®005 and 2004 were $310 million, $293 milliowd %285 million, respectively. Contingent rentatmni direct financing
leases included in revenue during 2006, 2005 ar@#2@ere $30 million, $30 million and $29 milliorspectively

The amounts in the previous table relatedh¢dé¢ase of revenue earning equipment are basedthp@eneral assumption that revenue earning
equipment will remain on lease for the length ofdispecified by the respective lease agreemenégsfutire minimum payments presented above
related to the lease of revenue earning equipnremat a projection of future lease revenue or Bgpeno effect has been given to renewals, new
business, cancellations, contingent rentals oréutate changes. Total future sublease rentals femenue earning equipment under operating
leases as lessee of $40 million are included withénfuture minimum rental payments for operateasks as lessor.
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16. DEBT
Weighted-
Average December 3:
Interest
Rate Maturities 2006 2005
(In thousands
Shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term debt:
Capital lease obligatior — — $ — 137
Unsecured foreign obligatior 6.15% 2007 21,597 26,08:
Current portion of lon-term debt, including capital leas 2007 311,14¢ 243,21¢
Total shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term debi 332,74! 269,43t
Long-term debt:
U.S. commercial papd® 5.42% 201(¢ 639,26 322,71:
Canadian commercial pag® 4.35% 201( 78,87 67,08(
Unsecured U.S. note®):
Debenture: 9.7/% 201:-2017 62,91: 125,91!
Mediun-term notes 5.36% 2007-202¢ 1,795,36. 1,394,971
Unsecured U.S. obligations, principally bank teoarls 6.0(% 2007-201C 58,05( 56,20(
Unsecured foreign obligatior 5.4% 2007-2011 157,28: 118,27
Asse-backed securitie®® — — — 71,55!
Capital lease obligatior 7.21% 2007201¢ 3,50¢ 1,68:
Total before fair market value adjustm: 2,795,25I 2,158,38
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject dimg (3) 96 75¢
2,795,341 2,159,141
Current portion of lon-term debt, including capital leas (311,149 (243,21%)
Long-term debi 2,484,19: 1,915,92
Total debt $2,816,94. 2,185,36!

1) Ryder had unamortized original issue discountsld fillion at December 31, 2006 and 20

(2)  Asse-backed securities represent outstanding term debowsolidated VIES. As-backed securities are collateralized by cash rese®posits and revenue earning equipn

of consolidated VIEs totaling $97 million at DecemB1, 2005

(3)  The notional amount of executed interest rate svigstgnated as fair value hedges was $35 millicth $185 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respely.
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Maturities of debt (including sinking fund técgements) were as follows:

Capital Leases Debt
(In thousands)

2007 $ 84¢ 332,12:
2008 854 92,67(
2009 554 177,05(
2010 33¢ 1,003,80
2011 32¢ 464,78
Thereafter 1,51¢ 743,00

Total 4,44( 2,813,43.
Imputed interest (937)

Present value of minimum capitalized lease payments 3,50¢
Current portion (621)

Long-term capitalized lease obligatior $ 2,88¢

Ryder can borrow up to $870 million througglabal revolving credit facility with a syndicaté twelve lenders. The credit facility matures in
May 2010 and is used primarily to finance workiragpital and provide support for the issuance of cenuial paper. This facility can also be used
to issue up to $75 million in letters of creditdtk were no letters of credit outstanding agamsfacility at December 31, 2006). At Ryder’s
option, the interest rate on borrowings under tteglit facility is based on LIBOR, prime, federahfis or local equivalent rates. The credit
facility’s current annual facility fee is 11.0 bagoints, which applies to the total facility ofBmillion, and is based on Ryder’s current credit
ratings. The credit facility contains no provisiaestricting its availability in the event of a md#l adverse change to RydeBusiness operatior
however, the credit facility does contain standatesentations and warranties, events of defenalss-default provisions, and certain affirmative
and negative covenants. In order to maintain abiitha of funding, Ryder must maintain a ratio aflat to consolidated tangible net worth, as
defined in the agreement, of less than or equab@%. The ratio at December 31, 2006 was 146%.éd&eber 31, 2006, $113 million was
available under the credit facility. Foreign borings of $109 million were outstanding under thelfigcat December 31, 2006.

Commercial paper is supported by the longitezvolving credit facility previously discusseduiOntent is to continue to renew the revolving
credit facility on a long-term basis, subject torked conditions. As a result, the commercial pagerowings supported by the long-term
revolving credit facility are classified as longftedebt.

During 1986, we issued at a discount $100anilprincipal amount of unsecured debentures dag BD16, with a stated interest rate of 9.0%,
payable semi-annually. During the fourth quarte2@®6, we retired $63 million of the outstandin@npipal of these debentures at a premium,
which resulted in a charge of $2 million. The cleargpresents the premium paid on the early extitgoént and the write-off of related debt
discount and issuance costs. As of December 38, 2®M million principal amount of the debenturmegned outstanding.

During 2006, we issued $550 million of unsecumedium-term notes, of which $250 million maturélay 2011 and $300 million mature in
November 2016. During 2005, we issued $600 milbbnnsecured mediu-term notes, of which $225 million mature in A2D10, $175 million
mature in April 2011 and $200 million mature in 2012. The proceeds from the notes were usedefergl corporate purposes.
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During 2005, Ryder filed a universal sheljistration statement with the SEC to issue up @0#8illion of securities, including $65 million
available securities that was carried forward fittin previous shelf registration statement. Proc&eds debt issuances under the universal shelf
registration statement are being used for generglocate purposes, which may include capital exjteres, share repurchases and reduction in
commercial paper borrowings. At December 31, 2608@ler had $250 million of debt securities availdbleissuance under the latest registration
statement.

Effective July 1, 2003, Ryder consolidated tvehicle lease trusts that were considered VIEs. dctivities of each of the separately rated
vehicle lease trusts and related debt were orilyimdflorded off-balance sheet treatment under sgsaccounting rules. Each of these trusts was
established as part of vehicle securitization @matisns. These vehicle securitization transacttgpgally involve the sale and leaseback of
revenue earning equipment under lease to our cestoto a vehicle lease trust (a special purposg/emwhich purchases the revenue earning
equipment with cash raised primarily through tre@ce of debt instruments in the public marketgdfparty investors have recourse to the
revenue earning equipment in the trusts and beinefit credit enhancements provided by Ryder inftinen of up-front cash reserve deposits as
additional security to the extent that delinques@ad losses on customer leases and related vehlek are incurred. At December 31, 2006,
neither of these trusts remained in existence.fA3ecember 31, 2005, one trust remained in exigtema the outstanding principal of asset-
backed senior notes issued by the trust in cormreetith this transaction was $72 million. At Deceani81, 2005, the cash reserve deposit
maintained by Ryder totaled $15 million. Other tlilae credit enhancements, Ryder did not guaraheehird-party investors’ interests in the
vehicle lease trusts.

Ryder Receivable Funding Il, L.L.C. (RRF LL@)bankruptcy remote, consolidated subsidiaryyafedR has a Trade Receivables Purchase anc
Sale Agreement (the Trade Receivables Agreemettt)warious financial institutions. Under this pragr, Ryder sells certain of its domestic tr
accounts receivable to RRF LLC who in turn may, s®lla revolving basis, an ownership interest iaie of these accounts receivable to a
receivables conduit and (or) committed purchadémsler the terms of the program, RRF LLC and Ryderetprovided representations,
warranties, covenants and indemnities that aremasty for accounts receivable facilities of thipey Ryder entered into this program to provide
additional liquidity to fund its operations, pattiarly when the cost of such sales is cost effectiompared with other funding programs, notably
the issuance of unsecured commercial paper. Thgr@m is accounted for as a collateralized finapeimangement. The available proceeds that
may be received by RRF LLC under the program anédid to $200 million. RRF LLC’s costs under thiegram may vary based on changes in
Ryder’s unsecured debt ratings and changes irestteaites. If no event occurs which causes eartyimation, the 364-day program will expire on
September 11, 2007. As of December 31, 2006 an#l,2088re were no amounts outstanding under theeagget.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, Ryder hadrettf credit and surety bonds outstanding, whiaiagrily guarantee various insurance
activities as noted in the following table. See N8, “Guarantees,” for further discussion on @utding letters of credit and surety bonds.

December 3.
2006 2005
(In thousands
Letters of credi $217,33¢ 213,97°
Surety bond: 52,231 53,25¢
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17.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest Rate Risk

From time to time, we enter into interesersvap and cap agreements to manage our fixedaaiable interest rate exposure and to better
match the repricing of debt instruments to thabwf portfolio of assets. We assess the risk thahghs in interest rates will have either on the fai
value of debt obligations or on the amount of fatiunterest payments by monitoring changes in istere exposures and by evaluating hedging
opportunities. Ryder regularly monitors interegéenask attributable to both Ryder’s outstandindgarecasted debt obligations as well as Ryder’s
offsetting hedge positions. This risk managemeotgss involves the use of analytical techniquesuding cash flow sensitivity analysis, to
estimate the expected impact of changes in inteatst on Ryder’s future cash flows.

During 2004, Ryder entered into an interatt swap with a notional value of $27 million. veap was accounted for as a cash flow hedge
whereby we received foreign variable interest payih& exchange for having made fixed interest payts1 The 2004 swap agreement matur
April 2007. The critical terms of the interest rateap and the hedged interest payments were the. geroordingly, no ineffectiveness arose
relating to the cash flow hedge. The fair valu¢hef swap was recognized as an adjustment to “Actatediother comprehensive loss.” Any
amounts that were reclassified or that we expebetreclassified to earnings in the immediate fifoom “Accumulated other comprehensive
loss” are immaterial.

During 2002, Ryder entered into interest extap agreements designated as fair value hedgaelyhwe received fixed interest rate paym
in exchange for having made variable interest patements. The differential to be paid or receive wccrued and recognized as interest exp
At December 31, 2006, two interest rate swap ages¢siremain in existence and the contracts matugeptember and October 2007. At
December 31, 2006, the remaining interest rate agapements effectively changed $35 million of @i>rate debt instruments with a weighted-
average fixed interest rate of 6.6% to LIBOR-bafteating-rate debt at a weighted-average rate 8¥6.At December 31, 2005, these interest rate
swap agreements effectively changed $185 milliofixefd-rate debt instruments with a weighted-averfiged interest rate of 6.7% to LIBOR-
based floating-rate debt at a weighted-averagemgeest of 6.2%. The current portion of the faifue of the interest rate swap agreements was
classified in “Prepaid expenses and other curresgta” with the remainder classified in “Directdiiting leases and other assets.” Changes in the
fair value of the interest rate swaps were offgetiianges in the fair value of the debt instrumeftsordingly, there was no ineffectiveness
related to these interest rate swaps. During 20085 and 2004, the decrease in the fair valuetefest rate swaps totaled approximately
$1 million, $4 million and $9 million, respectively

Currency Risk

From time to time, we use forward foreignreacy exchange contracts and cross-currency swapsiiage our exposure to movements in
foreign currency exchange rates.

During 2006, Ryder entered into forward fgrecurrency exchange contracts to mitigate theafdhreign currency movements on
intercompany transactions. At December 31, 2065atigregate notional value of the outstanding ectgrwas $9 million. These forward foreign
currency exchange contracts are accounted forsdsflaw hedges and mature in January 2007 and N&y.2The fair values of the forward
foreign currency exchange contracts are recograsegh adjustment to “Accumulated other compreherisss.” Any amounts reclassified or that
we expect to be reclassified to earnings in the édliate future from “Accumulated other comprehensigs” are immaterial.

During 2002, Ryder entered into a five-yea8 #illion cross-currency swap to hedge our netgtment in a foreign subsidiary. The hedge
was effective in eliminating the risk of foreignroency
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movements on the investment and, as such, was ratecbfor under the net investment hedging rulessks (gains) associated with changes il
fair value of the cross-currency swap for the yesrded December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were Ji6rm$(6) million and $7 million,
respectively, and were reflected in the currenapgfation adjustment within “Accumulated other coefy@nsive loss.” By rule, interest costs
associated with the cross-currency swap are redjtiree reflected in “Accumulated other comprehem$iss.” Cumulative interest costs
associated with the cross-currency swap reflecté¢dccumulated other comprehensive loss” were $Hianiand $3 million at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively, and will be recognimegarnings upon sale or repatriation of our neestment in the foreign subsidiary.

Fair Value

The following table represents the carryingpants and estimated fair values of certain of Rgdaancial instruments at December 31, 2006
and 2005. The fair value of a financial instrumisrthe amount at which the instrument could be arged in a current transaction between
willing parties (fair values were based on dealsstgtions that represent the discounted future flasls through maturity or expiration using
current rates):

December 3:
2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In thousands
Assets:
Interest rate swag $ 133 13¢ 75¢ 75¢
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: 32€ 32¢€ — —
Liabilities:
Total debi® 2,813,43 2,794,74: 2,183,541 2,188,411
Interest rate swag — — 18¢€ 18¢€
Crost-currency swaj 20,101 20,10: 9,73¢ 9,73¢

(1)  The carrying amount of total debt excludes cap#akes of $4 million and $2 million at December 2106 and 2005, respective

The carrying amounts of all other instrumeagproximated fair value at December 31, 2006 arb20

18. GUARANTEES

Ryder has executed various agreements wiitth prarties that contain standard indemnificatitites may require Ryder to indemnify a third
party against losses arising from a variety of eratsuch as lease obligations, financing agreememi&ronmental matters, and agreements to sell
business assets. In each of these instances, papynBRyder is contingent on the other party briggébout a claim under the procedures outlined
in the specific agreement. Normally, these proceslatiow Ryder to dispute the other party’s cladditionally, Ryder’s obligations under these
agreements may be limited in terms of the amoudt(ar) timing of any claim. In October 2006, Ry@srtered into individual indemnification
agreements with each of its independent direcidre.terms of the indemnification agreements protide to the extent permitted by Florida law,
Ryder will indemnify such director acting in goath in a manner he or she reasonably believea fo,bor not opposed to, the best interests of
Ryder, against any and all losses, expenses dritities arising out of such director’s serviceaadirector of Ryder. The maximum amount of
potential future payments is generally unlimitece ¥annot predict the maximum potential amount afriipayments under certain of these
agreements, including the indemnification
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agreements, due to the contingent nature of thengiat obligations and the distinctive provisiohattare involved in each individual agreement.
Historically, no such payments made by Ryder hadkdimaterial adverse effect on our business. Wevieghat if a loss were incurred in any of
these matters, the loss would not result in a redtedverse impact on our consolidated resultspefrations or financial position.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the maximutardenable exposure of each type of guaranteelamddrresponding liability, if any,
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets wéodi@ass:

December 31, 200! December 31, 200
Maximum Carrying Maximum Carrying
Exposure of Amount of Exposure o Amount of
Guarantee Guarantee Liability Guarantet Liability

(In thousands
Vehicle residual value guarante

Sales and leaseback arrangem— end of term guarante(? $ — — 628 4
Finance lease prograr 3,541 94¢€ 3,83¢ 1,73(C
Used vehicle financin 6,04¢ 811 4,45( 1,197
Standby letters of crec 6,931 — 7,29¢ —
Total $16,52¢ 1,757 16,21¢ 2,931

(1) Amounts exclude contingent rentals associated ighiual value guarantees on certain vehicles hwelder operating leases for which the guaranteescaralitioned upol
disposal of the leased vehicles prior to the entheir lease term. At December 31, 2006 and 20§8eRs maximum exposure for such guarantees wasajpately
$113 million and $161 million, respectively, witk fillion and $5 million, respectively, recordedaability.

Ryder has entered into transactions for theeaad operating leaseback of revenue earning ewgrip In connection with the transactions,
Ryder provided the lessors with residual value gotaes at the end of the lease term. Therefotteg i6ales proceeds from the final disposition of
any such vehicle are less than the correspondsidual value guarantee, Ryder is required to paydifierence to the lessor. Our maximum
exposure for such guarantees was approximatelyifibmmat December 31, 2005. The last of the saleé aperating leaseback arrangements with
end of the term guarantees expired in 2006.

Ryder provided vehicle residual value guarastto independent third parties for finance lgmegrams made available to customers. If the
sales proceeds from the final disposition of treetsare less than the residual value guaranteklriRyrequired to pay the difference to the
independent third party. The individual customaafice leases expire periodically through 2013 kayt be extended at the end of each lease
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our maximum expdsureuch guarantees was approximately $4 milliorach period, with $1 million and
$2 million, respectively, recorded as a liability.

Ryder maintains agreements with independert parties for the financing of used vehicle fhases by customers. Certain agreements
require that Ryder provide financial guaranteesl@iaulted customer contracts up to a maximum exgasmount. The individual used vehicle
purchase contracts expire periodically though 2@tDecember 31, 2006 and 2005, our maximum exmoarsuch guarantees was
approximately $6 million and $4 million, respectiewith $1 million recorded as a liability at tleed of each period.

Ryder had letters of credit and surety bamatstanding, which primarily guarantee the paynoérimsurance claims. Certain of these letters of
credit and surety bonds guarantee insurance aei\associated with insurance claim liabilitiessf@rred in conjunction with the sale of our
automotive
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transport business, reported as discontinued apasah previous years. The entity that assumeskthiabilities filed for protection under

Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Codéuiyn 31, 2005. To date, the insurance claims, spréng peelaim deductibles payable unc
third-party insurance policies, have been paid@mtinue to be paid by the company that assumed Igkilities. However, if all or a portion of
the estimated outstanding assumed claims of appairly $7 million at December 31, 2006 are unableet paid, the third-party insurers may
have recourse against certain of the outstanditey$eof credit provided by Ryder in order to dgtthe unpaid claim deductibles. In order to
reduce our potential exposure to these claims,ave heceived an irrevocable letter of credit fréma purchaser of the business referred to above
totaling $8 million at December 31, 2006. Periothican independent actuarial valuation will be read order to better estimate the amount of
outstanding insurance claim liabilities. At DecemBg, 2005, the estimated outstanding assumed haiene $7 million for which we had
received approximately $9 million in letters of dite

19. SHAREHOLDERY? EQUITY

In May 2006, our Board of Directors authodzetwo-year share repurchase program intendedtigate the dilutive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock option and stackhmase plans. Under the May 2006 program, managemauthorized to repurchase shares
of common stock in an amount not to exceed the rurabshares issued to employees upon the exart&eck options or through the employee
stock purchase plan since March 1, 2006. The M&6 20ogram limits aggregate share repurchases mare than 2 million shares of Ryder
common stock. Share repurchases are made perigditapen-market transactions, and are subjentddket conditions, legal requirements and
other factors. Management was granted the authriggtablish a trading plan for the Company uitlde 10b5-Iof the Securities Exchange /
of 1934 as part of the May 2006 program, whichva#ld for share repurchases during Ryder’s quart#agkout periods as set forth in the trading
plan. At December 31, 2006, we repurchased ancdegipproximately 1.8 million shares under the M@@6 program at an aggregate cost of
$93 million.

In October 2005, our Board of Directors auited a $175 million share repurchase program avggriod not to exceed two years. Share
repurchases of common stock were made periodicathpen-market transactions and were subject t@baonditions, legal requirements and
other factors. Management established a prearrangtédn plan for the Company under Rule 10b5-thef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as
part of the October 2005 program, which allowedsfoare repurchases during Ryder’s quarterly blacgeriods as set forth in the trading plan.
During the first quarter of 2006, we completed @wtober 2005 program. In 2006 and 2005, we repseghand retired approximately 1.6 million
and 2.6 million shares, respectively, under theo®et 2005 program at an aggregate cost of $66omiind $109 million, respectively.

In July 2004, our Board of Directors authedz two-year share repurchase program intendeitigmate the dilutive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock option and stackhmse plans. Under the July 2004 program, sldiresmmon stock were purchased in an
amount not to exceed the number of shares issuedhpdoyees upon the exercise of stock optionsroutih the employee stock purchase plan
since May 1, 2004. The July 2004 program limitedragate share repurchases to no more than 3.smdhares of Ryder common stock. Share
repurchases of common stock were made periodicathpen-market transactions, and were subject tk@haonditions, legal requirements and
other factors. Management established a prearrangédn plan for the Company under Rule 10b5-thef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as
part of the July 2004 program, which allowed foarghrepurchases during Ryder’s quarterly blacketbgs as set forth in the trading plan.
During the fourth quarter of 2005, we replaceddhly 2004 program with the October 2005 progranedgreviously. In
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2005 and 2004, we repurchased and retired approsiynh 0 million and 1.4 million shares, respeciyveinder the July 2004 program at an
aggregate cost of $43 million and $62 million, msprely.

In October 2003, our Board of Directors auitted a $90 million share repurchase program oymrad not to exceed two years. Under the
October 2003 program, shares of common stock warghpsed in a dollar amount not to exceed the pdxgenerated from the issuance of
common stock to employees since January 1, 20@8eSkpurchases of common stock were made perlbydicapen-market transactions and
were subject to market conditions, legal requiret®i@nd other factors. During the second quart@06#, we completed the October 2003
program. In 2004, we repurchased and retired appiately 2.4 million shares under the October 20@8ymm at an aggregate cost of
$87 million.

20. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOS!

The following summary sets forth the compdaef accumulated other comprehensive loss, nebof

Additional Accumulatec
Currency Minimum Unrecognizec Unrecognizec Unrecognize Unrealized Other
Translation Pensior Net Actuarial Prior Service Transition Gain (Loss; Comprehensivi
Adjustments Liability () Loss® Credit® Asset(1) on Derivatives Loss
(In thousands
January 1, 200 $ 10,99¢ (187,44 — — — (207) (176,65¢)
2004 Activity 27,98 (1,079) — — — 324 27,23
December 31, 200 38,97¢ (188,519 — — — 117 (149,42)
2005 Activity (21,022 (32,169 — — — (305) (53,499
December 31, 200 17,95. (220,687 — — — (18€) (202,919
2006 Activity 29,11¢ 178,08 — — — 224 207,42
Adoption of SFAS 158 7,77¢ 42,602 (216,470 14,97¢ 114 = (150,999
December 31, 200 $ 54,847 — (216,470 14,97¢ 114 _36 (146,499

(1)  Amounts pertain to our pension and postretirememigfit plans

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION
A reconciliation of the number of shares usedomputing basic and diluted EPS follows:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004

(In thousands
Weighte(-average shares outstand— Basic 60,87: 63,75¢ 64,28(
Effect of dilutive options and nonvested stc 70E 802 1,391
Weightec-average shares outstand— Diluted 61,57¢ 64,56( 65,67
Anti-dilutive options not included abo 95¢& 1,17¢ 93
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22. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides information dmesebased compensation expense and income tax berfitgnized in 2006, 2005 and 2004.
discussed in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Acciing Policies,” effective January 1, 2006, we a@ogthe fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123R which, among other things, requihedrecognition of expense for stock options vesaifigr the date of adoption. Prior to the
adoption of SFAS No. 123R, share-based compensetipanse was limited to the expense attributeddatants of nonvested stock.

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Stock option and stock purchase pl $10,147 — —
Nonvested stock (restricted stot 3,49¢ 3,12¢ 1,902
Share-based compensation expel 13,64 3,12¢ 1,90z
Income tax benefi (4,01%) (1,199 (74)

Shar-based compensation expense, net o $ 9,62¢ 1,931 1,15¢

Total unrecognized compensation expenseectlat share-based compensation arrangements atnbec&1, 2006 was $20 million and is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagediof approximately 3.5 years. The total failueaof shares vested during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $14 millia8,illion, and $12 million, respectively.

Share-Based Incentive Awards

Share-based incentive awards are providednployees under the terms of six share-based caapen plans (collectively, the “Plans”). The
Plans are administered by the Compensation Coneriftthe Board of Directors. Awards under the Plamiscipally include at-the -money stock
options, nonvested stock (restricted stock) andketarased nonvested stock. The moanagement members of the Board of Directors &iseive
stock options or restricted stock units under adar stock plan. The amount of shares authorizdxbtissued under the Plans was 5 million at
December 31, 2006. There were 3.8 million unusadeshavailable to be granted under the Plans Beaémber 31, 2006.

A majority of share-based compensation expéngenerated from stock options. Stock optiorsaarards which allow employees to purchase
shares of the Company’s stock at a fixed priceckSaption awards are granted at an exercise pgualeo the market price of Ryderstock at th
time of grant. These awards, which generally vestihird each year, are fully vested three yeans fthe grant date and have contractual terms
ranging from seven to ten years.

Restricted stock awards are nonvested sfgbksrthat are granted to employees and entitld¢ider to shares of common stock as the award
vests. These time-vested restricted stock rigigie@jly vest in three equal installments over &#ayear period regardless of company
performance. The fair value of the awards is defrgethand fixed on the grant date based on Rydartkprice on the date of grant. A portion of
the restricted stock awards include a market-bassting provision. Under such provision, the empksy/only receive the grant of stock if Ryder’
total shareholder return (TSR) as a percentagleeo$&P 500 comparable period TSR is 100% or greater a thregrear period. The fair value
the awards is determined on the date of grantsbdsed on the likelihood of Ryder achieving the
market-based condition. Expense on the market-b&stdcted stock awards is recognized regardleRyder’s actual TSR performance
compared to the S&P.
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Restricted stock units (RSUs) are units o€lstgranted to non-management members of the Bidbirectors. Once granted, RSUs are
eligible for dividends but have no voting righthelRSUs vest upon a board member’s departure fierBoard. At the time of vesting, the RSUs
are redeemed for an equivalent number of sharBydér's common stock. The fair value of the awasdietermined and fixed on the grant date
based on Ryder’s stock price on the date of grant.

Option Awards

A summary of option activity under our stagition plans as of December 31, 2006, and chang@sgathe year ended December 31, 2006 is
presented in the table below:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Shares Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) Price (In years) (In thousands)
Options outstanding at Januar 4,53¢ $ 33.0Z
Granted 1,081 43.15
Exercisec (2,012 29.5¢
Forfeited or expiret (195) 39.9¢
Options outstanding at December 3,41( $ 37.8¢ 4.8 $ 46,707
Vested and expected to vest at Decembe 3,281 $ 37.7¢ 5.1 $ 45,40¢
Exercisable at December 1,297 $ 30.1¢4 3.8 $ 27,807

The aggregate intrinsic values in the tableve represent the total pre-tax intrinsic valle @ifference between the market price of Ryder’s
stock on the last trading day of the year and #egaise price, multiplied by the number of in-tineoney options) that would have been received
by the option holders had all option holders exaditheir options at year-end. The amount changssdoon the fair market value of Ryder’s
stock.

Information about options in various pricagas at December 31, 2006 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Contractual Term Average Exercise Average Exercise
Price Ranges Shares (In years) Price Shares Price
(Shares in thousands
$15.0(-20.00 241 3.8 $ 16.72 241 $ 16.72
20.0(-25.00 237 3.7 22.21 237 22.21
25.0(-35.00 297 2.7 27.7¢ 272 27.2¢
35.0(-40.00 60¢ 4.2 36.9( 281 36.87
40.00-45.00 1,93¢ 5.6 43.7¢ 241 44.8¢
45.00 and ovel 89 5.8 50.0z 25 49.27
Total 3,41( 4.8 $ 37.8¢ 1,297 $ 30.14
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Stock Award:

A summary of the status of Ryder’s nonvestedk awards, including awards with a markased vesting provision, as of December 31, 2
and changes during the year ended December 31,i2@0d6ésented in the table below:

Weighted-

Average

Shares Grant Date

(In thousands) Fair Value
Nonvested stock outstanding at Janua 297 $ 34.4¢
Granted 19z 38.9¢
Vested (12¢) 30.3¢
Forfeited (25) 34.2¢
Nonvested stock outstanding at Decembe 337 $ 38.5¢
Nonvested stock outstanding at December 31, sutgjentirket based conditio 96 $ 26.15

Stock Purchase Plar

Ryder maintains an Employee Stock Purchaae @SPP), which enables eligible participanth&W.S. and Canada to purchase full or
fractional shares of Ryder common stock throughr@hgleductions of up to 15% of eligible compensatiThe ESPP provides for quarterly
offering periods during which shares may be puretiag 85% of the fair market value on either thet fir the last trading day of the quarter,
whichever is less. Stock purchased under the ESI® le held for 90 days. The amount of shares aatibto be issued under the existing ESPP
was 3.2 million at December 31, 2006. There we®entillion unused shares available to be grantecutite ESPP as of December 31, 2006.

The following table summarizes the statuRpfler’'s stock purchase plan:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Contractual Value
(In thousands) Price Term (In thousands)
Outstanding at January — $ —
Granted 173 39.5¢
Exercisec a73) 39.5¢
Forfeited or expirel — —
Outstanding at December — $ — — $ —
Exercisable at December — $ — — $ —

Share-Based Compensation Fair Value Assumptions

The fair value of each option award is estedaon the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-dfeoption-pricing valuation model that uses the
weighted-average assumptions noted in the tabtebé&lor 2006, expected volatility is based on histd volatility of Ryder’s stock and implied
volatility from traded options on Ryder’s stock.ri2005 and 2004, expected volatility was basedistotical volatility of Ryder’s stock. The risk-
free rate for periods within the contractual lifettoe stock option award is based on the yield ewfva zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond on the
date the stock option award is granted with
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a maturity equal to the expected term of the stgation award. We use historical data to estimaieksoption exercises and forfeitures within the
valuation model. The expected term of stock optieards granted is derived from historical exereiggerience under the share-based employee
compensation arrangements and represents the mériioge that stock option awards granted are etqueto be outstanding. The fair value of
market-based stock awards is estimated usingieddibsed option-pricing valuation model that ip@yates a Monte-Carlo simulation. Estimates
of fair value are not intended to predict actualifa events or the value ultimately realized by Eyges who receive equity awards, and
subsequent events are not indicative of the reddemass of the original estimates of fair value enagd Ryder. The following table presents the
weighted-average assumptions used for options gglant

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
Option plans
Expected dividend 1.7% 1.5% 1.7%
Expected volatility 27.2% 25.1% 30.7%
Risk-free rate 4.6% 3.6% 3.0%
Expected tern 4.1 year: 4.0 year 4.4 year
Gran-date fair value $10.7¢ $9.7: $9.6(
Purchase plar
Expected dividend 1.4% 1.6% 1.7%
Expected volatility 29.4% 18.5% 31.0%
Risk-free rate 4.7% 2.8% 1.2%
Expected tern 0.25 year 0.25 year 0.25 year
Gran-date fair value $10.4¢ $7.5( $8.1¢

Exercise of Employee Stock Options and Purchase Pia

The total intrinsic value of options exercishuring the years ended December 31, 2006, 2002@4 was $41 million, $15 million and
$50 million, respectively. The total cash receifeun employees as a result of exercises undehatesbased employee compensation
arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2006,and 2004 was $61 million, $28 million and $&iflion, respectively. In connection
with these exercises, the tax benefits realizexh fsbare-based employee compensation arrangemergssive million, $6 million and $21 million
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 andl, 286pectively.

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension Plans

Ryder sponsors several defined benefit panslians covering most employees not covered byndadministered plans, including certain
employees in foreign countries. These plans gelggadvide participants with benefits based on gearservice and careaxerage compensatit
levels. The funding policy for these plans is tdkemaontributions based on annual service costsghustization of unfunded past service liabi
but not greater than the maximum allowable contiitsudeductible for federal income tax purposese Majority of the plans’ assets are invested
in a master trust that, in turn, is primarily intexsin listed stocks and bonds.

Ryder also participates in multiemployer gléimat provide defined benefits to certain emplgya®srered by collective-bargaining agreements.
Such plans are usually administered by a boarduste¢es comprised of the management of the paatioip companies and labor representatives.
The net pension
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cost of these plans is equal to the annual coritobuletermined in accordance with the provisiohsegotiated labor contracts. Assets contribi
to such plans are not segregated or otherwisaatestito provide benefits only to employees of Ryde

Pension Expens

Pension expense was as follows:

Years ended December
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Compan-administered plans

Service cos $42,67¢ 37,25: 36,47:
Interest cos 82,53¢ 76,517 71,46¢
Expected return on plan ass (99,520 (90,65¢) (82,312
Amortization of transition ass (30 (29) (29
Recognized net actuarial lo 33,57¢ 30,031 31,63¢
Amortization of prior service co: 6,31¢ 1,421 2,18¢
65,55¢ 54,52¢ 59,42:
Union-administered plan 4,87¢ 4,69¢ 4,012
Net pension expens $ 70,43¢ 59,221 63,43¢
Compan-administered plans
u.s. $ 46,27¢ 39,59¢ 44,48
Non-U.S. 19,28 14,931 14,93¢
65,55¢ 54,52¢ 59,42:
Union-administered plan 4,87¢ 4,69¢ 4,01z
$ 70,43¢ 59,227 63,43¢

The following table sets forth the weightad@age actuarial assumptions used for Ryder’s pandans in determining annual pension
expense:

U.S. Plang Non- U.S. Plans
Years ended December Years ended December
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Discount rate 5.73% 5.90% 6.00% 5.00% 5.58% 5.61%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 3.62% 3.50% 3.50%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 7.50% 7.92% 7.92%
Transition amortization in yea 8 8 9 6 7 7
Gain and loss amortization in ye: 8 8 9 8 8 8

The return on plan assets assumption refthetsveighted-average of the expected long-teresrat return for the broad categories of
investments held in the plans. The expected long-tate of return is adjusted when there are furedtdal changes in expected returns in the plan
assets.
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Pension Accounting Char

In the third quarter of 2006, we recordedha-time, non-cash pension accounting charge of i$®m($4 million after-tax), to properly
account for prior service costs related to retgersion benefit improvements made in 1995 and 20@0previously amortized prior service costs
over the remaining life expectancy of retired maptnts (approximately 15 years). The applicabt®aating literature requires that prior service
costs be amortized over the future service perfattive employees at the date of the amendmerttwénie expected to receive benefits under the
plan (approximately 6-8 years for Ryder). Thertitare does provide an exception in which priovisercosts can be amortized over the
remaining life expectancy of retired participaritali or almost all of the plan participants aradtive. In the third quarter of 2006, we determined
that we had not met the exception criteria, whibbwes for the use of the remaining life expectanyetired participants as the amortization
period. Because the amounts involved were not ria&terour consolidated financial statements in anjvidual prior period, and the cumulative
amount is not material to 2006 results, we recotteccumulative adjustment, which increased “Sataaind employee-related costs” and reduced
“Intangible assets” by $6 million, in 2006.

Pension Remeasurement Ben

The historical basis of accounting for ouBUand Canadian pension plans included a substacdimmitment to make future plan amendm
in order to provide benefits (to active employessibutable to prior service that are greater tthenbenefits defined by the written terms of the
plans. In the fourth quarter of 2006, our Retiretr@ammittee resolved that there was no commitmegrant benefit improvements at the present
time or in the near future. As a result, we elinobthe substantive commitment benefit improvenassumption for the U.S. and Canadian plans.
This action was considered a substantive amendtoé¢hé plans which required an interim measureroéptan assets and pension obligations as
of the date of the amendment. The revalued amouerts also used to measure pension expense frodatbef the amendment through year-end.
In performing this interim measurement, we updatat asset values, rolled forward employee cenatsstd reflect population changes and
reviewed the appropriateness of all actuarial agsioms including discount rate, expected long-teate of return, expected increase in
compensation levels, retirement rate and mortalibe prospective application of the interim measwet reduced fourth quarter 2006 pension
expense by $5 million relative to expenses recaghthrough September 30, 2006.
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Obligations and Funded Stat

The following table sets forth the balanceetimpact, as well as the benefit obligationsetsand funded status associated with Ryder’s
pension plans:

December 3:

2006 2005

(In thousands
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligations at January $1,467,89: 1,330,35!
Service cos 42,67¢ 37,25
Interest cos 82,53¢ 76,51:
Actuarial (gain) los: (23,54 96,597
Benefits paic (49,089 (45,340
Transfers — (5,019
Plan amendmer (22,72 —
Foreign currency exchange rate char 33,83¢ (22,479

Benefit obligations at December $1,531,57 1,467,89.

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at Janua $1,147,53 1,106,38!
Actual return on plan asse 158,78: 94,74¢
Employer contributior 129,63: 12,28¢
Plan participan’ contributions 2,18( 2,22¢
Benefits paic (49,089 (45,340
Transfers — (5,019
Foreign currency exchange rate char 28,26¢ (17,759

Fair value of plan assets at Decembe $1,417,30! 1,147,53

Funded statu $ (114,27) (320,35

Unrecognized transition ass (169) a71)

Unrecognized prior service (credit) c (20,78Y) 7,33

Unrecognized net actuarial lo 318,45. 427,58(

Net $ 183,23: 114,39¢
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Amounts recognized in the balance sheet statsof:

December 3:
2006 2005
(In thousands
Accrued benefit liability $(114,27)) (237,679
Intangible asset — 7,33:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss -tax) 297,50« 344,73t
Net amount recognize $ 183,23: 114,39¢

Items not yet recognized as a component o$ipa expense as of December 31, 2006 consisted of:

Transition asse
Prior service cred
Net actuarial los

Accumulated other comprehensive loss-tax)

In 2007, we expect to recognize approximasdymillion of the prior service credit, and $19lon of the net actuarial loss as a component of

pension expense.

(In thousands

$ (169
(20,785
318,45

$297,50¢

Our annual measurement dates are Decembiefo8tmth U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans. ThHiedong table sets forth the weighted-

average actuarial assumptions used for Ryder'sigepsans in determining funded status:

U.S. Plang Non-U.S. Plans
December 3: December 3:
2006 2005 2006 2005
Discount rate 6.00% 5.65% 4.84% 5.00%
Rate of increase in compensation ley 4.00% 4.00% 3.33% 3.62%
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At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our pensidigations (accumulated benefit obligations (ABO}amojected benefit obligations (PBO))
greater than the fair value of our plan assetetwrJ.S. and non-U.S. plans were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non- U.S. Plan Total
December 3: December 3: December 3:
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
(In thousands

Accumulated benefit obligatior $1,124,08: 1,116,03. 336,72. 269,17¢ 1,460,80:. 1,385,211
Plans with ABO in excess of plan assi

PBO $ 33,25¢ 1,187,16 349,62t 280,72 382,88 1,467,809

ABO $ 30,491 1,116,03. 336,72. 269,17¢ 367,21 1,385,211

Fair value of plan asse $ 21¢ 939,72: 321,60: 207,81¢ 321,82: 1,147,53
Plans with PBO in excess of plan ass

PBO $1,181,95: 1,187,16 349,62t 280,72 1,531,57 1,467,809

ABO $1,124,08: 1,116,03. 336,72. 269,17¢ 1,460,80: 1,385,211

Fair value of plan asse $1,095,70: 939,72: 321,60: 207,81¢ 1,417,30! 1,147,53

Plan Assets

The percentage of fair value of total asbgtasset category and target allocations is agvistl

U.S. Plang Non- U.S. Plans
Actual December 3 Target Actual December 3 Target
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Asset category
Equity securities 7% 76% 70% 70% 78% 76% 7% T7%
Debt securitie! 20% 21% 26% 26% 22% 23% 23% 23%
Other 3% 3% 4% 4% 0% 1% 0% 0%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Ryder’s investment strategy for the pensitamp is to maximize the long-term rate of returmptan assets within an acceptable level of risk in
order to minimize the cost of providing pension &i@s. The plans utilize several investment str@ggncluding actively managed equity and
fixed income strategies and index funds. The immesitt policy establishes a target allocation foheasset class. Deviations between actual
pension plan asset allocations and targeted aésedt#ons may occur as a result of investmentgrerince during a month. Rebalancing of our
pension plan asset portfolios occurs each montadas the prior month’s ending balances.
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The following table details pension beneditpected to be paid in each of the next five figears and in aggregate for the five fiscal years
thereafter:

(In thousands)

2007 $ 55,68t¢
2008 59,36¢
2009 63,32¢
2010 67,557
2011 72,44(
2012-2016 442,83(

For 2007, pension contributions to Ryder’'s U.S.gi@m plans and non-U.S. pension plans are estintated $42 million and $16 million,
respectively.

Subsequent Event

On January 5, 2007, our Board of Directorgraped an amendment to freeze the U.S. pensiongflactive December 31, 2007 for current
participants who do not meet certain grandfathecnitgria. As a result, these employees will ces=auing further benefits after December 31,
2007 and will participate in an enhanced 401(khplenose participants that meet the grandfathesiitgria will be given the option to either
continue to earn benefits in the U.S. pension plamansition into an enhanced 401(k) plan. Allrezhent benefits earned as of December 31,
2007 will be fully preserved and will be paid incacdance with the plan and legal requirements. Bygas hired after January 1, 2007 will not be
eligible to participate in the pension plan. Theefre of the U.S. pension plan did not create aitunent gain or loss.

Savings Plans

Ryder also has defined contribution savingagthat are available to substantially all Uig1 &anadian employees. Costs recognized for
these plans equal to Ryder’s total contributionisiclv are based on employee classification and neagy dombination of fixed contributions,
employee contributions and the level of Ryder'dgenance, totaled $11 million in 2006, $11 million2005 and $19 million in 2004.

Supplemental Pension, Deferred Compensation and LgrTerm Compensation Plans

Ryder has a non-qualified supplemental penglan covering certain U.S. employees, which ptesifor incremental pension payments from
Ryder’s funds so that total pension payments etfpgadamounts that would have been payable from Ryg@encipal pension plans if it were not
for limitations imposed by income tax regulatiofibe accrued pension liability related to this pheas $33 million and $29 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Ryder also has deferred compensation platgp#rmit eligible U.S. employees, officers anadiors to defer a portion of their compensation.
The deferred compensation liability, including Rydeatching amounts and accumulated earnings, tb&#8 million and $23 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Ryder also has long-term incentive compeaosgtlans under which the Compensation CommittebeBoard of Directors is authorized to
reward key executives with additional compensationtingent upon attainment of critical businessotiyes. Long-term awards were made from
2002 to 2005. For plan years prior to 2005, pertoroe is measured each year of the plan individaaginst an annual performance goal.
Achievement of the performance target or failurathieve the performance target in
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one year does not affect the target, performaneésgiy compensation for any other plan year. Theuarts earned under the plan vest six and
eighteen months subsequent to the end of the plargée-year cycle. For the 2005 plan year, perfaigeds measured based on achieving certain
levels of net operating revenue growth, earningscpenmon share growth and return on capital oveagproximate three-year period, and not on
an annual basis. If certain performance levelsaahtéeved, the amounts earned under the plan vest®iths subsequent to the end of the plan’s
cycle. Compensation expense under the plan is réoed)in earnings over the vesting period. Totahpensation expense recognized under the
plan was $3 million, $3 million and $2 million ir0@6, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The accrued cosgi®n liability related to these plans was
$6 million and $5 million at December 31, 2006 2085, respectively.

Beginning in 2006, the Compensation Committene Board of Directors ceased further awardteuahe long-term incentive compensation
plans and granted key executives market-basedctesitistock rights with tandem cash awards. Tha easrds are expected to approximate the
amount of the executive’s tax liability relatingttee vesting of the restricted stock rights. Thehcawards will vest at December 31, 2008 if the
market-based restricted stock right vests on tatg.d'he liability related to the cash awards wassified within “Other non-current liabilities”
and was under $1 million at December 31, 2006.

Ryder has established grantor trusts (RalistF) to provide funding for benefits payable urttie supplemental pension plan, deferred
compensation plans and long-term incentive compgimsplans. The assets held in the trusts at Deee®b, 2006 and 2005 amounted to
$30 million and $27 million, respectively. The RaBbusts’ assets consist of short-term cash investsand a managed portfolio of equity
securities, including Ryder’'s common stock. Thessets, except for the investment in Ryder’'s comstook, are included in “Direct financing
leases and other assets” because they are avaiahle general creditors of Ryder in the everRpder’s insolvency. The equity securities are
classified as trading securities and stated aw/lire. Both realized and unrealized gains andebsse included in “Miscellaneous income, net.”
The Rabbi Trusts’ investment of $3 million in Rydecommon stock, at both December 31, 2006 and 2065lected at historical cost and
included in shareholders’ equity.

Other Postretirement Benefits

Ryder sponsors plans that provide retiredleyges with certain healthcare and life insuraneedfits. Substantially all employees not covered
by union-administered health and welfare planstigéble for the healthcare benefits. Healthcanedfiés for Ryder’s principal plans are generally
provided to qualified retirees under age 65 angildk dependents. Generally these plans requirdoge® contributions that vary based on years
of service and include provisions that limit Rydentributions.
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Total periodic postretirement benefit expewss as follows:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

Service cos $1,31¢€ 1,007 964

Interest cos 2,51 2,122 2,29¢

Recognized net actuarial lo 973 282 441

Amortization of prior service cred (231) (1,157 (1,15%)

Census data adjustme 1,947 — —

Postretirement benefit exper $6,51:% 2,254 2,54¢
Compan-administered plans

u.s. $5,99( 1,86¢ 2,214

Non-U.S. 522 38€ 32¢

$6,51% 2,25¢ 2,54%

Postretirement Benefit Plan Char

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we determigedain census data used to actuarially deterrhi@ealue of our U.S. postretirement benefit
obligation for the years 2001 through 2005 wasd¢oaate and we recorded a one-time, non-cash clodu$@ million ($1 million after-tax), for the
adjustment of our U.S. postretirement benefit ailimn. Because the impact resulting from revisingmostretirement benefit obligation estimates
was not material to our consolidated financialestagnts in any individual prior period, and the clative amount is not material to 2006 results,
we recorded the cumulative adjustment, which insedd Salaries and employee-related costs” by $Romiin 2006.

The following table sets forth the weightadi@ge discount rates used in determining annu@die postretirement benefit expense:

U.S. Plar Non-U.S. Plar
Years ended December Years ended December
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Discount rate 5.65% 5.90% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00%  6.25%
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Ryder’s postretirement benefit plans arefantled. The following table sets forth the balaskeet impact, as well as the benefit obligations
and rate assumptions associated with Ryder’s pgivstreent benefit plans:

December 3:
2006 2005

(In thousands
Benefit obligations at January $ 39,28t¢ 39,14
Service cos 1,31¢ 1,00%
Interest cos 2,51% 2,122
Actuarial loss 1,04: 2,14¢
Benefits paic (4,079 (5,232
Census data adjustme 4,79¢€ —
Foreign currency exchange rate char (22) 102
Benefit obligations at December 44,86( 39,28¢
Unrecognized prior service cre! 2,69:¢ 2,924
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 13,27( (10,349
Net $ 34,28 31,86¢

Items not yet recognized as a componenttaf periodic postretirement benefit expense asaddnber 31, 2006 consisted of:

(In thousands)

Prior service credi $ 2,69t
Net actuarial los (13,270
Accumulated other comprehensive loss-tax) $(10,57)

In 2007, we expect to recognize approximafy2 million of the prior service credit and $1lion of the net actuarial loss as a componel
total periodic postretirement benefit expense.

Our annual measurement dates are DecembiefoBtmth U.S. and non-U.S. postretirement bamdfins. Assumptions used in determining
accrued postretirement benefit obligations areolevs:

U.S. Plar Non-U.S. Plar
December 3. December 3.
2006 2005 2006 2005

Discount rate 6.00% 5.65% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.00% 4.00% 3.50% 3.50%
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next 9.00% 9.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tlinde@ltimate trend rate 4.75% 6.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend 201¢ 201cC 201< 201¢

Changing the assumed healthcare cost treed by 1% in each year would not have a materfatebn the accumulated postretirement be
obligation at December 31, 2006 or annual posawetimt benefit expense for 2006.
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The following table details other postretiemhbenefits expected to be paid in each of thefinexfiscal years and in aggregate for the five
fiscal years thereatfter:

(In thousands)

2007 $ 3,59t
2008 3,64¢
2009 3,73¢
2010 3,78¢
2011 3,98(
2012-2016 20,89

24.  ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our operations involve storing and dispengiaggoleum products, primarily diesel fuel, regathtinder environmental protection laws. These
laws require us to eliminate or mitigate the effgfcsuch substances on the environment. In resportbese requirements, we continually upgrade
our operating facilities and implement various peogs to detect and minimize contamination. In adadjtRyder has received notices from the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and otheet thhas been identified as a potentially resguagparty under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liatdty the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorizaticihafd similar state statutes and may
be required to share in the cost of cleanup ofi2atified disposal sites.

Ryder’s environmental expenses included ipéfating expense” in our Consolidated StatemenEaofiings, which included remediation
costs as well as normal recurring expenses sultbemsing, testing and waste disposal fees, wen@i®n, $9 million and $10 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The carrying amoumyafer’s environmental liabilities was $16 milliand $17 million at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. Capital expenditures relatedutoenvironmental programs totaled approximatdlyrilion, $1 million and $2 million in 200
2005 and 2004, respectively. Ryder’s asset retintmleligations of $14 million and $13 million asBécember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
are not included above.

The ultimate cost of Ryder’s environmentabllities cannot presently be projected with catiadue to the presence of several unknown
factors, primarily the level of contamination, thiéectiveness of selected remediation methodssténge of investigation at individual sites, the
determination of Ryder’s liability in proportion tither responsible parties and the recoverabifisuch costs from third parties. Based on
information presently available, management beldabhat the ultimate disposition of these mattdthpagh potentially material to the results of
operations in any one year, will not have a matadaerse effect on Ryder’s financial conditiorliquidity.

25. OTHER MATTERS

Ryder is a party to various claims, legalatt and complaints arising in the ordinary cowfbusiness. While any proceeding or litigation
an element of uncertainty, management believeshieadisposition of these matters will not haveaterial impact on the consolidated financial
position, liquidity or results of operations of Ryrd
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

26. SEGMENT REPORTINC

Ryder’s operating segments are aggregatedémortable business segments based upon sirmdaomic characteristics, products, services,
customers and delivery methods. Ryder operatdgéetreportable business segments: (1) FMS, whimhges full service leasing, contract
maintenance, contract-related maintenance and cociaheental of trucks, tractors and trailers tetmmers, principally in the U.S., Canada and
the U.K.; (2) SCS, which provides comprehensivegpsuphain consulting including distribution andriggportation services throughout North
America and in Latin America, Europe and Asia; &)dDCC, which provides vehicles and drivers as pha dedicated transportation solution in
the U.S.

Ryder’s primary measurement of segment firdmperformance, defined as “Net Before Taxes” (YBmcludes an allocation of Central
Support Services (CSS) and excludes restructuridgogher (charges) recoveries, net and the 2006til#ment plan charges. For purposes of
segment reporting, in 2006 we excluded a pensioawting charge to properly account for prior segwosts, a fourth quarter benefit to pension
expense from an interim pension remeasurementa dodrth quarter adjustment to our postretiremdigations which are more fully described
in Note 23, “Employee Benefit Plans,” in the NotesConsolidated Financial Statements. CSS represeose costs incurred to support all
business segments, including human resources cénaorporate services, public affairs, informatiechnology, health and safety, legal and
corporate communications. The objective of the NBdasurement is to provide clarity on the profitépibf each business segment and,
ultimately, to hold leadership of each businessreag and each operating segment within each busseggnent accountable for their allocated
share of CSS costs. Certain costs are considetael twerhead not attributable to any segment amdireunallocated in CSS. Included among the
unallocated overhead remaining within CSS are tistscfor investor relations, corporate communicej@ublic affairs and certain executive
compensation. CSS costs attributable to the busisegments are predominantly allocated to FMS, &€ISDCC as follows:

» Finance, corporate services, and health and s¢ — allocated based upon estimated and planned resuotilization;

* Human resource — individual costs within this category are allocabedeveral ways, including allocation based oimestied utilizatior
and number of personnel support

» Information technolog — principally allocated based upon utilizationateld metrics such as number of users or minut€stf time.
Custome-related project costs and expenses are allocatiée tousiness segment responsible for the prged

» Other — represents legal and other centralized costeapenses including certain share-based incentirgensation costs. Expenses,
where allocated, are based primarily on the nurobpersonnel supporte

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning eguipamd provides fuel, maintenance and other angitiervices to the SCS and DCC segm
Inter-segment revenue and NBT are accounted fatas similar to those executed with third partéBT related to inter-segment equipment and
services billed to customers (equipment contribntis included in both FMS and the business segnvlith served the customer and then
eliminated (presented as “Eliminations”).

Segment results are not necessarily indieaifthe results of operations that would have oeclhad each segment been an independent,
stand-alone entity during the periods presentedhbBasiness segment follows the same accountingigmbs described in Note 1, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.”
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Business segment revenue and NBT are praesbatew:

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands
Revenue
Fleet Management Solutior
Full service leas $ 1,712,05 1,655,28! 1,633,66!
Contract maintenanc 140,77 133,26 135,00°
Contractual revenu 1,852,82 1,788,55 1,768,67!
Contrac-related maintenanc 176,24 173,01( 160,55:
Commercial rente 621,99¢ 639,23: 607,86
Other 72,06¢ 67,30¢ 69,69(
Fuel services revent 986,16 891,64 683,38
Total Fleet Management Solutions from external @ustrs 3,709,31. 3,559,75. 3,290,17!
Inter-segment revent 386,73 361,43t 312,66
Fleet Management Solutio 4,096,041 3,921,19 3,602,83
Supply Chain Solutions from external custon 2,028,48! 1,637,821 1,354,00:
Dedicated Contract Carriage from external custor 568,84 543,26 506,10(
Eliminations (386,739 (361,43)) (312,669)
Total revenue $ 6,306,64. 5,740,84 5,150,27:
NBT:
Fleet Management Solutio $ 368,06¢ 354,35: 312,70t
Supply Chain Solution 62,14« 39,39: 37,07¢
Dedicated Contract Carriat 42,58¢ 35,12¢ 29,45(
Eliminations (33,73) (32,66() (32,729
439,07( 396,21! 346,50
Unallocated Central Support Servic (39,48¢) (35,75)) (33,06))
Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries, mt2806 net retirement plan chard® (6,617) (3,37¢6) 17,67¢
Earnings from continuing operations before incomees $ 392,97: 357,08t 331,12.

1) 2006 includes the pension accounting chargg6amillion, pension remeasurement benefit of $fianind postretirement benefit plan charge of $Riom for census data
adjustment. See Note * Employee Benefit Pla” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsélditional information
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The following table sets forth share-based pemsation, depreciation expense, gains on velabds snet, other non-cash charges (credits), net,
interest expense (income) and capital expendifiorethe years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 andl, 286pectively, and total assets at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, as pedvid the chief operating decision-maker for eddRyaler’s reportable business segments:

FMS SCS DCC CSS Eliminations Total
(In thousands

2006

Share-based compensation expens $ 4,187 3,18¢ 37€ 5,89¢ — 13,64
Depreciation expensel) $ 723,07t 18,10 1,59¢ 51z — 743,28t
Gains on vehicles sales, ni $ (50,766 — — — — (50,76¢)
Other non-cash charges, ne@ $ 7,881 24¢€ 1 5,97¢ — 14,10¢
Interest expense (income®) $ 137,00¢ 5,97¢ (2,8072) 377 — 140,56:
Capital expenditures® $1,655,18 26,72¢ 1,05¢ 12,10( — 1,695,06:
Total assets $6,200,29. 545,91 123,68 101,47¢ (142,440 6,828,92.
2005

Shar-based compensation expel $ 527 57¢ 60 1,95¢ — 3,12¢
Depreciation expens®) $ 718,92¢ 19,98¢ 1,44( 61 — 740,41}
Gains on vehicle sales, r $ (47,099 — — — — (47,099
Other nol-cash charges (credits), 12 $ 11,70¢ 91 @) (56%) — 11,23:
Interest expense (incom®) $ 116,19 6,31( (2,280) 251 — 120,47-
Capital expenditure® $1,342,90! 23,39 1,12¢ 31,95: — 1,399,37!
Total asset $5,461,82. 494,13t 117,81¢ 136,62¢ (177,14) 6,033,26.
2004

Shar-based compensation expel $ 40C 38¢ 30 1,08 — 1,90z
Depreciation expens®) $ 680,67t 23,59: 1,46 29¢ — 706,02¢
Gains on vehicle sales, r $ (34,509 — — — — (34,509
Other nol-cash charges (credits), 1().(5) $ 3,92 417 9 (23,510 — (19,164
Interest expense (incom®) $ 98,60¢ 3,82¢ (2,395 77 — 100,11«
Capital expenditure® $1,062,42; 15,45¢ 53¢ 13,74¢ — 1,092,15!

1) Depreciation expense associated with CSS assetlamated to business segments based upon estiraateplanned asset utilization. Depreciation exggetotaling
$12 million, $13 million and $13 million during 2602005 and 2004, respectively, associated with &S38ts was allocated to other business segn

) Includes amortization expens

?3) Interest expense is primarily allocated to the F&&§ment since such borrowings are used princigelfynd the purchase of revenue earning equipmsed in FMS
however, with the availability of segment balanieeet information (including targeted segment legereatios), interest expense (income) is also c&flein SCS and DC(

4) Excludes FMS acquisition payments of $4 milliorg #illion and $149 million in 2006, 2005 and 20@dspectively, primarily comprised of lc-lived assets
(5) 2004 includes CSS gains from properties sold imeotion with the relocation of our headquarters pben.
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Geographic Information

Revenue
United State!
Foreign:
Canade
Europe
Latin America
Asia

Total

Long-lived assets
United State:
Foreign:

Canade
Europe

Latin America
Asia

Total

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Years ended December

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands

$ 5,136,77 4,722,021 4,226,17!
564,41¢ 483,69t 411,84:
346,93¢ 343,22¢ 360,20
237,37 172,25} 120,59(
21,13¢ 19,64 31,46:
1,169,86! 1,018,82 924,09¢
$ 6,306,64. 5,740,84 5,150,27:
$ 4,180,75. 3,498,44. 3,190,45.
412,65 380,88 336,94
360,34 350,64 420,07
33,03¢ 30,44¢ 17,25
21,51¢ 20,79¢ 22,27
827,54¢ 782,77( 796,54¢
$ 5,008,301 4,281,21. 3,987,00:.

We believe that our diversified portfolio@istomers across a full array of transportationlagibtics solutions and across many industries
help to mitigate the impact of adverse downturnsgecific sectors of the economy in the near toiomederm. Our portfolio of full service lease
and commercial rental customers is not concentiatedy one particular industry or geographic regiwowever, the largest concentration is in

non-cyclical industries such as food, groceries laenvbrages. Ryder derives a significant portioitsoBCS revenue (approximately 65% and 60%

in 2006 and 2005, respectively) from the automoiivkistry, mostly from manufacturers and suppladreriginal equipment parts. Our largest

customer, General Motors Corporation (GM), accodifive approximately 13% and 10% of consolidatecereie in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

GM also accounted for approximately 40%, 35%, adfb ®f SCS total revenue in 2006, 2005 and 2004eci/ely. None of our customers
constituted more than 10% of consolidated reven#9d4.
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27. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Earnings fronm

Continuing
Operations pe Net Earnings pe
Earnings fromr Common Shar Common Shar
Continuing
Revenue Operations Net Earning:s Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In thousands, except per share amot
2006
First quarter $1,496,29: 47,582 47,582 0.7¢ 0.77 0.7¢ 0.77
Second quarter 1,595,72 70,27¢ 70,27¢ 1.1¢ 1.1¢ 1.1¢ 1.13
Third quarter 1,620,54! 65,271 65,271 1.07 1.0€ 1.07 1.0€
Fourth quarter 1,594,07 65,821 65,821 1.0¢ 1.0¢ 1.0¢ 1.0¢
Full year $6,306,64: 248,95¢ 248,95 40¢ 4.0 4.0¢ 4.04
2005
First quartel $1,315,61! 41,48¢ 41,48¢ 0.6% 0.64 0.6% 0.64
Second quarte 1,389,811 63,29¢ 63,29¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢
Third quartel 1,490,62: 63,34! 63,34! 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢
Fourth quarte 1,544,79: 59,50( 58,80 094  0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.92
Full year $5,740,84 227,62t 226,92¢ 357  3.5¢ 3.5€ 3.52

Quarterly and year-to -date computationsesfghare amounts are made independently; theréf@rsum of peshare amounts for the quart
may not equal per-share amounts for the year.

Earnings in the second quarter of 2006 inetlidn income tax benefit of $7 million, or $0.11 giduted common share, associated with the
reduction of deferred income taxes due to enadtadges in Texas and Canadian tax laws. Earningpeithird quarter of 2006 also included a
$4 million, or $0.06 per diluted common share, p@maccounting charge which represented a one-time;cash charge to properly account for
prior service costs related to retiree benefit immements made in 1995 and 2000.

Earnings in the second quarter of 2005 weigacted, in part, by a state income tax benef#illion, or $0.12 per diluted common share,
associated with the reduction of deferred incomegalue to the phase-out of income taxes for thte $f Ohio.

115




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance a Transferrec Balance
Beginning Charged tc (from) to Other at End
Description of Period Earnings Accountst) Deductions(@) of Period
(In thousands

2006
Accounts receivable allowanc $ 13,22: 8,29¢ — 6,77: 14,74«
Reserve for residual value guarantee $ 5,30( 1,171 — 4,244 2,220
Selfinsurance accruals® $265,40¢ 141,72¢ — 134,21¢ 272,91¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assel $ 12,367 45¢ 98 — 12,72¢
2005
Accounts receivable allowan $ 11,92¢ 8,06¢ — 6,76¢ 13,22
Reserve for residual value guarant $ 6,20¢ 39C — 1,29¢ 5,30(
Self-insurance accrua® $265,70t 147,42 — 147,72« 265,40¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax as: $ 11,55¢ 103 (705) — 12,361
2004
Accounts receivable allowan: $ 9,361 9,54¢ — 6,98: 11,92
Reserve for residual value guarant $ 10,53¢ 1,25( — 5,57¢ 6,20¢
Self-insurance accrua® $258,29¢ 151,67! — 144,26¢ 265,70t
Valuation allowance on deferred tax as: $ 10,33: 1,024 (204) — 11,55¢

(1)  Transferred (from) to other accounts includes atinents (from) to the deferred tax valuation allowffior the effect of foreign currency translatierhich is recorded it
shareholder’ equity througt* Accumulated other comprehensive |”

2) Deductions represent receivables wri-off, lease termination payments and insurance cla@yments during the perio

?3) Seltinsurance accruals include vehicle liability, work’ compensation, property damage and cargo, which cis@phe majority of our seinsurance programs
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Ryder changed its independent registeredipabtounting firm in September 2005 for the fispsdhr ending December 31, 2006 from KPMG
LLP (*KPMG”) to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Infortioa regarding the change in the independent regidtpublic accounting firm was
reported in Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-KedaSeptember 27, 2005. There were no disagreemeats/ reportable events requiring
disclosure under Item 304(b) of Regulation S-K.

We have agreed to indemnify and hold KPMQless against and from any and all legal costseapénses incurred by KPMG in successful
defense of any legal action or proceeding thataras a result of KPMG'’s consent to the incorponaly reference of its audit report on the
Company’s past consolidated financial statementsanr Registration Statements on Form S-8 anthF8¢3.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by tkjsart, we carried out an evaluation, under the igien and with the participation of managem
including Ryder’s Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer, of the effectiveness of theigasand operation of Ryder’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules Bfa)}®Bnd 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchang®®t934). Based upon that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiamsncluded that at December 31, 2006, Ryder’s aisecke controls and procedures (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchangeof1934) were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Managemens’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Repaytand the Report of Independent Registered GadtRiublic Accounting Firr
thereon are set out in Item 8 of Part Il of thisrRo10-K Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

During the three months ended December 316 2Biere were no changes in Ryder’s internal obotrer financial reporting that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to miahy affect such internal control over financraporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART lll
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 with respto executive officers is included within IteninlPart | under the caption “Executive Officers
of the Registrant” of this Form 10-K Annual Report

The information required by Item 10 with respto directors, audit committee, audit commifteancial experts and Section 16(a) beneficial
ownership reporting compliance is included underahptions “Election of Directors,” “Audit Committeand “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitivepy statement, which will be filed with the Comsien within 120 days after the close of
the fiscal year, and is incorporated herein byresfee.

Ryder has adopted a code of ethics applidabits Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financialf@&r, Controller and Senior Financial
Management. The Code of Ethics forms part of RydBrinciples of Business Conduct which are postethe Corporate Governance page of
Ryder’s website at www.ryder.com.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is inadgdunder the captions “Compensation Discussionfaradysis,” “Executive Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee,” “Compensation Committegétt on Executive Compensation” and “Director Cemgation’in our definitive proxy
statement, which will be filed with the Commissiwithin 120 days after the close of the fiscal yead is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 with respto security ownership of certain beneficial evsnand management is included under the
captions “Security Ownership of Officers and Dimgst and “Security Ownership of Certain Benefidianers” in our definitive proxy statement,
which will be filed with the Commission within 12fays after the close of the fiscal year, and isiiporated herein by reference.

The information required by Item 12 with respto related stockholder matters is included wittem 6 in Part | under the caption “Securities
Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensatiams$® of this Form 10-K Annual Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS,
AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is inchddunder the captions “Board of Directors” and ‘@®etl Party Transactions” in our definitive
proxy statement, which will be filed with the Conssion within 120 days after the close of the figear, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is inchddunder the captions “Ratification of Independ&mditor (Proposal 2)” in our definitive proxy
statement, which will be filed with the Commissiwithin 120 days after the close of the fiscal yead is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Items A through H and Schedule 1l are preseatethe following pages of this Form 10-K Annuagd®rt:

Page No.
1. Financial Statements for Ryder System, amcl Consolidated Subsidiaris
A) Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repay 58
B) Report of Independent Registered Certified Publicdunting Firm— PricewaterhouseCoopers LI 59
C) Report of Independent Registered Certified Pubicdunting Firm —
KPMG LLP 61
D) Consolidated Statements of Earnil 62
E) Consolidated Balance She: 63
F) Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ 64
G) Consolidated Statements of Sharehol Equity 65
H) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 66
2. Consolidated Financial Statement Scheftulthe Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and::
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 11€

All other schedules are omitted because #neynot applicable or the required informationhewen in the consolidated financial statements or
notes thereto.

Supplementary Financial Information consigtiri selected quarterly financial data is includettem 8 of this report.
3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed with thispert or, where indicated, incorporated by refereff@gms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K referenced herein
have been filed under the Commission’s file No4364). Ryder will provide a copy of the exhibiteél with this report at a nominal charge to
those parties requesting them.
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.2

4.1

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.3

4.4

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.3(F)

10.4(a)

The Ryder System, Inc. Restated Articles of Incomfion, dated November 8, 1985, as amended thriblaghl8,
1990, previously filed with the Commission as ahibit to Ryder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear ended
December 31, 1990, are incorporated by referertogliis report

Articles of Amendment to Ryder System, Inc. Restateticles of Incorporation, dated November 8, 198%
amended, previously filed with the Commission orriAp, 1996 as an exhibit to Ryder’s Form 8-A aredrporated
by reference into this repo

The Ryder System, Inc. By-Laws, as amended thréwdituary 16, 2001, previously filed with the Comsius as
an exhibit to Ryder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K flee year ended December 31, 2000, are incorpblate
reference into this repol

Ryder hereby agrees, pursuant to paragraph(b)j4iitem 601 of Regulation S-K, to furnish the@mission with
a copy of any instrument defining the rights ofdesk of long-term debt of Ryder, where such insgonihas not
been filed as an exhibit hereto and the total armofisecurities authorized thereunder does notexkd®% of the
total assets of Ryder and its subsidiaries on aaatated basis

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiam¢d as
of June 1, 1984, filed with the Commission on Nobem19, 1985 as an exhibit to Ryder’s RegistraBtatement on
Form <3 (No. 3:-1632), is incorporated by reference into this rég

The First Supplemental Indenture between Ryderegysinc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank (Nationab&aton,
dated October 1, 1987, previously filed with then@oission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Annual ReporFonm 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1994, is incorpdrhy reference into this repc

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiatgdl as
of May 1, 1987, and supplemented as of Novembel 280 and June 24, 1992, filed with the Commission
July 30, 1992 as an exhibit to Ryder’s Registratatement on Form S-3 (No. 33-50232), is incongaray
reference into this repol

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.JaR. Morgan Trust Company, National Associatiated as
of October 3, 2003 filed with the Commission on Asg29, 2003 as an exhibit to Ryder’s RegistraBtatement on
Form £-3 (No. 33:-108391), is incorporated by reference into thiore)

The form of change of control severance agreenmrexecutive officers effective as of January Q@(Qreviously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydekisnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31,
2003, is incorporated by reference into this re

The form of severance agreement for executive effieffective as of January 1, 2000, previoussdfivith the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2603, i
incorporated by reference into this rep:

The Ryder System, Inc. Executive Severance Pléectefe as of January 1, 2007, previously filedhathie
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current ReparfForm 8-K filed with the Commission on January 2007, is
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Management Incentivag@msation Plan, previously filed with the Commassas an
exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K fileith the Commission on February 16, 2005, is ipooated by
reference into this repol

The Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock Incentive Plargraended and restated as of August 15, 1996 ondyifiled

with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s AnnRaport on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 199
incorporated by reference into this rep
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.4(b)

10.4(c)

10.4(F)

10.4(g)

10.4(h)

10.4(i)

10.4())

10.4(k)

10.4(1)

10.4(m)

10.4(n)

10.4(0)

10.4(p)

The form of Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock InceniNan, United Kingdom Section, dated May 4, 199Byjusly
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydekisnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31,
1995, is incorporated by reference into this rey

The form of Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock IncenBNan, United Kingdom Section, dated October 35199
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 1995, is incorporated by refereneethis report

The Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plargraended and restated at May 4, 2001, previoilstyWith the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended September 30, 200h¢cporated
by reference into this repo

The Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plargraended and restated as of July 25, 2002, pyifiled with
the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Annual Repo Form 10-K for the year ended December 313230
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on March 2005 a:
Appendix A to the Proxy Statement for the 2005 Aairideeting of Shareholders of the Company is inocaped by
reference into this repol

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiemtktoptions granted in 2006 under the Ryder Syshem 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current ReparEForm 8-
K filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, arearporated by reference into this rep:

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stigits granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 209t
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report omi8¢K filed
with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are incorpentdiy reference into this repc

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 20Q8tiq
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report omi8¢K filed
with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are incorpentdiy reference into this repc

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2005 lomgitiecentive cash awards granted under the Rydste8y Inc.
2005 Equity Compensation Plan, previously filedhwifie Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Curregpdtt on
Form &K filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, aredrporated by reference into this rep

Terms and Conditions applicable to annual incertagh awards granted under the Ryder System, 00& Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consida as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report omi8¢K filed
with the Commission on February 15, 2006, are ipeaated by reference into this repc

Terms and Conditions applicable to performahased restricted stock rights and related cashdsxganted in 20(
under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compeos&lan, previously filed with the Commission aseahibit to

Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with ther@mission on February 15, 2006, are incorporatedfgrence
into this report

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiemtktoptions granted in 2007 under the Ryder Syshem 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current ReparEForm 8-
K filed with the Commission on February 14, 200/ mcorporated by reference into this rep

Terms and Conditions applicable to performahased restricted stock rights and related cashdsxganted in 20(
under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compemsa®ian, previously filed with the Commission aseahibit to

Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with ther@mission on February 14, 2007, are incorporatedfgrence
into this report

121




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

Description

10.5(b)

10.5(c)

10.6(a)

10.6(b)

10.9(a)

1C0.10

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

211

The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Award P&mamended and restated at February 10, 2005ppsdyffiled
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s AnnRaport on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 200-
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Plan, asmal®é and restated at May 7, 2004, previously fiéd the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2G04, i
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System Benefit Restoration Plan, effeciianuary 1, 1985, previously filed with the Consiue as an
exhibit to Ryder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbetyear ended December 31, 1992, is incorporatedfbyence
into this report

The First Amendment to the Ryder System Benefitétation Plan, effective at December 16, 1988, iotesly filed
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s AnnRaport on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 199:
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. Stock for Merit Increase |Regment Plan, as amended and restated as of ALGU$996,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 1997, is incorporated by refereneethis report

The Ryder System, Inc. Deferred Compensation Rlsiamended and restated at January 1, 2005, psevided
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s AnnRaport on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 200-
incorporated by reference to this rep:

The Asset and Stock Purchase Agreement by and eetRgder System, Inc. and First Group Plc. dateaf as
July 21, 1999, filed with the Commission on Septen®4, 1999 as an exhibit to Ryder’s report on FBfKj is
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plafeative as of January 1, 2002, as amended on MagQ,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witketh
Commission on May 11, 2005, is incorporated byrafee into this repor

Global Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of May2004 among Ryder System, Inc., certain whollyredv
subsidiaries of Ryder System, Inc., Fleet Natideahk, individually and as administrative agent, aadain lenders,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for theiguet ended
June 30, 2004, is incorporated by reference intortéport.

Amendment Agreement No. 1 to $870 million Global/Bging Credit Agreement dated May 11, 2005, presly
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to RydeZisrrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissan
May 11, 2005, is incorporated by reference ints tiport.

List of subsidiaries of the registrant, with thatetor other jurisdiction of incorporation or origation of each, and
the name under which each subsidiary does busi
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Exhibit
Number Description
231 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consent to incorpordtjoreference in certain Registration Statementsams S-3
and $-8 of their report on Consolidated Financial Statet®@nd schedules of Ryder System, Inc. and itsidiabies.
23.2 KPMG LLP consent to incorporation by referenceéntain Registration Statements on Forms S-3 anaSi&ir
report on Consolidated Financial Statements anddidhs of Ryder System, Inc. and its subsidia
24.1 Manually executed powers of attorney for eact
John M. Berra David I. Fuente
L. Patrick Hassey Lynn M. Martin
Daniel H. Mudd Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
Eugene A. Renna Abbie J. Smith
E. Follin Smith Hansel E. Tookes, Il
Christine A. Varne)
311 Certification of Gregory T. Swienton pursuant tol&k3¢15(e) or Rule 15-15(e).
31.2 Certification of Mark T. Jamieson pursuant to RUBz-15(e) or Rule 15-15(e).
32 Certification of Gregory T. Swienton and Mark Tmlason pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(i)

18 U.S.C. Section 135
(b) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements:
Please refer to the description of Exhib@islithrough 10.10 and 10.13 set forth under Itea)B50f this report for a listing of all management
contracts and compensation plans and arrangemleatsvith this report pursuant to Iltem 601(b)(10)Regulation S-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rdgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednty authorized.

Date: February 14, 2007 RYDER SYSTEM, INC.
By: /s/ GREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secarifiechange Act of 1934, this report has been sigpedalv by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: February 14, 2007 By: /s/ GREGORY T. SNIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offideriricipal
Executive Officer;

Date: February 14, 2007 By: /s/ MARK T. JAMIESON
Mark T. Jamieson
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

Date: February 14, 2007 By: /s/ ART A. GARCIA

Art A. Garcia
Senior Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer

Date: February 14, 2007 By: JoHN M. BERRA*

John M. Berra
Director

Date: February 14, 2007 By: DavID |. FUENTE*

David I. Fuente
Director

Date: February 14, 2007 By: L. PATRICK HASSEY*

L. Patrick Hassey
Director

Date: February 14, 2007 By: LYNN M. MARTIN*

Lynn M. Martin
Director

Date: February 14, 2007 By: DaNIEL H. MuDD*

Daniel H. Mudd
Director
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Date: February 14, 2007

Date: February 14, 2007

Date: February 14, 2007

Date: February 14, 2007

Date: February 14, 2007

Date: February 14, 2007

Date: February 14, 2007

125

By: Luis P. NETO, R.*

Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
Director

By: EUGENEA. RENNA*

Eugene A. Renna
Director

By: ABBIE J. SnTH*

Abbie J. Smith
Director

By: E. FOLLIN SMITH*

E. Follin Smith
Director

By: HANSEL E. TOOKES II*

Hansel E. Tookes, Il
Director

By: CHRISTINE A. VARNEY*

Christine A. Varney
Director

*By: /s/ FLORA R. FEREZ

Flora R. Perez
Attorney-in-Fact






EXHIBIT 21.1

The following list sets forth (i) all subsaties of Ryder System, Inc. at December 31, 20D@&h¢é state or country of incorporation or
organization of each subsidiary, and (iii) the nameder which certain subsidiaries do business.

State or Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization
1318359 Ontario Limite(?) Canad
Ascent Logistics (Taiwan) Company Lt Taiwar
Associated Ryder Capital Services, Ir Florids
CRTS Logistica Automotiva S.A Brazil
Far East Freight, Inc Floride
Network Vehicle Central, Inc Floride
Network Vehicle Central, LLC Floride
Phaseking Limite« United Kingdon
Road Master, Limite: Bermud:
RSI Acquisition Corp. Delawart
RSI Holding B.V. Netherland
RSI Purchase Corg Delawart
RTI Argentina, S.A. Argenting
RTRC Finance LI Canad
RTR Holdings (B.V.1.) Limitec British Virgin Island:
RTR Leasing I, Inc. Delawart
RTR Leasing Il, Inc. Delawart
Ryder Airport Operations Corg Floride
Ryder Argentina S.A. Argenting
Ryder-Ascent Logistics Pte Ltd Singapor
Ryder Asia Pacific Holdings B.\ Netherland
Ryder Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapor
Ryder Australia Pty Ltd. Australie
Ryder Capital Irelan: United Kingdon
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings | LL Delawart
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings II LL! Delawart
Ryder Capital S. de R.L. de C.\ Mexica
Ryder Capital Services Corporati Delawart
RYDERCORF Floride
RYDERCORP, Inc. Delawart
Ryder de Mexico S. de R.L. de C. Mexica
Ryder Dedicated Logistics, Inc Delawart

Ryder Deutschland Gmb
Ryder Distribution Services Limite

West German
United Kingdon

Ryder do Brasil Ltda. Brazil
Ryder Energy Distribution Corporatic Florids
Ryder Europe B.V Netherland
Ryder Europe Operations B. Netherland
Ryder FleetProducts.com, In Tennesse
Ryder Fuel Services, LL Delawart
Ryder Funding LF Delawart




Name of Subsidiary

State or Country of

Incorporation or Organization

Ryder Funding Il LF

Ryder Holding, LLC

Ryder (Hong Kong) Co. Limite
Ryder Hungary Logistics LL(
Ryder, Inc. of Floridz

Ryder Integrated Logistics, In(@
Ryder International Acquisition Corf
Ryder International, Inc

Ryder Logistica Ltda.

Ryder Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Lt
Ryder Mauritius Holdings, Ltd
Ryder Mexican Holding B.V

Ryder Mexican Investments | LL
Ryder Mexican Investments Il LL
Ryder Mexican Investments | L
Ryder Mexican Investments Il L
Ryder Mexicana, S.A. de C.\
Ryder Offshore Holdings I LL(
Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LL(
Ryder Offshore Holdings 11l LLC
Ryder Offshore Holdings L

Ryder Pension Fund Limite

Ryder Polska Sp. z o

Ryder Public Limited Compar
Ryder Puerto Rico, Inc

Ryder Purchasing LL¢

Ryder Realty, Inc.

Ryder Receivable Funding, L.L.
Ryder Receivable Funding Il, L.L.
Ryder Services Corporatic®)

Ryder Servicios do Brasil Ltde
Ryder Servicios S. de R.L. de C.
Ryder (Shanghai) Logistics Co., Lt
Ryder Singapore Pte Lic

Ryder Sistemas Integrados de Logistica Limit®
Ryder St. Louis Redevelopment Corporat
Ryder Sweden Al

Ryder System B.V

Ryder System Holdings (UK) Limite
Ryder System Limite:

Ryder System Malaysia Sdn. Bt
Ryder System (Thailand) Co., Lt
Ryder Thailand I, LLC

Ryder Thailand Il, LLC

Ryder Thailand 111, LLC

Delawart
Delawart
Hong Kong
Hungar
Florida
Delawart
Florida
Florida
Brazil
Chine
Mauritius
Netherland
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Mexica
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
United Kingdon
Polanc
United Kingdon
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Florida
Delawart
Florida
Brazil
Mexica
Chine
Singapor
Chile
Missour
Swedel
Netherland
United Kingdon
United Kingdon
Malaysie
Thailanc
Florida
Florida
Florida




State or Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization
Ryder Thailand IV, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand V, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand VI, LLC Floride
Ryder Truck Rental Holdings Canada L Canad
Ryder Truck Rental, Inc® Floride
Ryder Truck Rental | LLC Delawart
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delawart
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delawart
Ryder Truck Rental IV LLC Delawart
Ryder Truck Rental I LI Delawart
Ryder Truck Rental Il LF Delawart
Ryder Truck Rental Canada L1®) Canad
Ryder Truck Rental L Delawarst
Ryder Truckstops, Inc Floride
Ryder Vehicle Lease Trust 1¢-A Delawart
Ryder Vehicle Lease Trust 2C-A Delawart
Sistemas Logisticos Sigma S., Argentine
Spring Hill Integrated Logistics Management, Ir Delawart
Surplus Property Holding Corg Floride
Tandem Transport, L.F Georgiz
Translados Americanos SRL de ( Mexica
TTR Logistics, LLC Delawart
Truck Transerv, Inc. Delawart

(1)  Ontario, Canada: d/b/a Ryder Grocery Servi

2) Florida: d/b/a UniRydel

(3)  Ohio and Texas: d/b/a Ryder Claims Services Corpam:

4) Chile: d/b/a Ryder Chile Limitad

5) Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, @abo, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbidorida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, lllinois, Indiandowa, Kansas
Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusétishigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Mom#éa Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersay N\&xico,

New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oldaha, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South l@ardSouth Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, VerWinginia,
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and WyomiriigladRyder Transportation Servic

Maryland and Virginia: d/b/a Ryder/ Jacobs
Michigan: d/b/a Atlas Trucking, Inc.
Michigan: d/b/a Ryder Atlas of Western Michic

(6) French Name: Location de Camions Ryder du Canada.

Canada: d/b/a Ryder Integrated Logistic
Ryder Dedicated Logistic
Ryder Canadi






EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation bgnegice in the Registration Statements on Form(Me3 333-128661) and Form S-8 (No’s 1-
4364, No. 33-69660, No. 33-62013, No. 333-19%dd, 333-26653, No. 333-57595, No. 333-69626, R83-69628, No.
333-108364, No. 333-124828 and No. 333-13411Ryafer System, Inc. of our report dated Februar20P7 relating to the financial
statements, financial statement schedule, manag&@asessment of the effectiveness of internalrobaver financial reporting and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Miami, Florida
February 12, 2007






EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors of
Ryder System, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by referendbe following Registration Statements on For®s and S-8 of Ryder System, Inc., of our
report dated February 15, 2006, with respect tactimsolidated balance sheet of Ryder System, htsabsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of earningsebblders’ equity, and cash flows for each ofybars in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2005, and the related consolidateadial statement schedule, in so far as the infdaoman the schedule pertains to the two-year
period ended December 31, 2005, which report agpeahe December 31, 2006 annual report on FoK df Ryder System, Inc., and refers to
a change in method of accounting for conditionakasetirement obligations in 2005.

Form S-3:

* Registration Statement N333-128661covering $800,000,000 aggregate amount of secsu

Form S-8:

* Registration Statement N1-4364covering the Ryder System Profit Incentive Stocknk

» Registration Statement N@3-69660covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock Inceniian.

* Registration Statement N33-62013covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incenflan.

* Registration Statement N@3:-19515covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1997 Deferred Camsgtion Plan

* Registration Statement N@33-26653covering the Ryder System, Inc. Board of Direc®tasck Award Plan
» Registration Statement N@3:-57595covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incenfian.

» Registration Statement N@3:-69626covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incenfilan.

» Registration Statement N33:-69628covering the Ryder System, Inc. Directors StockF

* Registration Statement N@33-108364covering the Ryder System, Inc. Board of Direc®isck Award Plan

* Registration Statement No. 333-124828 covettiegRyder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensatiam Bhd the Ryder System, Inc.
Stock Purchase Plan for Employe

* Registration Statement N@33-134113covering the Ryder System, Inc. 401(k) Savings F

/sl KPMG LLP

February 14, 2007
Miami, Florida
Certified Public Accountants






EXHIBIT 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that eachtbé undersigned, being directors of Ryder System, b Florida corporation, hereby
constitutes and appoints Robert D. Fatovic, Flor&ez and John D. Montanti, and each of themptier true and lawful attorney-in -fact and
agent, with full power of substitution and resutagion, for the undersigned and in his or her naptece and stead, in any and all capacities, to
sign the Ryder System, Inc. Form 10-K (Annual Reparsuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1984)he fiscal year ended December 31,
2006 (the “Form 10-K"), and any and all amendméhnéseto, and to file the same, with all exhibitereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comimiisand with the New York Stock Exchange and amgpstock exchange on which the
Company’s common stock is listed, granting untchesaid attorney-in -fact and agent full power antharity to perform every act requisite and
necessary to be done in connection with the exae@nd filing of the Form 10-K and any and all aments thereto, as fully for all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in petseneby ratifying all that each said attorney-irctfand agent, or his or her substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye thereof.

This Power of Attorney may be signed in anynber of counterparts, each of which shall congtitn original and all of which, taken
together, shall constitute one Power of Attorney.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersignas hereunto set his or her hand effective theday of February, 2007.

/s HN M. BERRA

/s/ Davip |. FUENTE

John M. Berre

/s/ L. RTRICK HASSEY

David I. Fuente

/s/ LyNN M. MARTIN

L. Patrick Hasse

/s/ DaNIEL H. MubD

Lynn M. Martin

/sl Luis P. NETO, R.

Daniel H. Mudd

/s/ BUGENE A. RENNA

Luis P. Nieto, Jr

/s/ ABBIE J. SaITH

Eugene A. Renn

/sl E. FOLLIN SMITH

Abbie J. Smitt

/s/ HANSEL E. TookEes |l

E. Follin Smith

/s! QHRISTINE A. VARNEY

Christine A. Varne)

Hansel E. Tookes,






EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory T. Swienton, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FolC-K of Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does antain any untrue statement of a material factroit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunegts under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period

covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjemnd other financial information included instihéport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer anadre responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))&nd internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13&15(f) and15¢c-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdaorbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithhe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over finanoéglorting, or caused such internal control ovearitial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagrdeng the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip!

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and pres@éntbd report our conclusions about -
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such
evaluation; an(

d) disclosed in this report any change in thésteant’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer ahldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittcmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(ws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refmancial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ivesl management or other employees who have aisigmtifrole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 14, 2007 /s/ GREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi






EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Mark T. Jamieson, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FolC-K of Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does antain any untrue statement of a material factroit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunegts under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period

covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjemnd other financial information included instihéport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer anadre responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))&nd internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13&15(f) and15¢c-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdaorbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithhe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over finanoéglorting, or caused such internal control ovearitial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagrdeng the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip!

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and pres@éntbd report our conclusions about -
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such
evaluation; an(

d) disclosed in this report any change in thésteant’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer ahldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittcmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(ws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refmancial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ivesl management or other employees who have aisigmtifrole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 14, 2007 /s/ MARK T. JAMIESON

Mark T. Jamieson
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi






EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Ry@&gstem, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tfear ended December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tie hereof (the “Report”), Gregory T. SwientonjefikExecutive Officer of the Company,

and Mark T. Jamieson, Chief Financial Officer of tiompany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®b0] as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeok 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportlfjapresents, in all material respects, the finanmadition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ GREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
February 14, 2007

/s/ MARK T. JAMIESON

Mark T. Jamieson

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 14, 200




